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About this report
Our Annual Report showcases the major initiatives and achievements of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited (Stanwell). 

This report reviews the company’s financial and non-financial performance in 
2011–12. 

Due to the significant change in the business in 2011–12 compared with the 
previous year, resulting from the restructure of the Queensland Government owned 
generating sector, we have adopted a range of different benchmarking options 
throughout the report, depending on availability of data. 

This report also provides information on other important business processes such 
as our approach to corporate governance (pages 25 – 31) and risk management. 

The aim of this report is to provide accurate and detailed information to meet 
the needs of our stakeholders, who include but are not limited to shareholding 
Ministers and government, employees and contractors, local communities, 
customers, regulators and suppliers. 

To assist in reading our Annual Report, we have included a glossary on page 116 
and an index on page 117. 

Electronic versions of this and previous years’ reports are available online at  
www.stanwell.com or from the Community and Stakeholder Engagement team on  
1800 300 351. 

We welcome your comments on this report as they assist us to continually improve 
our reporting and meet the needs of our stakeholders. Feedback can be provided 
by emailing enquiries@stanwell.com 

Mission vision values
Our vision
Stanwell will be Australia’s safest, most responsible, most commercially-focused 
energy provider. 

At Stanwell, we are: 

• Safe — Everyone is a safety leader. We seek to achieve Zero Harm in all 
our workplaces. 

• Responsible — We are reliable; we are accountable for our actions; we make 
a positive contribution to our community and we are here for the long term. 

• Commercially-focused — Every one of us contributes to Stanwell’s financial 
stability and performance through our decisions and actions. 

Our mission
Stanwell contributes to Queensland’s prosperity through the safe and responsible 
provision of energy and commercial returns from business operations.

Our values
Safe. Responsible. Commercially-focused.

Our values underpin all we do and are the foundation of our culture.

Pictured on front cover: Stanwell Power Station 
Logistics and Operations Manager Ian Cross and 
Station Support Officer Michelle Weazel.
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Key points
• The restructure of Queensland Government owned generators was effected on 1 July 2011. As a result, Stanwell is now 

the largest electricity generator in Queensland. 
• The Queensland market is significantly oversupplied. For the 2011–12 financial year, average excess available generation 

was more than 4500 MW. Average Queensland energy demand has decreased for the second year in a row.
• Average wholesale electricity prices have decreased for four consecutive years, reaching a low of $29.07/MWh in 

2011–12. 
• Despite decreasing wholesale electricity prices, environmental schemes (including carbon costs) have increased 

electricity costs for retailers, adding more than $30/MWh to the regulated retail tariff for 2012–13. 
• We have maintained our focus on safety and our drive towards Zero Harm. This is reflected in our safety performance 

indicators. 
• Our net profit after tax result of $79.9 million was above target, with revenue totalling $1.32 billion and operating cash 

flows of $156.1 million. 
• We are challenging and improving our business so we can deliver strong commercial returns. This involves targeting 

savings, reducing capital expenditure, optimising our generation portfolio and ensuring we have an appropriate and 
effective organisational structure. 

• The introduction of a carbon price from 1 July 2012 will have a significant adverse financial and operational impact on 
our business. However, we are well prepared to operate under a carbon price. 

Integration
On 1 July 2011, Stanwell’s business was restructured to become the largest electricity generator in Queensland. This 
followed the Shareholder Review of Queensland Government Owned Corporation Generators and subsequent restructure of 
the Queensland Government owned generating sector from three companies, Stanwell, Tarong Energy Corporation Limited 
(Tarong Energy) and CS Energy Limited (CS Energy), to two (Stanwell and CS Energy). 

Assets, liabilities and contracts from the three former generating companies were reallocated to the two restructured 
companies, Stanwell and CS Energy. 

During the year, we placed considerable effort in consolidating and aligning the people, cultures, assets, systems, policies 
and procedures of the new Stanwell. While some of this work is ongoing, we have made considerable progress in all areas of 
the business. 

We have streamlined the organisational structure and employed a strong focus on cost management without jeopardising 
the integrity or performance of the business. 

As we continue on our integration journey, further significant cost savings will be realised in 2012–13 and the following years. 

Although the restructure did bring considerable challenges, it has resulted in a much stronger, more flexible business that 
has the expertise to deliver safe, responsible and commercially-focused outcomes to our shareholders and the people of 
Queensland. 

Our new company tagline and theme for this year’s Annual Report—‘create. generate. innovate.’—positions the organisation 
as: 

• creating opportunities for our people, customers, communities and other stakeholders 
• delivering on our core responsibility to generate safe and reliable electricity 
• improving the way in which we do business, through innovation.

We are excited about the opportunities presented by the new business, as we embark on a period of unprecedented 
industry change.
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About Stanwell
Stanwell is a Queensland Government owned generator, with the capacity to 
supply more than 45% of the state’s peak power needs. 

We are a diversified energy company, with an energy portfolio comprising coal, 
gas, diesel and hydro power generation facilities geographically dispersed 
across Queensland. 

Our plant portfolio includes: 
• Stanwell Power Station near Rockhampton – 1460 MW
• Tarong Power Station in the South Burnett – 1400 MW
• Tarong North Power Station in the South Burnett – 443 MW
• Swanbank E Power Station near Ipswich – 385 MW
• Mica Creek Power Station near Mount Isa – 304.7 MW (not connected 

to the National Electricity Market (NEM))
• Kareeya Hydro in Far North Queensland – 86.4 MW
• Barron Gorge Hydro in Far North Queensland – 66 MW
• Mackay Gas Turbine in Central Queensland – 34 MW
• Koombooloomba Hydro in Far North Queensland – 7.3 MW
• Wivenhoe Small Hydro located at Wivenhoe Dam – 4.3 MW.

Stanwell also owned and operated the 120 MW coal-fired Swanbank B Power 
Station near Ipswich until 24 May 2012, when it closed after reaching the end of its 
operational life. 

Stanwell is an active competitor in the NEM, the wholesale electricity market 
managed by the Australian Energy Market Operator. 

Stanwell owns Meandu Mine, which has the capacity to supply up to seven million 
tonnes of coal a year to the adjacent Tarong power stations. We also have a coal 
supply agreement with Wesfarmers Resources’ Curragh Mine that includes the 
sharing of revenue from coal exports.

Stanwell employs approximately 1000 people across its various sites and is well 
placed to provide efficient and competitive power to Queenslanders well into 
the future.

Supply chain

GENERATORS
Coal-fired, gas, wind, 
biomass and hydro 
power stations generate 
electricity. Stanwell has 
a generation portfolio of 
more than 4000 MW.

MARKETS
Energy is traded in 
the National Electricity 
Market or through direct 
contracts.

TRANSMISSION
Transmission companies 
include Powerlink 
Queensland, which 
operates Queensland’s 
high voltage transmission 
network, transporting 
electricity from the 
generators to the 
distribution networks  
and directly to large 
customers such as 
aluminium smelters.

DISTRIBUTION
Distribution companies 
include ENERGEX and 
Ergon Energy which have 
a network of powerlines 
and power poles that 
connect the high voltage 
transmission system to 
individual premises.

RETAILERS
Electricity is sold to 
customers, including 
households and small 
businesses (other than 
excluded customers or 
receivers), which may 
choose their electricity 
retailer.

CONSUMERS
Customers are  
switched on.
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Performance indicators 
2011–12

Financial indicators Actual Target

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) ($M) 195.4 145.3
Net profit after tax ($M) 79.9 45.1
Return on assets (%) 7.5 6.6
Return on equity (%) 6.3 3.5
Gearing (%) 38.2 31.0
EBIT interest cover (times) 2.8 2.7
Investment
Capital expenditure ($M) 229.3 292.6
Non-financial KPIs
Portfolio availability factor (%)* 89.0 90.1
Portfolio forced outage factor (%)* 3.3 3.2
Portfolio energy sold (GWh)* 20,604 21,682
Environment
Level 4 and 5 incidents** 0 0
Environmental breaches 0 0
Total NEM portfolio greenhouse gas intensity (kg CO2e/MWh sent out) 834 898
Health and safety
All Injury Frequency Rate 70.2 0
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate 1.3 0
Health, safety, environment and quality observations (HSEQ)*** 10,547 4500
Human resources
Personnel turnover (annualised) (%) 9 12
Net FTE personnel numbers 995 1050

* Includes Mica Creek Power Station. ** Refer to Glossary on page 116 for definition. *** A HSEQ observation is a conversation between two employees in which the 
observer provides feedback on a behaviour or work practice that is either in line with our safety, environment and quality practices or requires improvement.

Strategic direction
Stanwell operates in a commercially challenging business environment.

With a portfolio of long-term assets primarily based on coal-fired generation, Stanwell faces significant commercial and cost 
pressures, particularly in relation to its response to the Federal Government’s carbon pricing policy. 

The future challenge for Stanwell is to increase shareholder returns while optimising our new asset portfolio and balancing 
the risk and return of maintaining or replacing our ageing fleet. This task is made more difficult by the current and continued 
forecast oversupply in the Queensland electricity market and the current ranking of Stanwell’s power stations in the merit 
order for electricity dispatch into the market.

Over the next five years, Stanwell’s competitive position will be affected by a number of external factors, including:

• continued market oversupply, particularly in the next two to three years, resulting in subdued market prices and an 
erosion in the contract premium being received from the sale of electricity contracts

• the potential for new generation to reduce the competitive position of Stanwell’s coal-fired generation assets
• the introduction of a price for carbon which has the potential to reduce capacity factors of existing coal-fired generation 

assets, particularly as the carbon price increases and new lower emission plant enter the market
• the increasing dominance of vertically integrated retailers resulting in a narrowing of traditional channels to market and 

lack of energy market diversification impacting Stanwell’s competitiveness.

Stanwell must continue to adapt its business to respond to these new circumstances.

To ensure we achieve our goals, despite external changes to the environment in which we operate, we have developed 
strategic objectives around the following three themes:

• consolidate and improve performance – improve ‘business as usual’ activity to deliver the safest, most responsible, most 
commercial outcomes from our people and assets 

• expand market-led initiatives – seek out further revenue opportunities by building on Stanwell’s core strengths
• renew our business for the future – innovate for future value and long-term success.



Performance overview
Each year, we document the nature and scope of our strategies, objectives and actions in our Statement 
of Corporate Intent (SCI).

As a Queensland Government Owned Corporation, this document is part of our performance agreement with our shareholding 
Ministers. The SCI is consistent with and complements our five-year Corporate Plan. Our performance against our 2011–12 SCI is 
summarised below. A copy of the SCI will be tabled in the Legislative Assembly in accordance with Section 121 of the Government 
Owned Corporations Act 1993.

Shareholder

Objectives Outcomes

Secure shareholding 
Ministers’ ongoing support 
for Stanwell’s preferred 
corporate direction 

Achieved 
Informed key shareholders on policy and regulatory issues through regular, formal communication channels.
Maintained a formal issues management system, which ensures the organisation is prepared for potential issues 
and is able to respond quickly to stakeholder concerns.

Generate superior 
shareholder returns

Achieved 
Pursued cost efficiencies through portfolio optimisation, asset management, revised maintenance regimes, 
streamlined processes, increased purchasing power and consolidated information technology systems.
Maintained long-term coal supply agreement with Wesfarmers Resources from Curragh Mine, minimised water 
supply costs through the timing of Swanbank B shutdown, and optimised returns on gas resource by on-selling 
gas unable to be delivered to Swanbank E.

Optimise gross margin Achieved 
Implemented trading strategies to optimise portfolio by maximising generation by hydros, moving generation 
between coal-fired stations to minimise coal stockpile dozing, actively managing constraints and considering 
whole of portfolio when dispatching.
Successfully negotiated a commercial exit from the Collinsville Power Purchase Agreement, considerably 
enhancing the corporation’s balance sheet (page 22).

Customer and community

Objectives Outcomes

Transition to an energy 
company by diversifying  
the revenue mix

On Track 
Entered gas swaps, dealt in foreign exchange options, positioned for thermal coal swaps/options and initiated 
Short Term Trading Market gas derivatives discussions. Negotiating a three-year Power Purchase Agreement 
with Landfill Gas Industries for Australian carbon credit units.
Negotiated new rail transport agreement, which provides improved certainty of access to rail for export, and 
continuing analysis of export or on-sale versus generation to determine optimum returns.

Develop and enhance 
channels to market

Achieved 
Negotiated a five-year extension with BMA and a five-year extension for Xstrata’s Queensland and 
New South Wales load.

Secure Stanwell’s social 
licence to operate

Achieved 
Remained in regular contact with our most influential stakeholders and opinion leaders through one-on-one 
meetings, information sessions and involvement in our community partnership programs.

Behaviour and skills

Objectives Outcomes

Achieve a Zero Harm 
workplace

Achieved 
Developed and implemented a set of safety principles, which underpin our drive to Zero Harm Today.

Attract, engage and retain 
high performing workforce 
to ensure the business has 
the required skill set to  
meet its objectives

On Track 
Conducted a comprehensive remuneration review project across the organisation to ensure that all salaries are 
paid fairly and competitively, taking into account the external labour market.
Ensured that communication with employees contributed to employee engagement and addressed 
employee requirements.
Recorded a personnel turnover for the year of 9%, which was much lower than our target of 12%.

Maintain asset integrity 
and compliance

Achieved 
Invested in overhauls at Stanwell, Tarong, Tarong North, Mica Creek and the hydro power stations (page 20) to 
maintain asset integrity and compliance, and improve efficiency. 

Maintain environmental 
compliance

Achieved 
Maintained environmental compliance by investing in technology, improving systems and processes and 
remaining diligent in our approach. No level four or five incidents were reported during the year.

04
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Value chain

Objectives Outcomes

Enhance the agility of 
trading to respond to 
market opportunities

Achieved 
Successfully commenced trading in the Brisbane Short Term Trading Market, with the implementation of 
systems, development of procedures and staff training.

Optimise performance of 
existing assets to support 
market and commercial 
outcomes

Achieved 
Implemented a cost-effective overhaul program and completed a review of the asset life plans of the 
portfolio to guide future capital expenditure program.
Achieved availability of 89.0%. 

Maximise value of fuel 
portfolio (including water)

On Track 
Revised stockpile policy, taking into account the larger portfolio and commenced optimisation studies.
Updated geological model, including the resource and reserve estimation, encompassing entire mining 
lease at Meandu Mine and progressed Meandu East exploration program as per required schedule  
(pages 19 to 20). Pre-feasibility study expected to be completed by December 2012.

Renew plant and fuel 
portfolio for the future

On Track 
Introduced a number of initiatives and continued to investigate new technologies to lower carbon 

emissions, including the installation of low NOx burners on Unit 1 at Stanwell Power Station (page 14).

Govern the organisation for 
agility and compliance

Achieved 
Adopted a principles-based Code of Conduct that promotes ethical and responsible decision-making 
and requires high standards of honesty, integrity, fairness and equity from directors, employees 
and contractors.
Adopted a Legal and Regulatory Compliance Policy, which outlines the overarching principles and 
commitments with respect to managing legal and regulatory compliance risks.
Invested in plant and materials, and updated policies and procedures to ensure greater certainty 
of compliance.

Integrate the merged  
business

On Track 
Made solid progress on integration activities and realised cost efficiencies through portfolio optimisation, 
asset management, revised maintenance regimes, streamlined processes, increased purchasing power 
and consolidated information technology systems.

Year ahead 
Objectives Desired outcomes

Consolidate and improve 
performance

• Substantial reductions in corporate overheads and discretionary expenditure.
• Rationalise plant performance and capital expenditure to meet market requirements.
• Value of fuel portfolio maximised.
• Reduction in outage and other key common contract costs.

Expand market-led initiatives • Optimise gross margin.
• Diversify revenue streams.
• Develop and enhance channels to market.

Renew business for 
the future

• Enterprise resource planning systems implementation.
• Carbon emissions reduction scoping studies completed on existing plant.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 

Ye
ar

 a
he

ad



06

It has been a year of change and consolidation for Stanwell, as the business prepared for the introduction of a price on 
carbon and worked to realise the benefits of its new, expanded portfolio.

As the electricity industry embarks on a period of significant structural change, Stanwell is well positioned with a diversified 
generating portfolio and revenue streams.

Through a disciplined and strategic approach to reducing costs, maintaining sustainable debt levels and maximising efficiencies 
across the business, we will deliver strong commercial returns to our shareholders and the State of Queensland.

Committed to achieving Zero Harm Today
While the organisation has continued to improve its safety performance, with a reduction in our All Injury Frequency Rate (70.20 
in 2011–12 down from 96.45 in 2010–11), the Board has a firm belief that all injuries and occupational illnesses can be prevented. 

This year, Stanwell developed new safety principles to support our mission and vision, and our goal of Zero Harm Today.

The Board will continue to closely monitor the organisation’s progress towards this goal. We will only consider that the business 
is successful when every employee, contractor and visitor to our sites and offices returns home safely at the end of every day.

Solid results in a challenging year
Overcapacity in the Queensland market and softening average demand has dampened spot and contract prices for electricity 
and been a significant driver in reducing returns from our generation business.

Throughout the year, Stanwell leveraged its portfolio to ensure strong commercial returns. The business’ ability to generate value 
through alternative channels to market, including our energy resources, has been central to this process.

In particular, our coal revenue-sharing arrangement with Wesfarmers Resources added $208.9 million to our pre-tax profit 
result. This outcome demonstrates the value in diversifying our revenue streams and being able to manage our overall financial 
performance during downturns in the electricity market.

Chairman’s statement
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Outlook 
The breadth of the Stanwell 
portfolio ensures the organisation 
is well positioned to adapt to 
the rapidly evolving electricity 
industry. In the coming year, 
the organisation will continue to 
focus on optimising commercial 
returns from our fuel and 
generation resources. 

One year on from the restructure 
of Queensland Government 
owned generators, we are also 
well equipped to increase the 
profitability of our generation 
business, reducing capital and 
operating expenditure, and 
ensuring all of our assets are 
aligned to our newly refined 
business model. 

We will continue to monitor 
spot and contract prices as 
they respond to the new price 
on carbon. We will manage our 
business to take best advantage 
of our diversified plant portfolio 
and maximise the value of our 
fuel resources. 

For most of the next five years, 
we will continue to see the effects 
of an oversupplied electricity 
market, until major LNG projects 
in Queensland come online and 
put upward pressure on electricity 
demand. Our challenge during 
this time will be to operate a 
business which provides strong 
commercial returns, is highly 
adaptable to market opportunities, 
and leverages the diversity of its 
generating portfolio, as well as the 
value of its fuel resources.

We have also performed well across other elements of our business, including:

• integrating the new business, including our trading and IT systems, and 
assisting our employees through the transition period

• a high portfolio-wide availability factor of 89.0%, meaning our plant was 
available to generate when required by the market

• the termination of the Collinsville Power Station Power Purchase Agreement 
which removed a large financial and operational burden from our business.

A new business and a changing market 
The restructure of the Queensland Government owned generators came into 
effect on 1 July 2011. In the past 12 months, Stanwell has focused on realising the 
restructure benefits and reducing costs across the portfolio. 

Our new portfolio provides access to a range of markets including energy, ancillary 
services, gas and coal markets, and environmental certificates.

We are also acutely aware of the need to maintain our power stations. Our future 
capital investment decisions will be based on providing optimal trading outcomes 
across our portfolio. 

The introduction of a carbon price from 1 July 2012 will have a significant adverse 
financial and operational impact on our business, with coal-fired generation 
representing almost 80% of our generating capacity.

Based on Stanwell’s forecast greenhouse gas emissions for 2012–13, the cost to 
Stanwell of the initial year’s carbon price will be more than $400 million. The net 
cost to Stanwell will ultimately depend on how electricity prices in the spot and 
contract markets respond to the introduction of a price on carbon. 

Board accountability and transparency
During the year, the Board reviewed its governance approach to take into account 
the nature of the new business.

The Board adopted a new Code of Conduct which forms a core element of 
Stanwell’s governance practices. Reviews of the Board Handbook, Board Charter 
and Board committee charters were also undertaken.

This governance framework is important in ensuring the Board responsibly 
discharges its duties in a way which provides confidence to our shareholders, 
and ultimately the people of Queensland, that their assets are being managed in a 
socially and commercially responsible manner.

The Honourable Warwick Parer AM 
Chairman
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As the company marks its first year after the restructure of the business, Stanwell is well positioned to capitalise on the 
emerging opportunities in the electricity market while also preparing for major industry reform.

Safety is a core value at Stanwell. We believe that all injuries and workplace illnesses can be prevented and we have a goal of 
Zero Harm Today.

Despite improvements in our safety performance indicators and the proactive approach of our employees in identifying and 
addressing safety issues, we still recorded injuries at our sites and this is not acceptable. 

A key area for improvement will be managing contractor safety. This year, we completed a rigorous review of contractor safety 
which has recommended a range of actions for the coming year to reduce injuries.  

Our financial performance 
Stanwell achieved an above target net profit after tax result of $79.9 million (2010–11: loss after tax of $12 million). Revenue 
totalled $1.32 billion (2010–11: $563.6 million), with operating cash flows of $156.1 million (2010–11: $66 million). 

These financial results were achieved against a backdrop of challenging market conditions.

Spot and contract prices for electricity are key drivers of our revenue. Over the past 12 months, as in the preceding three 
years, we have seen sustained low wholesale electricity prices. These low prices have been largely driven by an oversupply of 
generation capacity in Queensland, competition from new entrant gas-fired generators, retailers using their generation capacity 
to reduce pool price volatility and expensive alternative forms of energy. 

The oversupply of the electricity market in Queensland is illustrated by the fact that Queensland exports a substantial amount 
of its output to New South Wales. In 2011–12, Queensland generators exported 5.4 terawatt hours of electricity to New South 
Wales which represented almost 10% of total Queensland generation output for the year.

However, our new portfolio of assets has provided an opportunity to better manage our exposure to these challenging 
market conditions.

A key asset is our long-term coal contract with Wesfarmers Resources which provides for the supply of cost-competitive coal 
to Stanwell Power Station and a coal rebate arrangement which sees Stanwell share in the value of coal exported from Curragh 
North Mine. This coal revenue-sharing arrangement has added $208.9 million to our pre-tax profit result.

Business achievements
Our new portfolio saw Stanwell complete an unprecedented program of overhauls at our power stations. This included a major 
upgrade of the Meandu Mine dragline, major overhauls at Tarong North, Mica Creek and Stanwell power stations and the 
northern hydros, and a mini overhaul at Tarong Power Station. This work was essential to complete plant statutory inspections 
and to ensure that plant performance was as required to meet market expectations.

CEO’s review
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This year, we completed several major commercial transactions to improve the long-term viability of our business. These 
included the termination of the Collinsville Power Purchase Agreement which has removed a loss-making arrangement from 
our portfolio. We also negotiated a new long-term contract for the mining operations at Meandu Mine. The new contract 
provides certainty for the long-term future of Meandu Mine and the adjacent Tarong power stations, and improves the cost of 
fuel. Through our negotiations, we have secured the best commercial and operational outcome for Stanwell and our mine. 

After more than 40 years of operation, the final generating unit at Swanbank B Power Station was taken offline in May 
2012. We remain committed to the Ipswich region through our ongoing operations at the adjacent, highly efficient gas-fired 
Swanbank E Power Station.

Consolidating our business
The restructure of Stanwell’s business will assist in addressing the developments in the electricity market that were impacting 
on the viability of the legacy businesses.

Importantly, it provides a platform from which the business can actively pursue prudent cost management reforms and drive 
down operating expenses by seeking economies of scale and rationalising our systems.

On 1 July 2011, we started with three key goals: to keep people focused on safety and our goal of Zero Harm; to trade and 
operate effectively; and to pay our people and suppliers in a timely and efficient manner. The work done by the integration 
team saw us consistently achieve these goals and positioned us to successfully undertake the enormous workload that 
comes with any restructure. This has included managing three information management systems, aligning people, systems 
and processes, and integrating and reorganising teams. 

Preparing for industry change
Despite the fact that our coal-fired fleet is one of the least emissions intensive in the National Electricity Market, the 
introduction of a price on carbon will place pressure on our generation margins and volumes.

Our carbon liability of more than $400 million for 2012–13 will be one of our largest operating expenses and will not be entirely 
offset by the anticipated increase in wholesale electricity prices. This will impact on our return on equity and hence the 
dividends we provide to our shareholders. 

Stanwell is well prepared to operate under a carbon price; we have developed robust systems to understand our real-time 
emissions liabilities, and to incorporate carbon pass-through when we bill retail customers and settle electricity transactions. 

Acknowledging our people and stakeholders
As Chief Executive Officer, I am proud of the business that we have created over the past 12 months. It is founded on the 
core values of being safe, responsible and commercially-focused. 

I have worked alongside a dedicated and professional executive management team and I thank each of them for their valued 
contributions to the business and their support. 

I especially thank our former Chief Executive Officer, Helen Gluer, and former Chairman, Graham Carpenter, for their service 
to the company. I welcome Stanwell’s new Chairman, the Honourable Warwick Parer AM, and look forward to working 
closely with him and the Board in meeting the challenges ahead.

I also recognise the efforts of our Board, shareholders and their representatives: the Office of Government Owned 
Corporations and the Department of Energy and Water Supply.

Our achievements this year would not have been possible without the hard work and commitment of the people we employ 
and the quality of our relationships with our contractors, business partners, customers, suppliers and local communities. 
Working together, these people ensure we continue to create a safe, responsible and commercially-focused business.

Richard Van Breda 
Chief Executive Officer
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The 
Honourable 
Warwick 
Parer AM

Board of Directors (as at 30 June 2012)

Ann 
Fitzpatrick 

Russell 
Kempnich 

Kym  
Collins 

Incoming Director

Stephen 
Rochester 

Chairman  
BComm (Melb), FAIMM 
Appointed 31 May 2012

The Honourable Warwick Parer AM was 
appointed Chairman of the Board of 
Stanwell in May 2012. He is a member of 
the Audit and Risk Management and the 
People and Safety committees. 

Warwick has extensive experience in the 
energy industry. From 1996 to 1998, he 
was the Federal Minister for Resources 
and Energy. From 2001 to 2002, Warwick 
was the Chairman of the Coalition of 
Australian Governments Energy Market 
Review and, from 2002 to 2004, he was 
the Chair of the Energy and Transport 
Advisory Sector CSIRO. 

Warwick also has experience in the 
coal industry. 

MBA, BEng (Elec), GAICD 
Appointed 1 July 2011

Kym Collins is a member of Stanwell’s 
People and Safety Committee. Kym was 
previously a director of Tarong Energy. 

Kym is also a director of Green Cross 
Australia, an international organisation 
enabling companies (or the community) 
to prepare and respond to climatic 
changes and natural disasters.

Kym is an experienced electrical 
engineer and project manager from 
the commercial construction industry, 
including having led Siemens Ltd 
Building Automation in Queensland. 

Kym has a Bachelor of Electrical 
Engineering and Master of Business 
Administration, and is a Graduate of 
the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors course.

BA, LL.B., GAICD 
Appointed 1 July 2011

Ann Fitzpatrick is a member of Stanwell’s 
People and Safety Committee.

Ann has practised as a lawyer for 25 
years and for the past two years has been 
sitting as a Tribunal member, first in the 
Anti-Discrimination Tribunal and currently 
in the Queensland Civil and Administrative 
Tribunal (QCAT). 

For 13 years, Ann was a partner in two 
major law firms. A partner of McCullough 
Robertson for 10 years, Ann retired from 
private practice in 2008. Ann’s speciality 
is as an employment, industrial and anti-
discrimination lawyer, with a large part of 
her work at QCAT involving conciliation 
and determination of building disputes 
and anti-discrimination matters. 

BEng (Mech)  
Appointed 1 July 2011

Russell Kempnich is the Chairman of 
Stanwell’s People and Safety Committee. 

Russell has more than 30 years of 
experience in coal resource evaluation, 
process plant design, construction and 
commissioning gained both in Australia 
and internationally. 

A founding partner and non-executive 
Chairman of Sedgman Limited, Russell 
led the organisation’s growth from 
a consulting and engineering firm to 
a market leader in coal preparation, 
design and construction. He was also 
responsible for the expansion of the 
company’s operations internationally. 

BEc, FCPA, MAICD, FFTP 
Appointed 1 July 2011 

Stephen Rochester is the Chairman of 
Stanwell’s Audit and Risk Management 
Committee. He is a former director of 
Tarong Energy and former Chairman of 
Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC).

Stephen is an established leader in 
public sector financing, the banking and 
finance industry, and the global financial 
markets, with a career spanning more 
than 35 years. He has been involved in 
all aspects of the provision of corporate 
treasury services to the Queensland 
public sector.

Previously, Stephen was QTC’s 
inaugural Chief Executive and held 
the position for 22 years. In 2006, 
Stephen was seconded to the role 
of Chief Executive of Sun Retail, 
Energex’s former retail arm. Stephen 
was appointed Chairman of Powerlink in 
May 2012. 

Paul  
Breslin 

BSc (Hons), BEcon 
Appointed 5 July 2012

Paul Breslin is a member of Stanwell’s 
Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

Paul was the former Chief Executive Officer 
and a director of the economic consulting 
firm ACIL Tasman; and the leader of ACIL 
Tasman’s extensive energy practice. 

His consultancy work covered the areas 
of policy analysis, business regulation, 
competition policy and commercial analysis 
of markets to inform business decisions, 
mostly in the energy and resources 
industries.

Paul is a former Director General of the 
Queensland Department of Minerals and 
Energy. During his tenure, Paul managed 
the separation and corporatisation of the 
Queensland electricity industry and played 
a leading role in the detailed design and 
development of the Australian National 
Electricity Market. 

In 2002, he was part of the four-member 
Council of Australian Governments Review 
into the Australian Energy Markets.
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Jackie  
Barber 

Jenny  
Gregg 

Michael 
O’Rourke

Executive Leadership Team (as at 30 June 2012)

Jane 
McDonald 

Wayne 
Collins 

BCompt (Hons), CA(Z), CA(Aus), Dip. Fin. 
Serv, GAICD 
Chief Executive Officer

Richard has been involved in the energy 
industry since 2001. He originally joined 
Stanwell in 2002 and was appointed 
Chief Financial Officer in 2005. He 
joined Tarong Energy in the role of Chief 
Financial Officer in April 2008 and was 
appointed in that position at Stanwell 
in July 2011, after the restructure 
of the Queensland Government 
owned generators. Richard was 
subsequently appointed CEO of Stanwell 
in July 2012.

Prior to this, Richard was a partner with 
Deloitte, Zimbabwe and spent three 
years with Anglo American Zimbabwe, 
which held a diverse range of mining and 
manufacturing interests. 

BSc (Chem) 
Executive General Manager Marketing 
and Trading

Jackie has more than 20 years 
experience in trading in deregulated 
electricity markets: first in the UK where 
she worked for Powergen Plc Ltd and 
in Australia for ETSA Power Corporation 
where she helped to establish an 
electricity retailing business in New 
South Wales. 

Jackie joined Tarong Energy in May 1999 
where she led the Energy Contracting 
team responsible for securing Tarong 
Energy’s future revenue. She progressed 
to lead the Marketing and Trading team 
firstly for Tarong Energy and then for 
Stanwell as Executive General Manager 
Marketing and Trading when the 
companies merged in July 2011. 

BEng (Elect), BBus, CPEng, GAICD  
Chief Operating Officer 

Wayne Collins has worked in the 
electricity industry for 31 years in a 
variety of engineering, managerial 
and business development 
roles, principally associated with 
power generation.

Wayne has been a senior executive 
with Stanwell for 14 years. In July 
2011, Wayne was appointed Chief 
Operating Officer of Stanwell, 
responsible for managing the 
organisation’s plant operations, as 
well as health, safety and environment 
for the business.

MBA, BA, Grad Cert (BAdmin), GAICD 
Executive General Manager Human 
Resources and Stakeholder Engagement 

Before commencing with Stanwell in July 
2011, Jenny was with Tarong Energy in 
the role of General Manager People and 
Communications. Prior to this, Jenny 
held the position of Manager Human 
Resources and Acting General Manager 
Corporate at SunWater.

Jenny has experience in the utilities, 
human services and health sectors both 
in line management and within the human 
resources field. Previous roles include 
State Manager (Queensland) and National 
Manager Human Resources for a national 
provider of professional human services.

MA, CA(ICAS), GAICD 
Acting Chief Financial Officer  
(From April 2012)

Jane joined Tarong Energy in June 2008 
and until recently has held the role of 
General Manager Commercial Services 
at Stanwell. 

In her role as Acting Chief Financial 
Officer, Jane is responsible for Stanwell’s 
finance, commercial analysis, corporate 
real estate, business improvement, IT and 
financial risk and treasury functions. 

BLaw, BCom, GDip Applied Finance 
and Management, GDip Company 
Secretarial Practice  
Executive General Manager 
Governance and Corporate Strategy

Michael joined Stanwell in 1998 as 
Legal Counsel. In 2002, he was 
appointed Company Secretary / Legal 
Counsel and in 2008, was appointed 
General Manager Corporate Services. 

On 1 July 2011, Michael was 
appointed Executive General Manager 
Governance and Corporate Strategy. 
In this position, Michael is responsible 
for the internal departments of 
secretariat, legal, risk management, 
compliance, records management, 
insurance, quality, internal audit and 
the corporate strategy functions.
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What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

Continue our journey to 
achieve Zero Harm

On Track 
Continued downward trend in All Injury 
Frequency Rate.

Prepare for harmonised health and 
safety legislation in Queensland

Achieved 
Introduced modified procedures from 
1 January 2012 for the immediate 
changes and developed an 
implementation plan for items which 
have a transitional arrangement.

Transition safely to the new business Achieved 
Maintained a focus on safety during the 
transition period which is reflected in our 
improved safety performance. 

What we want to achieve next year

• Continue our journey to achieve Zero Harm.

• Implement a uniform behavioural safety tool across the organisation.

• Achieve corporate-wide certification by May 2013.

Health and safety 
The health and safety of our 
employees, contractors and 
visitors remained a focus for 
Stanwell during 2011–12 as we 
transitioned to the new business. 

We worked on integrating the health 
and safety systems of the three legacy 
organisations into a single system. We 
also developed safety principles, which 
underpin our drive to Zero Harm. 

Stanwell, Tarong and the northern 
hydro power stations achieved 
recertification to AS4801. We will 
start the pre-certification processes 
at the Mica Creek, Swanbank and 
Tarong North power stations by 
November 2012. 

We responded to the introduction 
of the Queensland Government’s 
harmonised health and safety 
legislation on 1 January 2012 by 
modifying procedures for the critical 
changes and preparing an action 
plan for the non-critical changes. 

Tarong Power Station Chemical Technician Anthony Lawson tests water at Meandu Creek.

Health, safety and environment
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Improving our safety performance
In our drive towards Zero Harm, we reaffirmed our belief that all injuries and 
workplace illnesses are preventable and we continue to work on improving our 
safety performance. 

During the year, we recorded six Lost Time Injuries and a Lost Time Injury 
Frequency Rate of 1.3. A better indicator of our progress towards our goal of 
Zero Harm is our All Injury Frequency Rate (AIFR). In the past year, we have 
achieved an encouraging reduction in our AIFR. 

Safety initiatives 
Stanwell’s Board set a target of 4500 health, safety, environment and quality 
observations for the organisation for the year. These observations encourage 
employees to have a conversation with their colleagues about safe or unsafe 
work practices. We exceeded this target by a considerable amount. This 
proactive safety behaviour was undoubtedly one of the factors that contributed 
to the improvement in safety performance. 

We are developing a revised health and safety observation tool to be rolled out 
across the organisation. Next year, we will continue to focus on the quality of the 
observations, ensuring that they add value and lead to improvements. 

Stanwell undertook a rigorous review of contractor safety, after becoming 
concerned with the high number of injuries involving contractors. This review has 
recommended a range of improvements which will be pursued in the coming 
year to seek to reduce contractor injuries. 

Figures for 2007–08 to 2010–11 
are based on Stanwell prior to the 
restructure on 1 July 2011.

Figures for 2008–09 to 2010–11 
are based on Stanwell prior to the 
restructure on 1 July 2011. AIFR was not 
measured prior to 2008–09.

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR)

All Injury Frequency Rate (AIFR)
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Innovative safety 
solution cuts arc 
flash intensity
Tarong and Tarong North power 
stations are close to completing 
plant modifications to assist 
in protecting employees from 
electrical arc flashes, which 
occur when there is a fault on 
a switchboard causing a high 
intensity electric flash between 
the conductors and earth. Arc 
flashes can cause extreme 
burns and, in some cases, 
be fatal.

The system installed at Tarong 
and Tarong North uses light-
sensing devices, which confirm 
when an arc flash occurs. 
Almost instantaneously, the 
system is able to operate 
upstream circuit breakers, 
reducing the potential arc flash 
incident energy at the location 
of the fault. 

Stanwell’s procedures and 
panel labelling provide 
information on the required 
Personal Protective Equipment 
(including flame-retardant 
clothing) for specific 
switchboards and outline 
potential arc flash energy.

Stanwell Power Station System Technician 
Adrian Hannam isolates a high-voltage circuit 
in full PPE.

We maintained a focus on safety and our LTIFR continued its downward trend. 

In our progress towards Zero Harm, we recorded a reduction in our AIFR. 
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What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

No major environmental incidents Achieved 
There were no major environmental 
incidents at any of our sites during the year. 

Relevant approvals obtained for 
changed or new business activities

On Track 
Obtained development approval 
amendments for managing high salinity in 
the Fitzroy River, and developed approval 
plans for the Black Creek Dam diversion 
project at Tarong Power Station.

Environmental Management 
System certification

Achieved 
Maintained Stanwell’s Environmental 
Management System certification to  
AS/NZS ISO 14001:2004.

What we want to achieve next year

Objectives

• Zero level four or five environmental incidents.

• Environmental compliance obligations well communicated and understood by staff.

• Whole-of-life environmental strategies developed for ash management.

Environment
During the year, our focus 
has been on integrating the 
environmental policies and 
practices from the three legacy 
organisations. A consolidated 
five-year environmental plan 
has been prepared and is 
being actioned. 

Following an independent 
review, Stanwell’s environmental 
management system was certified 
to the Environmental Management 
System Standard AS/NZS ISO 
14001:2004. 

We achieved a high standard of 
compliance with environmental 
obligations, and, of particular note, 
there were no major environmental 
incidents throughout the year. 

Managing ash at our power stations
At Tarong, Stanwell and Swanbank power stations, we monitor our ash storage facilities to ensure that potential hazards are 
identified early and potential environmental risks are managed. 

At Tarong and Stanwell power stations, we are investigating projects to increase the capacity of the ash dams. This includes 
a project at Tarong Power Station to build a three-kilometre stormwater channel to divert the catchment of Black Creek Dam 
around the ash dam, eventually discharging to Meandu Creek. This will ensure that during periods of continued heavy rain, flood 
water does not flow into the ash dam thus reducing the risk of a discharge from the facility. Careful environmental management 
will ensure there is no adverse environmental impact on Meandu Creek during the construction of the channel.

After burning its last coal in May 2012, planning for the disposal and demolition of Swanbank B Power Station has begun. This 
includes rehabilitation of its ash dam. 

Managing our water resources
At Stanwell Power Station we take water from the Fitzroy River for cooling and recycle this water several times. When salinity 
levels rise in the river, we are unable to recycle the water as often because it does not meet our discharge licence criteria. 

In late 2011, Fitzroy River salinity levels increased. As a result, we had to increase the volume of water drawn from the river and 
associated discharges. Following the flushing of the river by the summer rains, we resumed normal water recycling in March 
2012. Stanwell’s operations have no effect on drinking water for the Rockhampton region. 

The Tarong power stations use water from the Boondooma Dam (a purpose-built water storage facility). The Tarong power 
stations and Swanbank E also have contracts to access purified recycled water from the South East Queensland Water Grid. 

Investing in new technologies
We installed low NOx burners on Unit 1 at Stanwell Power Station in November 2011. Low NOx burners have already been 
installed on units 3 and 4 at Stanwell Power Station and all units at Tarong Power Station. These burners reduce NOx emissions 
by approximately 50%. 

Health, safety and environment



Generating clean 
energy in the Wet 
Tropics World 
Heritage Area
Barron Gorge, Kareeya and 
Koombooloomba hydro power 
stations have been granted 
renewed five-year permits to 
operate in one of Australia’s 
most sensitive environmental 
areas, the Wet Tropics World 
Heritage Area. The Wet Tropics 
has the oldest continuously 
surviving tropical rainforests on 
earth and Australia’s greatest 
diversity of animals and plants.

The hydro power stations 
satisfied rigorous environmental 
standards to be allowed to 
continue to generate hydro 
electricity on the Barron and 
Tully rivers, while carefully 
managing the environment in 
which we operate.

Barron Gorge, Kareeya and 
Koombooloomba are among 
the most environmentally 
responsible power stations 
in Australia.
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We have continued a partnership with CSIRO to research the capture of CO2 
from power station exhaust gasses. A post-combustion capture pilot plant was 
opened at Tarong Power Station in December 2010. Since then, the plant has 
captured more than 75,000kg of CO2. 

We are also partnering with Australian company MBD Energy, which is 
constructing a one-hectare plant at Tarong Power Station to trial the use of CO2 
in flue gas to intensively grow algae for possible use in fuels and fertilisers. 

In early 2012, Stanwell completed a feasibility study into a hydro power 
station on the Burdekin Falls Dam. While the study concluded the project was 
technically and environmentally feasible, Stanwell is not in a position to develop 
the project and is currently divesting its interest. 

Environmental incidents*

Level 2011–12

Level 1, 2 and 3 110

Level 4 and 5 0

No major environmental incidents occurred during the year.  
* Refer to the Glossary on page 116 for definitions.

Carbon intensity is a measure of how 
much carbon dioxide our plant emits 
per megawatt hour that we generate, 
and is influenced by fuel type and plant 
technology. With the introduction of a 
carbon price from 1 July 2012, carbon 
intensity is an important measure for  
our business. 

Figures for 2007–08 to 2010–11 
are based on Stanwell prior to the 
restructure on 1 July 2011.

Carbon intensity (kg CO2e/MWh sent out)
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Carbon intensity is lower this year due to the addition of the lower carbon intensive gas-fired 
generating assets, Swanbank E and Mica Creek power stations.  

SOx and NOx emissions (kg/MWh generated) 

Figures are based on our coal-fired 
power stations only. 

Figures for 2007–08 to 2010–11 
are based on Stanwell prior to the 
restructure on 1 July 2011.
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Kareeya Hydro Power Station has a permit to 
operate in the Wet Tropics World Heritage Area.The increase in water used compared to previous years is due to the increase in the portfolio 

following the restructure.

Water used and water intensity

Figures for 2007–08 to 2010–11 
are based on Stanwell prior to the 
restructure on 1 July 2011.
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The reduction in NOx emissions is due to the addition of the Tarong power stations, which have low 
NOx burners on all units, and the installation of the third low NOx burner at Stanwell Power Station.
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People and community

What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

Develop a new organisational structure Achieved 
Developed a new organisational structure 
that aligns complementary work areas 
and clarifies reporting lines for employees 
and their managers. 

Renegotiate the seven enterprise 
agreements that cover our workforce

On Track 
Renewed six enterprise agreements. 
The Tarong Power Station Enterprise 
Agreement is expected to be finalised in 
2012–13. 

Complete a remuneration review Achieved 
Completed a comprehensive 
remuneration review to ensure that 
salaries are fair and competitive.

 
What we want to achieve next year

• Review operating model and team functions to ensure we have the most effective 
organisational structure to achieve our objectives.

• Consolidate and streamline internal communication processes.

• Improve manager/supervisor awareness, understanding and ability to manage.

Framework for future of the business
We have redesigned the structure of the organisation and aligned complementary 
work areas. We also confirmed employees’ roles and accountabilities through 
formal position descriptions, and clarified new reporting lines for employees and 
their managers. The new organisational structure helped our workforce to operate 
effectively during a period of transition. Further work is being done to ensure we 
have the most effective structure to achieve our business objectives.

People
This year, our human resources 
(HR) activities focused on 
connecting our larger, more 
geographically-dispersed 
workforce and creating a culture 
and set of values that resonate 
with all employees. 

We developed a new organisational 
structure, undertook a remuneration 
review, renegotiated enterprise 
agreements, and consolidated our 
HR functions.  

Engaging with employees
Our Employee and Change 
Communication Team worked 
closely with our People, Performance 
and Culture Team to ensure our 
communication with employees 
contributed to employee 
engagement and addressed 
employee requirements. 

These teams listened and responded 
to employee feedback to continually 
improve communication channels 
and messages. They also worked on 
enhancing the communication skills 
and practices of our senior leaders and 
managers, who are the most influential 
in communicating change and building 
engagement on a day-to-day basis. 

Stanwell Community Relations Coordinator Nicole Connolly and Endeavour Foundation’s Kingaroy Kitchen Production Manager Tim La Budde.
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Stanwell successfully renegotiated six enterprise agreements: Stanwell Power 
Station, Swanbank Power Station, Mica Creek Power Station, Barron Gorge Hydro, 
Kareeya Hydro and Corporate Offices during 2011–12. All of the negotiations 
delivered the required business outcomes while maintaining professional 
relationships with key employee and union stakeholders. Our communication with 
all Stanwell employees during these negotiations was clear and transparent, and 
provided an important platform for positive engagement with our employees during 
a potentially unsettling period. 

As at 30 June 2012, the Tarong Power Station Enterprise Agreement was the 
only agreement yet to be renewed. At the time of writing, Stanwell had reached a 
proposed agreement with the unions.

Building capability for the future needs of the organisation 
Stanwell has established entry-level development programs to ensure we have 
appropriate skills in key technical and professional areas now and in the future. 
Specifically, we have focused on graduate development, university vacation and 
engineering co-op students, and apprentices and trainees.

Stanwell’s Graduate Development Program includes extensive on-the-job training, 
professional development and rotational placements at our operating sites. In 
2011–12, five graduates participated in the program, with four to join the program in 
2012–13. Disciplines covered by the program include engineering, energy risk and 
treasury, and environment.

Stanwell engages university vacation and engineering co-op students to provide 
them with practical experience at our sites, while studying and considering 
employment options. This program positions Stanwell as an employer of choice 
among future industry professionals. 

Stanwell has an ongoing commitment to take on apprentices and trainees in 
the communities in which we operate. At 30 June 2012, Stanwell employed 
45 apprentices and nine trainees. In conjunction with local group training 
organisations, Stanwell supports trainees and apprentices through a structured 
development program with both on and off-the-job skill development in a 
range of disciplines. At the start of 2012, we appointed 12 new apprentices and 
eight trainees. 

Creating behaviours aligned to our corporate values

In November 2011, the Board and Executive Leadership Team approved our 
mission, vision and values. For the defined values—safe, responsible and 
commercially-focused—to be of benefit, we wanted them to be clearly articulated 
and relevant to all employees.

The HR team engaged employees across the business through focus groups, 
team meetings and our intranet to help to formulate value behaviours. Involving 
employees in this process helped to develop employee ownership and ensure 
that the behaviours reflect genuine beliefs, and contribute to a positive culture and 
achievement of the organisation’s objectives. 

During the coming year, we will identify opportunities for the values and associated 
behaviours to be further integrated into HR systems and processes. It will be 
important to ensure that employees and managers can demonstrate the required 
behaviours, and that these efforts are measured and recognised appropriately. 
The values will be reflected in recruitment and retention, leadership programs, 
inductions, reward and recognition, organisational change processes and annual 
performance reviews relating to remuneration and incentive outcomes.

Employees by occupation

Occupation Number of 
employees

Managerial 151

Professional 410

Trade or related 241

Clerical 139

Production workers 42

Labourers and 
related roles

45

Stanwell employs people in a variety of roles at 
production and corporate sites.

Equal Employment Opportunity 
(EEO) numbers

Occupation Number of 
employees

Females 236

Males 792

Non-English speaking 
background

21

Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander

11

People with a disability 50

The EEO target group accounts for almost one-
third of the workforce. 

Apprentices, trainees 
and graduates

Positions Number of 
positions

Trainees 9

Apprentices 45

Graduates 5

Stanwell has a strong commitment to 
employing trainees, apprentices and graduates.

Figures for 2007–08 to 2010–11 are based 
on Stanwell prior to the restructure on 
1 July 2011.

Personnel turnover (%)
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Our turnover is well below our target of 12%. 
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What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

Build each asset’s links with its 
local community

On Track 
Undertook community perception 
surveys, held meetings with 
community leaders and established 
regular communication channels.

Develop a social investment program 
which maximises value for Stanwell 
and our communities 

On Track 
The Social Investment Policy was 
approved by the Stanwell Board in 
September 2011. 

 

What we want to achieve next year

• Launch and/or embed collaborative social investment programs in Ipswich and 
Rockhampton to ensure funding is directed at long-term community needs.

• Develop new communication channels to ensure the communities surrounding 
our assets have easy access to information about our operations, community 
contributions and initiatives.

Community partnership funds
Based on the success of the Tarong Community Partnership Fund in the South 
Burnett, we directed a proportion of the existing social investment budget into 
similar funding programs for Ipswich and Rockhampton. 

These programs (the Swanbank Power Station Community Grants Program 
and the Stanwell Power Station Community Fund) aim to add value to projects 
that strengthen community capacity, vibrancy and resilience. Funding decisions 
will be made through consultation with a cross-section of community leaders in 
each region.

The first round of the Swanbank Power Station Community Grants Program in 
June attracted 25 applications and saw $16,500 awarded to projects which will 
make a long-term community contribution. The Stanwell Power Station Community 
Fund will be launched in early July 2012.

During the year, the Tarong Community Partnership Fund supported Endeavour 
Foundation’s Kingaroy Kitchen, a community kindergarten, local emergency 
services and projects that strengthened sporting organisations. 

Working with Traditional Owners
Stanwell maintains a close relationship with the South Burnett’s Traditional Owners, 
the Wakka Wakka people. This relationship was formalised in 2009 by entering 
into an Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA). In addition to the responsibilities 
and activities generated by working in partnership with the Wakka Wakka people, 
Stanwell takes an active role in supporting the broader indigenous communities in 
the South Burnett through our community relations program. 

Stanwell’s community relations team, site personnel and senior management 
regularly participate in cultural heritage committees and we regularly invite Wakka 
Wakka people to our sites to demonstrate that we responsibly manage their 
cultural heritage.

People and community

Community 
Throughout 2011–12, Stanwell’s 
community engagement effort 
focused on achieving a consistent 
approach across the portfolio.

Our priority throughout the year was 
to ensure a strong, open relationship 
between each asset and its local 
community. This meant:

• establishing relationships with 
community leaders

• conducting ‘baseline’ research 
to ensure we understand our 
communities’ expectations 
of us, as well as their current 
perceptions about how we 
are performing

• reviewing social investment, 
to ensure it is based on 
consultation with community 
leaders, and provides maximum 
long-term benefit for the 
communities where we operate

• redesigning communication 
tools, based on community 
feedback from our research.

Research helps inform our 
community relations activities 
Throughout the year we undertook 
independent market research 
to survey the perceptions and 
expectations of stakeholders in 
Rockhampton, Ipswich and Tully. 
In general, the feedback showed 
that our operations were regarded 
as safe and competent, but not top 
of mind. 

In direct response to this feedback, 
we held our first Catch-up in Your 
Community event at the Stanwell 
Community Hall, near Stanwell 
Power Station, in April 2012 and 
the first Inside the Fence at Tarong 
Power Station in May 2012. 

Catch-up in Your Community 
provided an opportunity for 
interested locals to drop in for a 
chat with Stanwell Power Station’s 
management and community 
relations teams. Inside the Fence 
gave community and business 
leaders the opportunity to tour the 
power station and meet senior 
site personnel.
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Mining
Meandu Mine is located in the South Burnett, adjacent to the Tarong 
power stations. The mine currently has five working pits and is capable of 
supplying the Tarong power stations with more than seven million tonnes of 
coal a year. 

In recent years, more economic coal has been discovered, providing a secure fuel 
source until at least 2031. During the year, Stanwell undertook several projects to 
extend the life of the mine and its assets, and to secure stable long-term mining 
operations. 

What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

Complete Meandu East  
pre-feasibility study

On Track 
Progressing exploration drilling program, 
to be followed by geological modelling and 
energy ranking studies. 

Complete dragline  
optimisation study

Achieved 
Completed an industry benchmarking study. 

Update resource and  
reserve estimate

Achieved 
Updated geological model, including the 
resource and reserve estimation.

What we want to achieve next year

• Develop Meandu East Mine project.

• Implement long-term Mining Services Agreement.

• Investigate opportunities for use of the Kunioon coal resource.

Securing long-term mining operations
Stanwell has secured a new long-term Mining Services Agreement (MSA) for 
Meandu Mine, to come into effect in January 2013. The structure of the new MSA 
is aligned to the safe mining and delivery of long-term, competitively-priced fuel to 
the Tarong power stations. 
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Swanbank E Power Station employees Andrew Bell and Dwayne Dowden.

The mine is currently operated 
by mining contractor Thiess Pty 
Ltd under a short-term MSA with 
Stanwell, which will expire on 31 
December 2012.

The revised MSA incorporates 
changes to the existing balance of 
resources between the contractor 
and Stanwell, with functions, 
where it is critical that we own the 
intellectual property, brought in-
house (for example long-term mine 
planning and fleet management 
strategy).

A longer-term agreement will 
deliver significant benefits for the 
community, by having a secure 
and stable business operation 
and workforce, which has 
flow-on effects in terms of local 
employment and spending.

The first stage of a major overhaul 
of the 30-year-old dragline was 
successfully completed during 
the year (see case study on page 
20). This investment, along with 
a considered fleet and fixed 
plant replacement and upgrade 
program ensures the reliability 
needed to underpin low-cost 
mining to support power station 
operations well beyond 2020.

Business performance
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Examining long-term mining options 
Stanwell is in the second stage of exploration drilling in an area known as Meandu 
East, which is within the current mining lease but to the east of the active mining area 
at Meandu Mine. 

The drilling will take approximately six months and will be followed by further 
geological modelling and energy ranking studies. When this is completed, a decision 
will be made as to whether or not to proceed to a full feasibility study. 

Information collected to date shows significant potential for coal to be mined in 
Meandu East at a lower cost than other fuel options available to Stanwell for the 
Tarong power stations.  

Generation
What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

Implement a cost-effective overhaul 
program to maintain plant integrity

Achieved 
Completed planned overhauls at 
Stanwell, Tarong, Tarong North, Mica 
Creek and the hydro power stations.

Manage the closure of Swanbank B Achieved 
Swanbank B ceased production on 
24 May 2012.

What we want to achieve next year

• Optimise generating plant performance in line with market requirements.

• Optimise overhaul costs and execution strategy across the portfolio.

• Conduct carbon emissions reduction scoping studies on existing plant.

• Implement asset management strategies and lifecycle plans that ensure asset 
integrity while achieving required commercial outcomes.

 
We are committed to maintaining our generation assets to ensure they 
continue to operate reliably and efficiently to meet both current and future 
market requirements. We will also invest to improve plant performance to meet 
changing market and regulatory requirements.

During the year, we achieved a total availability across the portfolio of 89.0%, which 
was slightly below the targeted 90.1%. The portfolio recorded a forced outage rate 
of 3.3%, which is slightly higher than in past years. This slight increase reflects a 
combination of commercial decisions regarding lowest-cost plant repairs (reflecting 
the oversupplied wholesale electricity market) and the priority of improving safety 
before return-to-service in relation to some plant failures. 

During the year, we invested heavily in overhauls of our plant, including major 
overhauls at Stanwell, Tarong North, Mica Creek and the hydro power stations, and a 
mini overhaul at Tarong Power Station. 

A strong focus on sensible, responsible cost management across the plant portfolio 
has delivered a 10.5% reduction in operating expenditure from the targeted spend. A 
review of the asset life plans of the combined portfolio has been undertaken and this 
will guide optimisation of the future capital expenditure program. 

Investing in our 
mining fleet
Stanwell completed phase one 
of a major overhaul of its Bucyrus 
Erie 1370W dragline, nicknamed 
Hannibal, in August 2011. Hannibal 
moves about 80 tonnes of material 
every minute of every hour, and is 
pivotal to an open cut operation like 
Stanwell’s Meandu Mine. 

Phase one took two months and 
240 specialised personnel to replace 
the entire control system and most 
of the control and power cabling. 
The shutdown was delivered on 
schedule and all key milestones 
from commissioning to full 
production were achieved. Phase 
two is scheduled to start in January 
2013 and will occur over three to 
four months. 

The dragline refurbishment is 
essential in ensuring that the 
dragline is kept in good condition 
to support the mine throughout its 
extended life.

Meandu Mine Senior Geologist Nathan 
Ferdinands and Maintenance Engineer Fraser 
Ollason oversee the dragline overhaul.

Business performance



21

B
us

in
es

s 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

Future investment
We will continue to invest in our plant to ensure it can meet changing market and regulatory requirements and will continue  
to study commercially-viable options for carbon emissions reductions at all our sites. 

During the next financial year, we will undertake major overhauls at Stanwell, Swanbank E, Tarong and Mica Creek power 
stations, and Kareeya and Barron Gorge hydros.  

Asset performance

Energy 
sent out 

(GWh)

Capacity 
factor 

generated 
(%)

Budgeted 
availability 

(%) 

Availability 
(%)

Planned 
outage 

factor (%)

Forced 
outage 

factor (%)

Fuel consumption 
(coal (tonnes), gas 
(terajoules), water 

(ML)) 
Tarong power stations – coal – 1843 MW 

2011–12 8947 60.3 89.00 88.10 7.60 4.30 4,553,512
2010–11 9990 67.2 90.40 90.30 7.60 2.10 5,091,077
2009–10 9339 63.0 88.30 81.60 12.90 5.50 4,582,346
2008–09 10,103 68.1 86.80 85.50 13.20 1.30 5,180,845
2007–08 6921 47.0 93.70 87.30 11.70 1.00 3,537,811
Stanwell Power Station – coal – 1460 MW 

2011–12 6796 57.5 91.10 90.82 7.03 2.15 2,589,501
2010–11 6328 55.6 91.00 88.32 10.07 1.61 2,453,065
2009–10 8063 70.3 92.20 91.63 6.40 1.97 3,013,743
2008–09 7845 68.7 92.30 95.06 4.45 0.49 2,914,089
2007–08 8713 76.5 94.10 95.42 2.90 1.68 3,254,110
Swanbank E Power Station – gas – 385 MW 

2011–12 2058 63.9 93.40 96.04 1.49 2.47 15,975
2010–11 2202 68.3 98.00 93.98 0.00 6.02 16,933
2009–10 2010 60.8 98.00 83.34 12.03 4.63 15,451
2008–09 2164 65.3 95.00 91.76 5.94 2.30 16,582
2007–08 2080 62.5 95.00 84.96 7.65 7.39 15,692
Northern hydros – hydro – 159.7 MW 

2011–12 703 52.5 82.19 84.01 15.52 0.47 836,900
2010–11 925 69.0 84.51 81.18 13.85 4.96 1,243,823
2009–10 525 39.7 87.17 76.80 22.33 0.87 864,783
2008–09 782 59.2 89.32 90.28 8.32 1.40 1,311,081
2007–08 770 57.4 89.87 93.71 4.17 2.12 1,229,972
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The National Electricity Market 
(NEM) continues to show a 
decrease in both peak and average 
demand for a second consecutive 
year. The maximum Queensland 
five-minute demand for 2011–12 
occurred on 9 January, reaching 
8757 MW (2010–11: 8895 MW). 
This was achieved in a period 
typically noted for lower residential 
and commercial load, and was 
driven by higher temperatures and 
humidity, particularly in south-east 
Queensland. 

Average demand in Queensland 
was 5823 MW, down from 5865 
MW in 2010–11. Key drivers of the 
decrease in average demand include 
milder weather conditions, increased 
energy efficiency in the residential 
and industrial sectors, increased solar 
photovoltaic penetration and demand-
side management initiatives.

On the supply side, 2011–12 
was the first full year of trading 
following the consolidation of the 
Queensland Government generation 
assets and the New South Wales 
electricity trading rights sales. High 
availability in the NEM, particularly in 
Queensland, in conjunction with the 
reduction in average demand, placed 
downward pressure on average 
spot market prices and the financial 
derivative market. 

Given these demand and supply conditions, the average spot price decreased 
again in 2011–12, with transmission constraints and forced outages acting as the 
main drivers of volatility, particularly in January.

In the contracts market, while the Australian Government’s announcement of 
carbon scheme details reduced uncertainty, few traders were interested in buying 
or selling long-dated carbon inclusive contracts early in the year. The vote on the 
carbon legislation appeared to give traders some confidence that the carbon price 
would be implemented, but speculation on the potential for a revision to the carbon 
price saw prices for carbon-inclusive contracts fall late in the year. 

Preparing for the introduction of carbon pricing

With carbon pricing scheduled to commence on 1 July 2012, we undertook 
extensive work to ensure we would be ready to meet our obligations under the 
scheme. Key actions included:

• enhancement of our deal capture, gross margin dispatch tool, risk, forecasting, 
settlement and accounting systems

• development and external review of a hedge accounting methodology for the 
treatment of carbon pass-through clauses within derivative contracts

• review and involvement in consultation processes relating to draft regulations
• advice to retail counterparties of the proposed methodology for passing 

through carbon-related costs, where contractual arrangements allow
• review of additional requirements for the company’s Australian Financial 

Services Licence
• development of contract trading and carbon offset strategies. 

Creating a more efficient and economic portfolio
The restructure resulted in the transfer of the liabilities related to the Collinsville 
Power Station Power Purchase Agreement (CPS PPA) from CS Energy to Stanwell. 
The 177 MW CPS PPA had largely represented a financial and operational burden 
within the Queensland Government owned generators.

Stanwell engaged with the owner of the power station, Ratch-Australia Corporation 
(RATCH), in July 2011 to terminate the CPS PPA. The termination payout was made 
in June 2012.

Business performance

Marketing and trading
What we set out to achieve this year

Objectives Outcomes

Optimise gross margin Achieved 
Implemented trading strategies to optimise whole-of-portfolio generation and 
negotiated a commercial exit from the Collinsville Power Purchase Agreement.

Transition to energy company  
by diversifying revenue mix

On Track 
Increased sales to retail customers and developed strategies to facilitate the sale 
of export coal.

Enhance agility of trading to respond  
to market opportunities

Achieved 
Successfully entered the Short Term Trading Market and prepared for the 
introduction of a carbon price.

What we want to achieve next year

•  Develop and successfully execute integrated spot, contract and fuel trading strategies that optimise gross margin across the portfolio.

•  Maximise portfolio efficiency within prevailing market conditions (including the carbon price).

•  Expansion of trading activities, including further development of retail channels.
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Soft demand and increasing availability resulted in decreasing average spot prices over the past few years.

11,000

10,000

9000

8000

7000

6000

5000

4000

3000

2000

1000

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

De
m

an
d,

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

(M
W

)
De

m
an

d,
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
(M

W
)

01
-J

ul
-1

1

16
-J

ul
-1

1

31
-J

ul
-1

1

15
-A

ug
-1

1

30
-A

ug
-1

1

14
-S

ep
-1

1

29
-S

ep
-1

1

14
-O

ct
-1

1

29
-O

ct
-1

1

13
-N

ov
-1

1

28
-N

ov
-1

1

13
-D

ec
-1

1

28
-D

ec
-1

1

12
-J

an
-1

2

27
-J

an
-1

2

11
-F

eb
-1

2

26
-F

eb
-1

2

12
-M

ar
-1

2

27
-M

ar
-1

2

11
-A

pr
-1

2

26
-A

pr
-1

2

11
-M

ay
-1

2

26
-M

ay
-1

2

10
-J

un
-1

2

25
-J

un
-1

2

Sp
ot

 p
ric

e 
($

/M
W

h)
Sp

ot
 p

ric
e 

($
/M

W
h)

2001–02 2002–03 2003–04 2004–05 2005–06 2006–07 2007–08 2008–09 2009–10 2010–11 2011–12

Average available generation (MW)             Average demand (MW)             Time-weighted average spot price ($/MWh)

14,000

12,000

10,000

8000

6000

4000

2000

0

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

0

Average daily demand (MW)             Average daily availability (MW)             Average daily spot price ($/MWh)

A high level of excess capacity in the Queensland market resulted in relatively few high-price days.

Queensland annual average available generation, demand and spot prices (nominal) 

Demand growth versus installed capacity and spot price 
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Acting CFO’s report

Stanwell has recorded a net profit 
after tax of $79.9 million (2010–11: 
after tax loss of $12.0 million).

The additional generation 
assets acquired on 1 July 2011 
as a result of the Queensland 
Government’s generator restructure 
have presented opportunities to 
generate stronger returns for our 
shareholders. 

Surplus generation capacity 
and reducing demand in the 
Queensland electricity market have 
continued to subdue electricity 
prices. In response to these 
market conditions, our assets 
operated at lower capacity factors 
than in previous years and the 
core generation business was 
unprofitable. Stanwell’s revenue 
from electricity sales was $987.2 
million (2010–11: $350.9 million). 
The portfolio sold 20,604 Gwh 
of energy (2010–11: 13,149 Gwh). 
This increase not only reflects the 
increased installed capacity of the 
restructured entity, but also the 
coal supply constraints and severe 
weather events which impacted the 
prior year’s results.

Coal revenue-sharing arrangements contributed $208.9 million to pre-tax profit 
(2010–11: $115.4 million). This increase in revenue is due to strengthening of 
both export coal volumes and price due to strong global demand for Australia’s 
resources. 

The net profit after tax of $79.9 million includes charges for the impairment of 
generation assets, exploration and evaluation expenditure, and financial assets 
available-for-sale of $48.2 million (2010–11: $251.3 million). 

Changes in the fair value of financial instruments during the period resulted in 
a $57.0 million charge to net profit after tax. This unrealised loss is primarily the 
result of the accounting treatment required on restructure in relation to the former 
Tarong Energy hedge contracts. The restructure was effected via an asset transfer 
mechanism which did not allow the transfer of the Tarong Energy hedge reserve. 

Stanwell will recommend a dividend of $63.9 million (2010–11: $nil) to shareholders, 
representing 80% of net profit after tax.

Financial position
At 30 June 2012 Stanwell maintained a total debt balance of $777.0 million 
(2010–11: $637.1 million) and a gearing ratio1 of 38.2% (2010–11: 51.1%). Following 
the restructure, Queensland Treasury Corporation reassigned Tarong Energy’s 
core pool debt to Stanwell. 

Net operating cash flows were $156.1 million (2010–11: $66.0 million) after the 
payment of tax and interest. 

1 representing total debt as a percentage of total capital 

Jane McDonald 
Acting Chief Financial Officer
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Key areas of focus and achievement in 2011-12

As a consequence of the restructure of Queensland Government owned 
corporation generators and in recognition that governance practices should 
evolve in light of the changing circumstances of a company, a review of 
Stanwell’s core governance practices was undertaken during the year. 

The review resulted in:

• adoption of a new principle-based Code of Conduct underpinned by a 
Code of Conduct Policy Framework. Together, the Code of Conduct and 
the Code of Conduct Policy Framework form a core element of Stanwell’s 
governance practices 

• revision of the Board Handbook and adoption of a stand-alone board charter
• review of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, and People and Safety 

Committee charters
• approval of a model for the Board’s oversight of risk that will protect the 

interests of Stanwell’s stakeholders, ensure the Board discharges its 
duties to direct strategy, build value and monitor performance, and ensure 
management controls are in place and performing adequately.

Approach to corporate governance
Stanwell is committed to best practice corporate governance processes that 
will enhance Stanwell’s efficiency and effectiveness, and ensure the appropriate 
degree of accountability and transparency to stakeholders.

Stanwell defines governance as ‘the system by which the Corporation is directed, 
managed and held to account’. It incorporates culture, structure and processes for 
decision-making, accountability, control and behaviour. It provides the framework 
within which:

• the Board is accountable to shareholding Ministers for the successful 
operation of Stanwell

• the strategies and goals of Stanwell are set and agreed
• the key risks to Stanwell are identified and managed
• ethical values and behaviours, and responsible decision-making 

are promoted through a fair and just ethical culture.

Further information on Stanwell’s corporate governance practices, including key 
policies and copies of the Board and Board committee charters, is available on the 
Stanwell website (www.stanwell.com).

Stanwell has adopted all of the principles outlined in the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines for Government Owned Corporations and believes that throughout 
the reporting period, its governance practices have been consistent with 
these principles. 

Corporate governance

This Corporate Governance 
Statement sets out each of 
these principles and how 
Stanwell has addressed them.

Principle one: 
Foundations of management  
and oversight

Role and function of the Board 
and senior management

The Board has adopted a 
charter that sets out the role 
and responsibilities of the Board 
within the governance structure 
of Stanwell. The conduct of the 
Board is also governed by the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth),  
the Government Owned 
Corporations Act 1993 (Qld) and 
Stanwell’s Constitution.

These responsibilities include but 
are not limited to:

• monitor the progress of 
Stanwell’s commitment to the 
elimination of work-related 
injuries and occupational 
illnesses

• review and approve corporate 
strategies, the annual budget 
and financial plans

• make decisions in relation 
to major corporate initiatives 
above the CEO’s approval 
threshold 

• oversee and monitor 
organisational performance 
and the achievement of 
Stanwell’s strategic goals and 
objectives

• ensure the adequacy and 
effectiveness of key aspects 
of Stanwell’s financial 
management, reporting and 
accounting practices

• oversee the review and 
update of corporate 
governance practices and 
procedures as necessary 
to support Stanwell’s 
commitment to best practice 
corporate governance
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Corporate governance

• monitor and influence Stanwell’s 
culture, values, reputation and 
ethical standards

• appoint and assess the 
performance of the CEO and 
senior executives

• review and oversee systems 
of risk management, internal 
control and legal compliance

• oversee the process for 
identifying and managing 
Stanwell’s significant risks and 
the control, monitoring and 
reporting mechanisms in place

• report to, and communicate 
with, Stanwell’s shareholding 
Ministers.

The CEO has responsibility for the 
overall operational management 
and financial performance of 
Stanwell, while also managing the 
organisation in accordance with 
the strategy, plans and policies 
approved by the Board to achieve 
agreed targets. 

The Board and each of the Stanwell 
group entities have delegated 
powers to the CEO to perform this 
role. Senior executives reporting 
to the CEO have their roles and 
responsibilities defined in specific 
position descriptions.

Board

The Board held 13 meetings 
between 1 July 2011 and 30 June 
2012. The table on page 36 of this 
report provides details of director 
attendance at those meetings. 

At the date of this report, the 
Board of Stanwell consisted of 
six independent, non-executive 
directors. The names, qualifications 
and relevant skills, experience and 
expertise of the directors who held 
office during the financial year and 
up to the date of this report, along 
with their terms of appointment, are 
set out on pages 34 to 35.

The Board considers that 
individually and collectively the 
directors bring a level of skill, 
knowledge and experience that 
enables the Board to discharge its 

role and responsibilities effectively. Directors are appointed by the Governor-in-
Council. Appointments are for a specified period.

Committees of the Board

The Board has established two committees: the People and Safety Committee 
and the Audit and Risk Management Committee. These committees assist in the 
execution of the Board’s role and allow detailed consideration of complex issues. 
Committee members are chosen for their skills and experience.

The roles, responsibilities and delegated authorities of each committee are set out 
in the respective committee charters. Each year, the charters are reviewed and, 
where appropriate, updated to take account of changes and other developments in 
the committees’ areas of responsibility. 

Each committee meets several times a year, depending on committee workload 
requirements. The role and membership of each committee are described in more 
detail below.

People and Safety Committee

As at the date of this report, the People and Safety Committee comprised the 
following directors:

Russell Kempnich (Chairman)
Kym Collins
Ann Fitzpatrick
The Hon. Warwick Parer AM. 

The committee’s primary function is to assist the Board to oversee the 
development and monitoring of policies and practices which relate to:

• health, safety and welfare of employees
• the Board’s performance of its governance of Stanwell
• the work environment, conditions and performance of employees
• relationships with external stakeholders.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

At the date of this report, the Audit and Risk Management Committee comprised 
the following directors:

Stephen Rochester (Chairman)
Paul Breslin 
The Hon. Warwick Parer AM.

The committee’s primary function is to assist the Board to:

• review and monitor Stanwell’s financial management and reporting processes
• review and oversee systems for risk management, internal control and 

legal compliance
• oversee the process for:
 − identifying and managing significant business risks
 − implementing appropriate and adequate control, monitoring and  

 reporting mechanisms
• monitor and assess the performance of the internal and external 

audit functions.

Executive remuneration and performance review 

Each year, the Board, with the assistance of the People and Safety Committee, 
undertakes a formal process of reviewing the performance of the CEO and senior 
executives. The rate of remuneration increase for the CEO and senior executives is 
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determined with regard to market salary movements and individual performance. 
At-risk performance incentive payments for the CEO and senior executives are 
capped at 15 per cent of total fixed remuneration, with the amount payable tied 
to the achievement of pre-determined Board-approved corporation, business 
division and individual performance targets. The CEO is not present at the Board 
or People and Safety Committee meetings when the CEO’s own remuneration and 
performance are being considered.

Further details about the CEO and senior executive remuneration (including at-risk 
performance incentive payments) are disclosed on page 103. 

Principle two: 
Structure the Board to add value

Director induction and professional development

Stanwell has a comprehensive director induction program in place that includes the 
provision of key corporate documents, facilitation of site visits and meetings with 
senior executives. 

The induction program is modified as required to ensure that it is appropriate for 
new directors’ qualifications and experience.

To facilitate continual improvement, all directors are encouraged to participate in 
professional and self-development activities. Activities undertaken by directors that 
assist their responsibilities to Stanwell are paid for by the business.

Director independence 

The Board has considered the associations of each of the directors and is of 
the view that all directors are independent. The basis for this decision is that 
all directors are independent of management or any material business or other 
interest that could interfere with:

• the exercise of objective, unfettered or independent judgement
• the director acting in the best interests of Stanwell.

The materiality of any relationship between a director and Stanwell or any other 
interest which may impact a director’s independence will be judged according to 
the significance of the relationship to the director in the context of their activities as 
a whole. The Board applies a conservative assessment of the significance of any 
relationship when determining materiality. 

Access to independent professional advice

Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at Stanwell’s 
expense. The process for obtaining such advice requires the relevant director 
to consult with the Chairman or the Company Secretary where the Chairman is 
conflicted, to facilitate the advice.

The Board can conduct or direct any investigation to fulfil its responsibilities 
and can retain, at Stanwell’s expense, any legal, accounting or other services it 
considers necessary to perform its duties. 

Access to management

Each director has access to the CEO or senior executives in the event that 
they require additional information. Each director is encouraged to contact the 
Company Secretary prior to a Board meeting to discuss any matters that require 
clarification. 

Board evaluation

The Board evaluates its 
performance, the performance of 
individual directors, the Chairman 
and the Board committees at 
regular periods, not exceeding 
two years. The People and Safety 
Committee is responsible for 
assessing the framework and the 
processes used for conducting the 
performance evaluations. 

During the year, performance 
evaluations for both board 
committees took place, with 
the results of those evaluations 
being returned to the Board for 
further discussion. The Board 
also critiques its performance as a 
standing agenda item at the end of 
every scheduled Board meeting.

Principle three: 
Promote ethical and responsible 
decision-making 

Code of Conduct

Stanwell has a Code of Conduct 
that applies to its directors, 
employees and contractors. 
The code promotes ethical and 
responsible decision-making 
and requires high standards 
of honesty, integrity, fairness 
and equity in all aspects of 
employment with Stanwell—the 
behaviour this fosters is integral to 
supporting Stanwell’s values and 
governance practices.

The principles underlying 
Stanwell’s Code of Conduct are:

1. We contribute to a safe 
workplace and strive to 
achieve Zero Harm Today.

2. We act ethically at all times. 
3. We treat others with fairness 

and respect, and value 
diversity.

4. We identify conflicts of 
interest and manage them 
responsibly.

5. We respect and maintain 
privacy and confidentiality.
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Corporate governance

Any director with a conflict of interest in a matter being considered by the Board 
must declare their interest and, unless the Board resolves otherwise, they may not 
participate in boardroom discussions or vote on matters in respect of which they 
have a conflict.

Trading in securities

The Trading in Securities Policy deals with the manner in which Stanwell’s directors 
and employees can trade in securities. This policy is specifically designed to raise 
awareness of the prohibitions on insider trading contained within the Corporations 
Act 2001 (Cth), to ensure Stanwell personnel understand these requirements and 
the restrictions on trading while in possession of price-sensitive information. 

Principle four: 
Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board in overseeing 
the reliability and integrity of financial reporting practices, accounting policies, 
auditing and external reporting. The committee provides advice to the Board on 
financial statements, financial systems integrity and business risks. It also oversees 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and corporate policies, and ensures 
that an adequate, current internal control system is operating for areas such as 
business, operational, asset and financial risk.

The external audit function is performed by or on behalf of the Queensland Auditor 
General. Additional work is conducted as required by independent professionals.

The internal audit function is established by the Stanwell Board and its 
responsibilities are defined by the Board’s Audit and Risk Management Committee, 
as part of its oversight function. The overall objective of Stanwell’s internal audit 
function is to assist the Stanwell Board and all levels of management to discharge 
their responsibilities in maintaining Stanwell as a well-controlled, economic, efficient 
and effective corporation that complies with statutory obligations.

As at the date of this report, the Audit and Risk Management Committee consisted 
of three members. Other directors who are not members of the committee, the 
auditors and other senior executives attend meetings by invitation. For information 
on the skills, experience and expertise of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee members, please refer to pages 34 to 35 of this report. Details of 
the number of meetings and attendance by members at the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee meetings can be found on page 36 of this report.

Principle five: 
Make timely and balanced disclosures

In line with the requirements of the Government Owned Corporations Act, 
shareholding Ministers are advised in a timely manner of all issues likely to have 
a significant financial, operational, employee, community or environmental 
impact. Stanwell also regularly assesses the key information requirements of 
its shareholders.

Release of Information Publication Scheme

Stanwell is committed to providing the public with information about the business 
in a timely and open manner. As a Queensland Government Owned Corporation, 
Stanwell has adopted the Queensland Government’s ‘push’ model for the routine 
and proactive release of information into the public domain, via Stanwell’s Release 
of Information Publication Scheme which can be viewed at www.stanwell.com.

6. We comply with this code, 
the law, Stanwell’s contractual 
commitments and Stanwell’s 
policies and procedures.

7. We immediately report any 
breaches of this code, the 
law or Stanwell’s policies and 
procedures.

The code is supported by the 
following detailed policies that 
together form the Stanwell Code of 
Conduct Policy Framework:

• Confidential Information Policy
• Conflict of Interest Policy
• Fair Treatment Policy
• Fraud Prevention Policy
• Gifts and Benefits Policy
• Health and Safety Policy
• Information Systems and Tool 

Usage Policy
• Legal and Regulatory 

Compliance Policy
• Privacy Policy
• Trading in Securities Policy
• Whistleblower Protection Policy.

Stanwell’s Whistleblower Protection 
Policy is designed to support and 
protect employees and contractors 
who disclose illegal, unethical or 
non-compliant conduct by other 
employees. The policy formalises 
Stanwell’s commitment to protecting 
the confidentiality and position of 
its employees and contractors who 
wish to raise serious matters that 
affect Stanwell’s integrity.

Avoidance of conflicts of interest 

The Board is conscious of its 
obligation to ensure that directors 
avoid conflicts of interest (actual, 
potential or perceived) between their 
duties as directors of Stanwell and 
their other interests and duties.

All directors are required to provide 
written disclosure of any actual, 
potential or perceived conflicts of 
interest on appointment. At least 
annually, or when relevant changes 
occur, directors are required to 
update these disclosures. The 
Company Secretary ensures that 
copies of all disclosures, including 
updated disclosures, are provided 
to each director.
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Principle six: 
Respect the rights of shareholders

Stanwell is committed to ensuring that its shareholding Ministers are continually 
and appropriately informed of its performance and activities. Communication is 
undertaken through a number of forums. 

These include: 

• Statement of Corporate Intent, Corporate Plan and Quarterly 
Reports. The Statement of Corporate Intent and Corporate Plan provide 
a transparent set of agreed performance criteria and strategic objectives 
on which to report to shareholding Ministers and their representatives via 
the Quarterly Report. The Statement of Corporate Intent (with commercially 
sensitive information deleted) is published on Stanwell’s website.

• The Annual Report (containing those matters outlined in Section 120 of the 
GOC Act) is prepared and issued to shareholders and interested stakeholders 
and is published on Stanwell’s website.

• An Interim Report for the six months ending 31 December provides details 
of Stanwell’s performance against key financial and non financial targets 
contained within its Statement of Corporate Intent for the current year. It is 
published on Stanwell’s website in March.

• A Forecast Report detailing Stanwell’s expectation of its performance for the 
coming financial year is published on Stanwell’s website in July. 

• Briefings to shareholding Ministers and their representatives are 
conducted on a regular basis to disclose business activities and performance 
against agreed targets.

Principle seven: 
Recognise and manage risk

Stanwell views effective risk management as the key to achieving its strategic  
and operational objectives. The Board has ensured, through its Board Risk 
Oversight Model (which comprehensively summarises Stanwell’s risk oversight  
and reporting to the Board), that Stanwell has the ability to understand and 
manage its business-critical risks. Following consideration by the Board of 
its business critical risks, any issues or changes in Stanwell’s risk profile are 
considered by management and addressed appropriately. 

Stanwell’s Board-approved Risk Management Policy and Framework give affect 
to ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management Principles and Guidelines and assign 
responsibility to individual Executive General Managers for the management of 
specific business critical risks for which they are functionally responsible. The Risk 
Management Framework clearly communicates the Board’s and management’s 
position on the process, terminology and tolerances for risk assessments and the 
requirements for risk reporting. 

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board by regularly 
reviewing and overseeing risk management, internal control, and legal and 
regulatory compliance systems.

Risk identification and review is conducted on an ongoing basis throughout 
Stanwell, and risk is captured and monitored using a corporation-wide risk 
management system, which links risk with audit and events.

Stanwell’s response to the risk of fraud is consistent with the Crime and 
Misconduct Commission’s guide to best practice in fraud and corruption control 

and includes regular fraud risk 
assessments, the annual review 
of the fraud control plan and 
the effective operation of fraud 
prevention and detection controls. 
In addition, the internal audit 
function performs forensic data 
analysis, unannounced audits 
and a rolling program of audits 
focusing on the effectiveness 
of fraud prevention and 
detection controls.

Stanwell conducts regular reviews 
of its business interruption risks 
and implements appropriate 
planning to mitigate those 
risks. These plans are tested 
by periodic business continuity 
and disaster recovery exercises 
that are designed to provide a 
sound degree of resilience should 
Stanwell need to respond to 
and recover from a crisis while 
continuing to maintain business 
critical operations.

Stanwell’s Board-approved Legal 
and Regulatory Compliance 
Policy outlines the overarching 
principles and commitments with 
respect to managing legal and 
regulatory compliance risks at 
Stanwell. Stanwell has a Legal 
and Regulatory Compliance 
System, which ensures Stanwell 
employees are aware of their 
compliance obligations and 
responsibilities, as outlined within 
the policy. The policy is based 
upon Australian Standard 3806-
2006: Compliance Programs. 

Stanwell’s internal audit function 
provides independent, objective 
assurance and supports Stanwell 
in accomplishing its objectives 
by bringing a systematic and 
disciplined approach to reviewing, 
evaluating and continuously 
improving the effectiveness of 
its risk management, internal 
control and governance 
processes. The Audit and Risk 
Management Committee monitors 
management’s responses to 
these reviews.
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At the conclusion of Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings, the Group 
Manager Internal Audit and representatives of the Auditor-General may meet with 
the committee without management present.

When presenting financial statements for approval, the CEO and the CFO provide  
a written statement to the Board to the effect that:

• Stanwell’s financial statements and notes to the accounts comply in all material 
respects with the Accounting Standards and present a true and fair view, in all 
material respects, of the company’s financial performance

• Stanwell’s financial statements are founded on a sound system of risk 
management and internal control and the system is operating effectively in 
relation to financial reporting risks

• the risk management and internal control systems are operating effectively 
in relation to all material business risks for the period, and that nothing has 
occurred since period-end that would materially change the position.

Principle eight: 
Remunerate fairly and responsibly

The fees paid to directors for serving on the Board and on the committees of the 
Board are determined by the shareholding Ministers and advised to Stanwell. 

The People and Safety Committee oversees, and provides advice to the Board on, 
employment strategies and frameworks. It makes recommendations to the Board 
on Enterprise Agreement (EA) frameworks as well as remuneration settings for  
non-EA employees and the remuneration and other terms of employment for senior 
executives. When increasing senior executive remuneration or awarding incentive 
payments, the Board must comply with the Government Owned Corporations 
Governance Arrangements for Chief and Senior Executives Appointments 
and Remuneration.

At the date of this report, the People and Performance Committee consisted of four 
members. Other directors who are not members of the committee and other senior 
executives attend meetings by invitation. For information on the skills, experience 
and expertise of the People and Safety Committee members, please refer to 
pages 34 to 35 of this report. Details of the number of meetings and attendance by 
members at the People and Safety Committee meetings can be found on page 36 
of this report.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and senior executives are set out in 
note 36(e) on pages 104 to 105 of this report.

Government Owned Corporations Act requirements

Government directions and notifications

Section 120(e) of the GOC Act requires Stanwell to provide, in its Annual Report, 
particulars of any directions and notifications given to Stanwell by shareholding 
Ministers that relate to the relevant financial year. During the 2011–12 financial year, 
Stanwell’s shareholding Ministers issued two formal directions pursuant to section 
299 of the Electricity Act 1994.

Corporate governance

Authority has been granted to the 
internal audit function for full, free 
and unrestricted access to any and 
all of Stanwell’s records, physical 
properties and personnel relevant to 
any function under review.

The internal audit function operates 
under the terms of the Internal 
Audit Charter. The Charter is 
reviewed periodically by the 
Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and formalises and 
communicates the purpose, role, 
authority, responsibilities, scope and 
operational framework of the internal 
audit function.

To provide for the independence 
of the internal audit function, its 
personnel report to the Group 
Manager Internal Audit, who reports 
functionally to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee and 
administratively to the Executive 
General Manager Governance and 
Corporate Strategy. 

Each year, the internal audit function 
prepares an Audit Strategic Plan 
that considers Stanwell’s risk profile 
and appetite, control criticality, 
previous years’ engagements, 
results and Board requests. The 
plan has a risk-based rolling five-
year scope and forms the basis of 
the detailed Annual Internal Audit 
Program. Annually, the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee 
reviews and approves the Annual 
Internal Audit Program. 

Following the conclusion of audits 
included in the plan, Internal 
Audit prepares and issues to 
management a formal Internal 
Audit Report of findings and 
recommendations. The final report, 
together with management’s agreed 
actions and implementation dates, 
is presented to the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee for 
consideration. Internal Audit also 
follows up on the implementation 
of audit recommendations and 
maintains the Audit Issues Log, 
which is presented to the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee 
for approval.
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Overseas travel

Travel undertaken at Stanwell’s 
expense

During the year, Stanwell’s Acting 
CEO travelled to the United States 
of America (USA) to attend an 
executive management course at 
Harvard University. 

The Executive General Manager 
Human Resources and 
Stakeholder Relations travelled to 
the USA to access research on 
training and development, with 
direct application to Stanwell. 

A senior electrical engineer visited 
Switzerland to undertake factory 
acceptance testing of the new 
operator interface for Swanbank E 
Power Station’s control systems. 

Travel undertaken at the expense 
of an external party

Stanwell’s Principal Chemist 
travelled to the USA to provide a 
presentation at a meeting of the 
Electric Power Research Institute 
International Sector Council.

Stanwell’s Carbon Policy 
Manager travelled to the USA 
and Canada as a guest speaker 
for the International Emissions 
Trading Agency. 
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On 17 August 2011, Stanwell’s shareholding Ministers directed the Board of 
Stanwell to:

• commence, and require any relevant subsidiary to commence, a process 
of negotiating with unions and employees on the terms of those enterprise 
agreements that fall due for expiry between 1 October 2011 and 29 July 
2012, with the object of having the terms of such agreements (or such other 
arrangements as may be agreed by the negotiating process) settled by 30 
September 2011

• as part of the above, ensure that the industrial relations arrangements agreed 
with the unions and employees incorporate the Transition Principles for 
Employee Selection and Transfer advised to employees on 7 July 2011.

On 11 February 2012, Stanwell’s shareholding Ministers directed the Board of 
Stanwell to:

• transfer the ‘B’ Switchyard at Mica Creek Power Station to Ergon Energy 
Corporation Limited (Ergon) so as to enable Ergon as the regional network 
service provider to enter into a connection and access agreement with APA 
DPS Pty Ltd for the connection of the Diamantina Power Station to the Mount 
Isa region electricity network

• undertake all steps necessary or desirable to give effect to the above transfer.

Modification of 2011-12 Statement of Corporate Intent
On 25 November 2010, the Queensland Government announced the 
recommendations of the Shareholder Review of Queensland Government Owned 
Corporation Generators (Genco Review). A recommendation of the Genco Review 
was the restructure of the three Queensland Government owned generators 
into two. The restructure was effected on 1 July 2011, pursuant to the Generator 
Restructure Regulation 2011.

The restructure resulted in the assets, liabilities and contracts of Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited being transferred to CS Energy Corporation Limited (CS 
Energy) and Stanwell. In addition, certain assets and liabilities were transferred 
between Stanwell and CS Energy.

As a consequence of the restructure, Stanwell’s 2011–12 Statement of Corporate 
Intent was amended to reflect its asset portfolio post restructure.

Dividend Policy

Stanwell’s Dividend Policy takes into account the return that shareholders expect 
from their investment and the cash requirements of the business. On 16 May 
2012, the Board of Stanwell recommended to shareholders a dividend amount 
equivalent to 80% of Stanwell’s net profit after tax (adjusted for unrealised gains on 
the revaluation of derivative financial instruments) for the 2011–12 year.

Corporate entertainment and hospitality  
(individual events over $5000)

Event Date Cost ($)

Employee end of year Christmas functions held 
across all of Stanwell’s sites

December 2011 52,783

Stanwell Power Station annual community dinner February 2012 5607
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Stanwell Corporation Limited Financial Results
For the year ended 30 June 2012

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity consisting of Stanwell Corporation 
Limited and its subsidiaries. The financial statements are presented in the Australian currency. 

Stanwell Corporation Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

Its registered office is: 

 Stanwell Corporation Limited  
42 Albert Street  
Brisbane QLD 4001 

Stanwell Corporation Limited is an integrated wholesale energy provider operating in Queensland. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 30 August 2012. The directors have the power to amend and 
reissue the financial statements. 
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The directors present their report on the Consolidated 
entity (referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting 
of Stanwell Corporation Limited and the entities it 
controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended  
30 June 2012. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Group’s principal activity during the financial year was 
the generation and sale of electricity. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Profit/(loss) before income tax 105,508 (24,579) 

Profit/(loss) after income tax 79,860  (11,992)

Profit/(loss) attributable to 
members of the Economic entity 79,860 (11,992)

DIVIDENDS – Stanwell Corporation Limited 

No dividends have been paid during the financial year.  
The directors recommend that a dividend of $63,900,000 
be paid in respect of the financial year (2011: $nil). 

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

Safety 

We continue to focus on our Zero Harm target recognising 
that all injuries and workplace illnesses are preventable. 

During the year, we recorded six Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) 
and a Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate of 1.30 (2011: 1.71).

A better indicator of our progress towards our goal of Zero 
Harm is our All Injury Frequency Rate (AIFR). In the past 
year, we have achieved an encouraging reduction in our 
AIFR from 96.5 to 70.2. 

Market 

The market conditions for generators in the National 
Electricity Market (NEM), particularly those based in 
Queensland, are extremely competitive and both peak 
and average demand have declined for the second 
consecutive year. Maximum demand in Queensland was 
8757 MW (2011: 8895 MW) and average demand was 
5823 MW, down from 5865 MW in 2011. Key drivers of 
the decrease in average demand include milder weather 
conditions, increased energy efficiency in the residential 
and industrial sectors, increased solar photovoltaic 
penetration and demand-side management initiatives. 

Stanwell undertook an extensive carbon preparedness 
project to ensure that the organisation was ready to meet 
its obligations under the Clean Energy Act 2011 which 
came into effect on 1 July 2012. 

Operations 

Robust maintenance practices resulted in total availability 
across the NEM portfolio of 89.6% which was just below 
the targeted 90.1%. The portfolio achieved a Forced Outage 
Factor of 3.3%, which is slightly higher than in past years. This 
slight increase reflects a combination of commercial decisions 
regarding lowest-cost plant repairs (reflecting the oversupplied 
wholesale electricity market) and the priority of improving safety 
before return-to-service in relation to some plant failures. 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS 

The restructure of the three Queensland Government owned 
electricity generators being Tarong Energy Corporation Limited, 
CS Energy Limited and Stanwell Corporation Limited took effect 
on 1 July 2011. The restructure was effected by regulation under 
the Government Owned Corporations Act 1993. The restructure 
resulted in certain subsidiaries, net assets, contracts and 
employees being distributed to the Queensland Government 
and redistributed between CS Energy Limited and Stanwell 
Corporation Limited. 

The following assets were transferred from Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited to Stanwell Corporation Limited with effect 
from 1 July 2011: 

• Tarong Power Station

• Tarong North Power Station 

• Coal mining assets, including the Meandu Mine and 
Kunioon coal resource. 

Immediately following the transfer of assets, Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited’s status as a Government Owned 
Corporation was revoked. The shares in Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries were 
then transferred to Stanwell Corporation Limited. 

The following assets and contracts were transferred from CS 
Energy Limited to Stanwell Corporation Limited with effect from 
1 July 2011: 

• Mica Creek Power Station

• Swanbank B and E Power Stations 

• Collinsville Power Purchase Agreement. 

The transfer also included the shares in CS Energy Mica Creek 
Pty Ltd and CS North West Pty Ltd. 

In accordance with the regulation, the Gladstone 
Interconnection and Power Pooling Agreement was transferred 
from Stanwell Corporation Limited to CS Energy Limited with 
effect from 1 July 2011. 

Directors’ report
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MATTER SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR

Industry reviews

In May 2012, the Queensland Government established an 
Interdepartmental Committee (IDC) on Electricity Sector 
Reform to review all aspects of the sector that impact on 
electricity costs, specifically energy supply, network costs 
and retail competition. The IDC will deliver a final report to 
the Queensland Government in January 2013.

Carbon pricing scheme floor price

The Federal Government announced on 28 August 2012 
that the planned floor price on carbon permits during the 
floating price period has been removed. Any impact of this 
change has not been incorporated into the asset values 
disclosed in this report.

Other than the matters discussed above, there has not 
been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to 
the end of the financial year that has significantly affected, 
or may significantly affect, the operations of the Group, the 
results of those operations, or the Group’s state of affairs in 
future financial years.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION 

The Group’s operations are subject to significant 
environmental regulation under both Commonwealth and 
State legislation. The primary environmental legislation 
governing the Group’s activities in Queensland is the 
Environmental Protection Act 1994. 

The Group undertakes a number of systematic processes 
to manage its environmental activities. These systems 
include line management environmental responsibilities for 
day-to-day activities, specialist environmental personnel 
providing environmental advice and monitoring compliance, 
and a reporting regime which involves the Chief Executive 
Officer providing monthly environmental performance 
reports to the Board. 

The directors are not aware of any significant breaches 
of environmental regulation occurring during the period 
covered by this report. 

Greenhouse gas and energy data 
reporting requirements 

The Group is subject to the reporting requirements of 
both the Energy Efficiency Opportunities Act 2006 and the 
National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007. 

The Energy Efficiency Opportunities Act 2006 requires 
the Group to assess its energy usage, including the 
identification, investigation and evaluation of energy saving 
opportunities, and to report publicly on the assessments 
undertaken, including what action the Group intends to take 
as a result. The Group continues to meet its obligations 
under this Act. 

The National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007 
requires the Group to report its annual greenhouse gas 
emissions and energy use. The Group has implemented 
systems and processes for the collection and calculation of the 
data required and submitted its initial report to the Greenhouse 
and Energy Data Officer on 27 September 2011 for CS Energy 
Limited assets and 27 October 2011 for Stanwell Corporation 
Limited and Tarong Energy Corporation Limited assets. 

Directors 

The following persons were directors of Stanwell Corporation 
Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the date 
of this report: 

K L Collins  
A A Fitzpatrick  
R J Kempnich  
S R Rochester

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS 

The Hon. W R Parer AM BComm (Melb), FAIMM.  
Chairman – director. 

The Hon. Parer was appointed Chairman of the Board of 
Stanwell Corporation Limited on 31 May 2012. 

The Hon. Parer has extensive experience in the energy industry. 
From 1996 to 1998, he was the Federal Minister for Resources 
and Energy. 

From 2001 to 2002, The Hon. Parer was the Chairman of the 
Council of Australian Governments Energy Markets Review and, 
from 2002 to 2004, he was the Chairman of the Energy and 
Transport Advisory Sector CSIRO. 

The Hon. Parer also has experience in the coal industry, 
having chaired the Australian Coal Exporters Association, 
the Queensland Coal Mine Management Pty Ltd and 
Jellinbah Resources. 

The Hon. Parer has been the Chairman of the Royal Brisbane 
and Women’s Hospital Foundation since 2010. 

P Breslin BSc (Hons), BEcon.  
Non-executive director. 

Mr Breslin was appointed a non-executive director 
on 5 July 2012. He is a member of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. 

Mr Breslin was the former Chief Executive Officer and a director 
of the economic consulting firm ACIL Tasman, and the leader 
of ACIL Tasman’s extensive energy practice. His consultancy 
work covered the areas of policy analysis, business regulation, 
competition policy and commercial analysis of markets to 
inform business decisions, mostly covering the energy and 
resources industries. His clients included Commonwealth 
and State government agencies, major companies, industry 
associations and banks. 

Mr Breslin is a former Director General of the Queensland 
Department of Minerals and Energy. During his tenure, Mr 
Breslin managed the separation and corporatisation of the 
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Queensland electricity industry and played a leading role 
in the detailed design and development of the Australian 
National Electricity Market. In 2002, he was part of the 
four member Council of Australian Governments Energy 
Markets Review. 

K L Collins MBA, B Eng (Elec), GAICD. 
Non-executive director. 

Ms Collins was appointed a non-executive director of 
Stanwell Corporation Limited on 1 July 2011. She is a 
member of the People and Safety Committee. 

Ms Collins is an experienced electrical engineer and 
project manager from the commercial construction 
industry, including having led Siemens Ltd Building 
Automation in Queensland. 

Ms Collins is a director of Green Cross Australia, an 
international organisation enabling companies and the 
community to prepare and respond to climatic changes 
and natural disasters. She has also served as a committee 
member of the Institute of Hospital Engineers, Little 
Athletics, St Aidan’s Old Girls Association and C&K 
Kindergartens and was a director and Chair of Tarong 
Energy Corporation Limited. 

A A Fitzpatrick BA, LLB, GAICD.  
Non-executive director. 

Ms Fitzpatrick was appointed a non-executive director 
of Stanwell Corporation Limited on 1 July 2011. She is a 
member of the People and Safety Committee. 

Ms Fitzpatrick has practised as a lawyer for 25 
years and for the past two years has been sitting as 
a Tribunal member, first in the Anti-Discrimination 
Tribunal and currently in the Queensland Civil and 
Administrative Tribunal (QCAT). 

For thirteen years, Ms Fitzpatrick was a partner in two 
major law firms. A partner of McCullough Robertson for 
ten years, she retired from private practice in 2008. Ms 
Fitzpatrick’s specialty is as an employment, industrial 
and anti-discrimination lawyer, with a large part of her 
work for QCAT involving conciliation and determination 
of building disputes and anti-discrimination matters. In 
the first part of her career, Ms Fitzpatrick practiced as a 
commercial litigator within the intellectual property and 
construction law. 

R J Kempnich BEng (Mech), MAICD.  
Non-executive director. 

Mr Kempnich was appointed a non-executive director 
of Stanwell Corporation Limited on 1 July 2011. He is 
Chairman of the People and Safety Committee. 

Mr Kempnich has more than 30 years’ experience in coal 
resource evaluation, process plant design, construction 
and commissioning gained both in Australia and 
internationally. A founding partner and non-executive 
Chairman of Sedgman Limited, he led the organisation’s 
growth from a consulting and engineering firm to a 

market leader in coal preparation, design and construction 
and was also responsible for the expansion of the company’s 
operations internationally. 

Mr Kempnich commenced his career in 1977 as an engineer 
with the Australian Coal Industry Research Laboratories where 
he was responsible for the coal preparation pilot facilities at 
Maitland, New South Wales. 

S R Rochester BEc, FCPA, MAICD.  
Non-executive director. 

Mr Rochester was appointed a non-executive director of 
Stanwell Corporation Limited on 1 July 2011. He is Chair of the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

With a career spanning 35 years, Mr Rochester is an 
established leader in public sector financing, the banking 
and finance industry and the global financial markets. He 
has been involved in all aspects of the provision of corporate 
treasury services to the Queensland public sector, as well as 
the establishment and operation of domestic and offshore 
borrowing programs, the development and implementation 
of liability management strategies, and the provision of 
infrastructure funding and financial risk management services. 

Mr Rochester was Queensland Treasury Corporation’s (QTC) 
inaugural Chief Executive, a position he held for 22 years. In 
2006, he was seconded to the role of Chief Executive of Sun 
Retail, Energex’s former retail arm. He is a former director of 
Tarong Energy Corporation Limited and former Chair of QTC. 
Mr Rochester was appointed Chair of Powerlink in May 2012. 

G J Carpenter MBA, FAICD, FCA.  
Non-executive director. 

Mr Carpenter joined the Corporation as Chairman and non-
executive director on 1 July 2011. He was a member of the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee and People and 
Safety Committee. Mr Carpenter resigned as a director on 
31 May 2012. 

G F Crow SC BCom, LLB (Hons).  
Non-executive director. 

Mr Crow was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 July 
2008. He was a member of the People and Safety Committee. 
Mr Crow resigned as a director on 20 June 2012. 

J A Leaver BCom, FCPA, MAICD.  
Non-executive director. 

Ms Leaver was appointed as a non-executive director on 
1 October 2009. She was the Chair of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. Ms Leaver resigned as a director on 
20 June 2012. 

The Hon. R J Welford BA (Hons), LLB, Grad Dip Leg Prac, 
Grad Dip Ind Rel, MSc (Env Mgt).  
Non-executive director.

Mr Welford was appointed a non-executive director on 1 July 
2011. He was a member of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee. Mr Welford resigned as a director on 28 June 2012. 
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COMPANY SECRETARY 

K A Buckley BA, Grad Cert Law, MAICD. 

Ms Buckley was appointed company secretary on 1 July 
2011. She has extensive governance experience of both listed 
companies and Government Owned Corporations’ statutory 
and regulatory compliance obligations. 

M T O’Rourke BLaw, BCom, GDip Applied Finance, 
GDip Company Secretarial Practice. 

Mr O’Rourke was appointed company secretary in 2002. He 
is the Executive General Manager Governance and Corporate 
Strategy. In this role Mr O’Rourke is responsible for audit, 
secretariat, legal, risk, compliance, insurance and information 
management functions. 

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS 

The numbers of meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors and of each board committee held during the year ended 30 
June 2012, and the numbers of meetings attended by each director were:  

Board meetings  
of directors

Meetings of board committees
Audit and Risk 

Management Committee
People and Safety 

Committee
A B A B A B

G J Carpenter 12 13 5 5 3 3

The Hon. W R Parer AM – – – – – –
K L Collins 13 13 – – 4 4
G F Crow SC 7 13 – – 1 4
A A Fitzpatrick 13 13 – – 4 4
R J Kempnich 7 13 – – 3 4
J A Leaver 12 13 4 5 – –
S R Rochester 11 13 5 5 – –
The Hon. R J Welford 13 13 5 5 – –

A = Number of meetings attended. 
B = Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during the year. 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS 

Indemnification and insurance 

In accordance with its Constitution, the Consolidated entity 
has entered into a standard form deed of access, insurance 
and indemnity with the current directors of the Consolidated 
entity to indemnify them to the maximum extent permitted 
by law against all liabilities which they may incur in the 
performance of their duties as directors of the Consolidated 
entity, except a liability for a pecuniary penalty order or 
compensation order under the Corporations Act 2001. 

The indemnity is made available to current and former 
directors of the Consolidated entity for a period of 
seven years from the date of their resignation. To the 
extent permitted by law the indemnity covers liability for 
legal costs. 

In accordance with the standard form deed of access, 
insurance and indemnity referred to above, the consolidated 
entity has, during the financial year ended 30 June 2012, 
paid an insurance premium in respect of the directors 

and executive officers of the Consolidated entity. In accordance 
with normal commercial practice, the insurance contract prohibits 
disclosure of the nature or the liability covered by, or the amount 
payable under, the contract of insurance. 

No claims have been made by any director or officer of the 
Consolidated entity pursuant to these indemnities. 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under 
section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 38. 

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS 

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued 
by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating 
to the ‘rounding off’ of amounts in the directors’ report. Amounts in 
the directors’ report have been rounded off in accordance with that 
Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to 
the nearest dollar. 

Directors’ report
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AUDITOR 

The Auditor-General of Queensland continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors. 

The Hon. W R Parer AM 
Director

S R Rochester 
Director 

Brisbane  
30 August 2012 
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To the Directors of Stanwell Corporation Limited

This auditor’s independence declaration has been provided pursuant to s.307C of the Corporations Act 2001.

Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Stanwell Corporation Limitied for the year ended 30 June 2012, I declare that, to the 
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been –

(a)  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the 
audit; and

(b)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

O C Clare FCPA  
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland)

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 
29 August 2012

Auditor’s independence declaration
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Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue from continuing operations 5 1,319,045 563,558 1,139,902 555,872

Other income 6 13,447 288,429 7,403 309,225

Change in fair value of derivative instruments that do 
not qualify for hedge accounting (56,969) (939) (56,969) (939)

Fuel costs (393,845) (109,840) (302,033) (109,840)

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work 
in progress 27,261 – – –

Raw materials and consumables used (224,860) (119,443) (192,017) (117,811)

Employee benefits expense (143,745) (51,916) (128,145) (51,912)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 7 (172,637) (81,580) (129,218) (81,580)

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (561) (8,066) (343) (8,066)

Other expenses (134,737) (67,479) (103,088) (66,653)

Onerous contract 20,538 (140,951) 20,538 (140,951)

Impairment loss 7 (48,246) (251,286) (17,048) (246,873)

Finance costs 7 (99,183) (45,066) (92,622) (45,022)

Profit/(loss) before income tax 105,508 (24,579) 146,360 (4,550)

Income tax equivalent (expense)/benefit 8 (25,648) 12,587 (19,738) 9,067

Profit/(loss) for the year 79,860 (11,992) 126,622 4,517

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 34(a) (38,814) (80,672) (38,814) (80,672)

Income tax relating to these items 11,644 24,202 11,644 24,202

Actuarial (losses)/gains on retirement benefit obligation 24(f) (24,168) (307) (24,168) (307)

Income tax relating to these items 7,250 92 7,250 92

Derecognition of deferred tax asset (or timing 
difference) previously recognised within equity (3,792) – – –

Other (14) (823) (7) (823)

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (47,894) (57,508) (44,095) (57,508)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 31,966 (69,500) 82,527 (52,991)

Profit/(loss) is attributable to: 

  Owners of Stanwell Corporation Limited 79,860 (11,992) 126,622 4,517

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year is 
attributable to:  
  Owners of Stanwell Corporation Limited 31,966 (69,500) 82,527 (52,991)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 
attributable to owners of Stanwell Corporation Limited 
arises from:  
  Continuing operations 31,966 (69,500) 82,527 (52,991)

The above statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statements of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2012
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Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 46,334 419,334 43,233 418,706
Trade and other receivables 11 146,694 58,163 137,137 67,601
Inventories 12 112,796 48,745 92,400 48,745
Financial assets 13 64,431 6,599 64,431 6,599
Derivative financial instruments 15 167,724 12,234 167,724 12,234
Current tax receivables 35,776 – 35,776 –
Other current assets 14 75,494 1,798 10,537 1,798
Assets of the disposal group classified as held for sale or 
distribution – 69,857 – 69,857
Total current assets 649,249 616,730 551,238 625,540
Non–current assets 
Receivables 16 – – 712,503 –
Derivative financial instruments 15 103,841 73,440 103,841 73,440
Available–for–sale financial assets 17 36,751 43,799 36,751 43,799
Property, plant and equipment 18 2,213,369 1,039,244 1,697,779 1,039,244
Intangible assets 19 88,063 9,315 12,782 9,315
Biological assets 20 463 513 463 513
Exploration and evaluation 21 17,484 7,485 9,621 3,072
Deferred tax assets 22 148,843 18,590 107,399 17,266
Retirement benefit surplus 24 – 3,133 – 3,133
Other non–current assets 23 22,209 2,500 1,673 2,500
Total non–current assets 2,631,023 1,198,019 2,682,812 1,192,282
Total assets 3,280,272 1,814,749 3,234,050 1,817,822
LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 179,015 48,535 109,533 48,535
Borrowings 26 4,783 – 4,783 –
Derivative financial instruments 15 160,527 5,059 160,527 5,059
Current tax liabilities – 49,292 – 49,292
Provisions 27 99,629 7,571 96,438 7,571
Other current liabilities 28 2,456 21 2,426 21
Liabilities directly associated with assets of the disposal 
group classified as held for sale or distribution – 184,724 – 184,724
Total current liabilities 446,410 295,202 373,707 295,202
Non–current liabilities
Borrowings 29 772,224 637,146 772,224 637,146
Derivative financial instruments 15 37,850 26,870 37,850 26,870
Deferred tax liabilities 30 407,989 237,847 359,526 237,847
Provisions 31 338,218 4,763 221,761 4,763
Retirement benefit obligations 24 15,845 – 15,845 –
Other non–current liabilities 32 2,583 2,500 2,583 2,500
Total non–current liabilities 1,574, 709 909,126 1,409,789 909,126
Total liabilities 2,021,119 1,204,328 1,783,496 1,204,328

Net assets 1,259,153 610,421 1,450,554 613,494
EQUITY
Contributed equity 33 1,214,693 544,569 1,214,693 544,569
Reserve 34(a) 9,951 37,121 9,951 37,121
Retained earnings 34(b) 34,509 177,040 225,910 180,113
Other owner contributions – (148,309) – (148,309)
Capital and reserves attributable to owners  
of Stanwell Corporation Limited 1,259,153 610,421 1,450,554 613,494
 
Total equity 1,259,153 610,421 1,450,554 613,494

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance sheets at 30 June 2012



41

 Consolidated entity Contributed 
equity

Reserve Other Owner 
Contributions

Retained 
earnings

Total equity

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2010 544,569 93,591 (148,309) 190,070 679,921

Profit/(loss) for the year — — — (11,992) (11,992)

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to profit and loss 34 — (104,978) — — (104,978)

Effective portion of changes in fair 
value of cash flow hedges 34 — 24,574 — — 24,574

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to property, plant 
and equipment 34 — (268) — — (268)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined 
benefit plan 34 — — — (307) (307)

Income tax equivalent relating 
to components of other 
comprehensive income 34 — 24,202 — 92 24,294

Other 34 — — — (823) (823)

Balance at 30 June 2011 544,569 37,121 (148,309) 177,040 610,421

Balance at 1 July 2011 544,569 37,121 (148,309) 177,040 610,421

Profit/(loss) for the year — — — 79,860 79,860

Effective portion of changes in fair 
value of cash flow hedges — 53,513 — — 53,513

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to profit and loss — (92,493) — — (92,493)

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to property, plant 
and equipment — 166 — — 166

Income tax equivalent relating to 
components of other comprehensive 
income — 11,644 — 7,250 18,894

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined 
benefit plan — — — (24,168) (24,168)

Derecognition of deferred tax asset 
(or timing difference) previously 
recognised within equity 30 — — — (3,792) (3,792)

Other — — — (14) (14)

Total comprehensive income 
for the year — (27,170) — 59,136 31,966

Transactions with owners in 
their capacity as owners: 

Transfer of net assets and 
subsidiaries by regulation on 1 July 818,433 — — — 818,433

Transfer of other owner contributions 
to contributed equity on 1 July (148,309) — 148,309 — —

Retained earnings of subsidiaries 
transferred on 1 July — — — (137,767) (137,767)

Dividends provided for or paid 35 — — — (63,900) (63,900)

670,124 — 148,309 (201,667) 616,766

Balance at 30 June 2012 1,214,693 9,951 — 34,509 1,259,153

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statements of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2012
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 Parent entity Contributed 
equity

Reserve Other Owner 
contributions

Retained 
earnings

Total equity

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2010 544,569 93,591 (148,309) 176,634 666,485

Profit/(loss) for the year – – – 4,517 4,517

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to profit and loss 34 – (104,978) – – (104,978)

Effective portion of changes in fair 
value of cash flow hedges 34 – 24,574 – – 24,574

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to property, plant 
and equipment 34 – (268) – – (268)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined 
benefit plan 34 – – – (307) (307)

Income tax equivalent relating to 
components of other comprehensive 
income 34 – 24,202 – 92 24,294

Other 34 – – – (823) (823)

Balance at 30 June 2011 544,569 37,121 (148,309) 180,113 613,494

Balance at 1 July 2011 544,569 37,121 (148,309) 180,113 613,494

Profit/(loss) for the year – – – 126,622 126,622

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to profit and loss – (92,493) – – (92,493)

Effective portion of changes in fair 
value of cash flow hedges – 53,513 – – 53,513

Net change in fair value of cash flow 
hedges transferred to property, plant 
and equipment – 166 – – 166

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined 
benefit plan 34 – – – (24,168) (24,168)

Income tax equivalent relating to 
components of other comprehensive 
income – 11,644 – 7,250 18,894

Other – – – (7) (7)

Total comprehensive income 
for the year – (27,170) – 109,697 82,527

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners: 

Transfer of net assets and 
subsidiaries by regulation on 1 July 818,433 — — — 818,433

Transfer of other owner contributions 
to contributed equity on 1 July (148,309) — 148,309 — —

Dividends provided for or paid 35 – – – (63,900) (63,900)

670,124 – 148,309 (63,900) 754,533

Balance at 30 June 2012 1,214,693 9,951 – 225,910 1,450,554

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statements of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2012
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Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers  
(inclusive of goods and services tax) 1,413,920 575,958 1,233,570 550,931

Payments to suppliers and employees  
(inclusive of goods and services tax) (1,020,259) (377,140) (859,013) (371,226)

Interest received 9,525 19,461 9,261 18,830

Interest paid (67,490) (44,744) (67,490) (44,743)

Income tax equivalents paid (80,870) (107,572) (80,870) (107,572)

Payment to terminate contractual arrangements (98,736) – (98,736) –

Net cash inflow from operating activities 45 156,090 65,963 136,722 46,220

 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment (210,038) (72,733) (119,209) (72,733)

Payments for intangible assets (4,301) (8,960) (4,298) (8,960)

Payments for biological assets – (89) – (89)

Net payments for exploration and 
evaluation expenditure (7,991) (8,985) (3,541) (159)

Proceeds from disposal of net assets held for sale 
in disposal groups – 370,604 – 376,084

Dividends received – – – 5,779

Loans provided to subsidiaries – – (78,040) –

Proceeds from sale of property, plant 
and equipment 28 1,051 28 –

Transfer from Emu Downs Wind Farm upon sale – – – 11,965

Payments for available–for–sale financial assets (7,000) (34,732) (7,000) (34,732)

Net cash (outflow) inflow from 
investing activities (229,302) 246,156 (212,060) 277,155

 
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (341,429) – (341,428) –

Dividends paid – (116,700) – (116,700)

Transfer of cash on 1 July 41,641 – 41,293 –

Net cash outflow from financing activities (299,788) (116,700) (300,135) (116,700)

 
Net (decrease) increase in cash  
and cash equivalents (373,000) 195,419 (375,473) 206,675

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year 419,334 223,915 418,706 212,031

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 46,334 419,334 43,233 418,706

The above statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statements of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies 

 The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements includes 
separate financial statements for Stanwell Corporation 
Limited (Company or Parent entity) as an individual 
entity and the Consolidated entity consisting of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries (together referred 
to as the Group or Consolidated entity). 

(a) Basis of preparation 

 These general purpose financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 
2001. Stanwell Corporation Limited is a for-profit entity for 
the purpose of preparing the financial statements. 

(i) Going concern 

 The financial report has been prepared on the going 
concern basis, which assumes continuity of normal 
business activities and the realisation of assets and the 
settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 

(ii) Date of issue 

 The consolidated financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Board of directors on 30 August 2012. 

(iii)  Historical cost convention 

 These financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation 
of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative 
instruments) at fair value. 

(iv) Critical accounting estimates 

 The preparation of financial statements requires the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and 
judgements are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that may 
have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or 
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3. 

(b) Principles of consolidation 

(i) Subsidiaries 

 The consolidated financial statements incorporate 
the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited (Company or Parent entity) as at 
30 June 2012 and the results of all subsidiaries for the 
year then ended. Stanwell Corporation Limited and its 
subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report 
as the Group or the Consolidated entity. 

 Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the 
power to govern the financial and operating policies so 
as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and 
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable 
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the 
Group controls another entity. 

 Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on 
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases. 

 Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised 
gains on transactions between Group companies are 
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless 
the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the 
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have 
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with 
the policies adopted by the Group. 

 Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at 
cost in the individual financial statements of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited. 

(ii) Joint ventures 

 Jointly controlled assets 

 Jointly controlled assets involves the joint control by the 
venturers of one or more assets contributed to, or acquired 
for the purpose of, the joint venture and dedicated to the 
purposes of the joint venture. The assets are used to obtain 
benefits for the venturers. Each venturer may take a share 
of the output from the assets and each bears an agreed 
share of the expenses incurred. Each venturer has control 
over its share of future economic benefits through its share 
of the jointly controlled asset. 

 Jointly controlled operations 

 When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint 
venture arrangements directly, the Group’s share of jointly 
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with other 
venturers are recognised in the financial statements of the 
relevant entity and classified according to their nature. 

 Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of 
interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an 
accrual basis. Income from the sale or use of the Group’s 
share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its 
share of joint venture expenses, are recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transactions will flow to/from the Group and their amount 
can be measured reliably. 

 The Group’s interests in assets where the Group does 
not have joint control are accounted for in accordance 
with the substance of the Group’s interest. Where such 
arrangements give rise to an undivided interest in the 
individual assets and liabilities of the joint venture, the Group 
recognises its undivided interest in each asset and liability 
and classifies and presents those items according to their 
nature. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Principles of consolidation (continued) 

(ii) Joint ventures (continued)

 Where the joint venture arrangement does not embody 
an undivided interest in individual assets and liabilities, 
but gives rise to a right to a net return in the form of cash 
or other financial assets, the Group recognises a financial 
asset. 

(c) Foreign currency translation 

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency (Australian dollar) using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement 
of such transactions and from the translation at year 
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the 
profit or loss, except when they are deferred in equity as 
qualifying cash flow hedges. 

(d)  Revenue recognition 

 Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable to the extent 
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade 
allowances and duties and taxes paid. Revenue is 
recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

(i)  Sales of electricity 

 Revenue from the sale of electricity traded in the 
National Electricity Market (NEM) is recognised when 
the electricity generated has been dispatched or in the 
period that the electricity generated, which is pursuant to 
a power purchase agreement (PPA), is transferred to the 
counterparty. The effective portion of electricity derivatives 
designated as cash flow hedges, relating to electricity 
traded in the NEM, is recognised in electricity revenue 
in the period to which the contract settlement relates 
(note 34(a)). Revenue from electricity sold on the NEM is 
based on electricity spot prices and is calculated by the 
Australian Energy Market Operator (AEMO), the body 
responsible for administering and operating the wholesale 
spot electricity market and managing the security of the 
power system. 

 Revenue from the sale of electricity includes revenue from 
retail contracts. Retail contract revenue is calculated based 
on the terms of the individual contracts and is recognised 
when the electricity is consumed by the counterparty. 

(ii)  Environmental certificates 

 The Group is involved in various environmental certificate 
schemes to meet its environmental obligations and for 
trading purposes. For environmental certificates held 
for trading purposes, revenue is recognised when the 
sale  of certificates occurs. Until sale, the environmental 

certificates are recorded as Inventory – refer note 
1(l) Inventories. 

(iii) Energy services revenue 

 Energy services revenue is received in relation to the 
recharge of transmission and other operating costs directly 
attributable to retail operations and is recognised when the 
electricity is consumed by the counterparty. 

(iv) Coal revenue sharing arrangements 

 Revenue from coal revenue sharing arrangements is 
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and 
can be measured reliably. This is usually when the coal is 
exported by the coal supplier. 

(v) Coal on-sale 

 Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer and can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards 
are considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery 
of the goods to the customer. 

(vi) Interest income 

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the 
effective interest rate method. 

(vii) Grants 

 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair 
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all 
attached conditions. 

(viii) Other income 

 Other revenue is recognised when the goods are 
provided or when the fee in respect of services 
provided is receivable. 

(e) Income tax equivalents 

 The Company and its wholly owned Australian controlled 
entities as set out in note 41 have formed a tax 
consolidated group. 

 The Company as head entity in the tax consolidated group 
is required to make income tax equivalent payments to 
the State Government, based upon the value of benefits 
derived by the tax consolidated group and is not liable to 
pay Commonwealth tax that would be payable if it were 
not a Government Owned Corporation. 

 These payments are made pursuant to section 155(4) 
of the Government Owned Corporations Act 1993 and 
are based upon rulings set out in the Treasurer’s Tax 
Equivalents Manual. The National Tax Equivalents Regime 
gives rise to obligations which reflect in all material 
respects those obligations for taxation which would be 
imposed by the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and the 
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)  Tax effect accounting 

 The Group adopts the balance sheet approach to 
accounting for income tax equivalent payments. 

 The income tax equivalent expense or benefit for the 
period is the tax equivalent payable or receivable on the 
current period’s taxable profit or loss based on the national 
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes 
in deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities attributable 
to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements, and to unused tax losses. 

 Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are recognised 
for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to 
apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are 
settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or 
substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. The relevant tax 
rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible 
and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred 
tax asset or liability. An exemption is made for certain 
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability. No deferred tax equivalent asset 
or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary 
differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a 
business combination, that at the time of the transaction did 
not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss. 

 Deferred tax equivalent assets are recognised for 
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses 
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be 
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities and assets are not 
recognised for temporary differences between the carrying 
amount and tax base of investments in controlled entities 
where the Company is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that the 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are offset 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
equivalent tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred 
tax equivalent balances relate to the same taxation 
authority. Current tax equivalent assets and tax liabilities 
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right 
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 Current and deferred tax equivalent balances attributable to 
amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised 
directly in equity. 

(g) Tax consolidation 

 As a consequence of the establishment of the tax 
consolidated group (refer note 1(e)), the current and 
deferred tax equivalent amounts for the tax consolidated 
Group are allocated among the entities in the Group using 

a stand-alone taxpayer approach whereby each entity 
in the tax consolidated Group measures its current and 
deferred taxes as if it continued to be a separate taxable 
entity in its own right. Deferred tax equivalent assets and 
deferred tax equivalent liabilities are measured by reference 
to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities 
in the Company’s balance sheet and their tax values 
under consolidation. 

 The tax consolidated group has entered into a tax sharing 
agreement and tax funding agreement. The tax funding 
agreement requires each wholly owned controlled entity 
to pay to the Company the current tax liability (asset) and 
any unused tax losses assumed by the Company. The tax 
sharing agreement sets out the allocation of income tax 
liabilities amongst the entities should the Company default 
on its tax obligations and the treatment of entities exiting the 
tax consolidated group. 

 In accordance with the tax funding agreement (refer above) 
and Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting, 
any current tax liabilities (or assets) and deferred tax 
assets arising from unused tax losses from the wholly 
owned controlled entities in the tax consolidated group 
are recognised by the Company. To the extent that the 
amounts recognised by the Company and its wholly owned 
entities are equivalent, amounts payable to (receivable by) 
the Company are accounted for through inter-company 
loan accounts. Any differences between these amounts 
are recognised by the Company as an equity contribution 
to or distribution from the wholly owned controlled entities. 
Distributions firstly reduce the carrying amount of the 
investment in the wholly owned controlled entities and are 
then recognised as revenue. 

(h) Leases 

 Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, 
as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases 
are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value 
of the minimum lease payments. The property, plant and 
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated 
over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s 
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of 
the lease term. 

 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group 
as lessee are classified as operating leases (note 39). 
Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the 
statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line 
basis over the period of the lease. 

 For assets subject to cross border leases, see note 46. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets 

(i) Financial assets 

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset 
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of 
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in the 
statements of comprehensive income and reflected in an 
allowance account against receivables. 

(ii)  Non-financial assets 

 Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite 
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be 
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment 
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 The recoverable amount is calculated based on either the 
fair value of the asset less costs to sell or value-in-use.  
Fair value less costs to sell is determined as the amount 
that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an 
arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and 
willing parties. The value-in-use calculation is determined 
on the future cash flows based on the continuing use 
of the assets, discounted to a present value using an 
appropriate market based pre-tax discount rate. The 
discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the 
time value of money and asset specific risks for which the 
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. 

 Assets that have previously been impaired are assessed 
annually to determine if there has been a reversal in 
impairment. Where this exists the impairment is reversed 
through the statements of comprehensive income only 
to the extent that the carrying value does not exceed the 
original carrying value net of depreciation and amortisation 
should the asset not have been impaired. 

 Reviews are undertaken on an asset by asset basis 
except where these assets do not generate cash 
flows independent of other assets. Where assets do 
not generate cash flows independent of each other 
the impairment assessment is based on the cash 
generating unit. 

(j) Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, and other 
short-term and highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(k) Trade receivables 

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 
30 days. They are presented as current assets unless 
collection is not expected for more than 12 months after 
the reporting date. 

(l) Inventories 

(i) Fuel and stores 

 Fuel and stores are carried at the lower of weighted 
average cost per individual item of inventory and net 
realisable value. Cost for stores and fuel is their purchase 
price and for partly processed and saleable products 
is generally the cost of production. For this purpose, 
the cost of production includes direct materials, direct 
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 
overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the 
basis of normal operating capacity. Costs of inventory 
are determined after deducting associated rebates 
and discounts. 

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. 

 Work in progress inventory relates to stocks of raw 
and crushed coal not in a form ready for consumption. 
Quantities are assessed through monthly surveys. 

(ii) Environmental certificates 

 The Group is subject to various regulatory environmental 
schemes and as such accrues environmental liabilities 
as part of its general business operations. To meet 
these liabilities, the Company acquires environmental 
certificates on the wholesale market and surrenders these 
to the scheme administrators annually. A number of the 
Group’s operating assets are also accredited to create 
environmental certificates which can be used to either 
acquit the mandatory renewable energy liability of the 
Group or alternatively can be realised through the market.  
The environmental certificates are created through various 
Commonwealth and State legislation. 

 Environmental certificates are recognised in the financial 
statements at fair market value where fair value is 
determined by reference to observable market prices at 
balance date. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale 
or distribution 

 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as 
held for sale or distribution if their carrying amount will 
be recovered principally through a sale or distribution 
transaction rather than through continuing use. This 
condition is regarded as met only when the distribution 
is highly probable and the non-current asset or disposal 
group is available for immediate sale or distribution in its 
present condition. Management must be committed to the 
sale or distribution, which should be expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed distribution within one year from 
the date of classification. They are measured at the lower 
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell or 
distribute, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, 
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and 
non-current biological assets that are carried at fair value 
and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are 
specifically exempt from this requirement. 

 An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or 
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to 
fair value less costs to sell or distribute. A gain is recognised 
for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell 
of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any 
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain 
or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale or 
distribution of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is 
recognised at the date of derecognition. 

 The fair value of assets (or disposal groups) held for sale 
is determined on the basis of the price in a binding sale 
agreement in an arm’s length transaction. In the absence 
of a binding sale agreement the fair value is determined 
based on the best information available to reflect the 
amount that could be obtained from disposal in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties. 
In determining this amount, consideration is given to the 
outcome of recent transactions for similar assets within the 
same industry, and where material, independent valuation 
prepared by external valuation experts may be used. 

 The fair value of assets (or disposal groups) held for 
distribution is determined on a discounted cash flow basis, 
based on market assumptions disclosed in note 3 and 
agreed to by the Transferee and Transferor entities. 

 Non-current assets (including those that are part of a 
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they 
are classified as held for sale or distribution. Interest and 
other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal 
Group classified as held for sale or distribution continue to 
be recognised. 

 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as 
held for sale or distribution are presented separately from 
the other assets in the balance sheets. The liabilities of a 

disposal group classified as held for sale or distribution 
are presented separately from other liabilities in the 
balance sheets. 

(n) Financial instruments 

 Classification 

 The Group classifies its financial assets in the following 
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial 
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for 
which the investments were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its investments at 
initial recognition. 

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is 
classified in this category if acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are 
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current 
assets if they are expected to be settled within 12 months; 
otherwise they are classified as non-current. 

(ii) Loans and receivables 

 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They are included in current assets, 
except for those with maturities greater than 12 months 
after the reporting period which are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade 
and other receivables (note 11) in the balance sheet. 

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets 

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that 
are either designated in this category or not classified in any 
of the other categories. They are included in non-current 
assets unless the investment matures or management 
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of 
the end of the reporting period. Investments are designated 
as available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and 
fixed or determinable payments and management intends 
to hold them for the medium to long-term. 

 Recognition and derecognition 

 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are 
recognised on trade-date – the date on which the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred 
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)

 Measurement 

 At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset 
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

 Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried 
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the 
fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss’ category are presented in profit or loss within 
changes in fair value of derivative instruments that do 
not qualify for hedge accounting in the period in which 
they arise. 

 Impairment 

 The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment 
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and 
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity 
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security 
below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets 
are impaired. 

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost 

 For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been 
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has 
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring 
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate 
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, 
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an 
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price. 

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment 
loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s 
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised 

impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

 Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in 
note 11(a). 

(ii)  Assets classified as available-for-sale 

 If there is objective evidence of impairment for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the 
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial 
asset previously recognised in profit or loss – is removed 
from equity and recognised in profit or loss. 

 Impairment losses on equity instruments that were 
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit 
or loss in a subsequent period. 

 If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases in a subsequent period and the increase 
can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. 

(o) Derivatives and hedging activities 

 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date 
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting 
period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair 
value depends on whether the derivative is designated 
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item 
being hedged, or is at fair value through the profit and loss. 
The Group designates certain derivatives as either: 

 •  hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or 
liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedges); or

 •  hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash 
flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly 
probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). 

 The Group documents at the inception of the hedging 
transaction the relationship between hedging instruments 
and hedged items, as well as its risk management 
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge 
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, 
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, 
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging 
transactions have been and will continue to be highly 
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows 
of hedged items. 

 The fair values of various derivative financial instruments 
used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 15. 
Movements in the hedging reserve in shareholder’s equity 
are shown in note 34. The full fair value of a hedging 
derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability 
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more 
than 12 months and classified as a current asset or liability 
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less 
than 12 months. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)

(i) Cash flow hedge 

 The effective portion of changes in the fair value of 
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow 
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in reserves in equity. The gain or loss relating 
to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss within change in fair value of derivative instruments 
that do not qualify for hedge accounting. 

 Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit 
or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit 
or loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged 
takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion 
of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings 
is recognised in profit or loss within ‘finance costs’. The 
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss within revenue. 
However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged 
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for 
example, inventory or fixed assets) the gains and losses 
previously deferred in equity are reclassified from equity and 
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. 
The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or 
loss as cost of goods sold in the case of inventory, or as 
depreciation or impairment in the case of fixed assets. 

 When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, 
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity 
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the 
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. 
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, 
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is 
immediately reclassified to profit or loss. 

(ii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting 

 Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge 
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative 
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss and are included 
in change in fair value of derivative instruments that do not 
qualify for hedge accounting. 

(iii) Embedded derivatives 

 There may be circumstances where derivatives are 
embedded in the Group’s sale and purchase contracts. 
This occurs when future transactions under such contracts 
are to be executed at prices which will depend on the 
market prices of the specified financial instruments which 
themselves are not closely related to the commodities 
which are the subject of the contracts. The Group has 
embedded derivatives, however, the financial instruments 
are closely related to the commodities which are the subject 
of the contracts. 

 Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or 
other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives 
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related 
to those of the host contracts. 

(p) Deferred stripping costs 

 Stripping costs comprise the removal of overburden 
and other waste products from a mine. Stripping costs 
incurred in the development of a mine before production 
commences are capitalised as part of the cost of 
constructing the mine and are subsequently amortised over 
the life of the operation. 

 Stripping costs incurred during the production stage of 
a mine are deferred when this is considered the most 
appropriate basis for matching the costs against the related 
economic benefits. The amount of stripping costs deferred 
is based on the ratio obtained by dividing the amount of 
waste mined by the amount of coal mined. Stripping costs 
incurred in the period are deferred to the extent that the 
stripping ratio for the current period exceeds the expected 
stripping ratio for the area or block subject to mining activity 
during the period. Such deferred costs are then charged 
to the profit and loss in subsequent periods to the extent 
that the current period stripping ratio falls below the block 
stripping ratio. The block stripping ratio is calculated based 
on proven and probable reserves. Any changes to the block 
stripping ratio are accounted for prospectively. 

 Deferred stripping costs are included in ‘Other current 
assets’ if the current mine plan indicates that coal mining 
from a strip is expected to occur within 12 months from the 
reporting date. If coal mining is expected to occur in greater 
than 12 months, the asset is included in ‘Other non-current 
assets’. These assets form part of the total investment in 
the relevant cash generating unit, which is reviewed for 
impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

(q) Property, plant and equipment 

 Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment charges. Historical cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
Cost may also include the costs of dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located, capitalised borrowing costs and transfers 
from other comprehensive income of any gains/losses on 
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases 
of property, plant and equipment (note 34(a)). 

 Subsequent costs of replacing part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 The carrying amount of the replaced asset is 
derecognised. The costs of day-to-day servicing of 
property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit 
or loss as incurred. 

 The Group has established a program of major overhauls 
providing cyclical maintenance works on the operating 
assets. Capitalised overhaul expenditure is depreciated 
over the period in which the Group expects to derive the 
benefits of the overhaul. 

(i) Depreciation 

 Depreciation is recorded over the useful life of the asset, 
or over the remaining life of the mine or power station 
if shorter. Assets are depreciated from the date they 
become available for use. Land is not depreciated. The 
major categories of property, plant and equipment are 
depreciated on a units of production or straight line basis 
as follows: 

 Units of production basis 

 Operational mining assets and mining development assets 
are depreciated on a units of production basis. In applying 
the units of production method, depreciation is normally 
calculated using the quantity of material extracted from 
the mine in the period as a percentage of the total quantity 
of material to be extracted in current and future periods 
based on proven and probable reserves. 

 Development costs that relate to a discrete section of 
an ore body and which only provide benefit over the life 
of those reserves, are depreciated over the estimated 
life of that discrete section. Development costs incurred 
which benefit the entire ore body are depreciated over the 
estimated life of the ore body. 

 Straight-line basis 

 • Buildings 16 – 31 years

 • Generation assets (including overhauls)  3 – 31 years

 • Operational mining assets 25 years

 • Other plant and equipment 3 – 31 years

 Estimates of residual values and remaining useful lives 
are reassessed annually, and any change in estimate 
is taken into account in the determination of future 
depreciation charges. 

 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(i)(ii)). 

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are 
included in the profit or loss. 

(r) Intangible assets 

 Intangible assets acquired are initially measured at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated 
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development 
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised 
in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is 
incurred. 

 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be 
either finite or indefinite. No intangible assets have been 
assessed as having an indefinite useful life. Intangible 
assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful 
life and tested for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least 
at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted 
for prospectively by changing the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting 
estimate. The amortisation expense on intangible assets 
with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense 
category consistent with the function of the intangible 
asset. 

(i) Capitalised software 

 Costs incurred in developing products or systems and 
costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that 
will contribute to future period financial benefits through 
revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised 
to software and systems. Costs capitalised include 
external direct costs of materials and service and direct 
payroll and payroll related costs of employees’ time spent 
on the project. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line 
basis over periods generally ranging from 2 to 10 years. 

(ii) Mining information and mining leases 

 Mining information and mining leases acquired are carried 
at the net fair value at date of acquisition less amortisation 
and impairment losses. Mining information and mining 
leases are amortised over the life of the mine for which the 
information relates using the units of production method 
and reflecting the pattern of economic benefit to the 
Group. No amortisation charge has been recognised in 
relation to the mining information and mining lease assets 
as the mine to which the information relates has not 
reached production (note 19). 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Intangible assets (continued)

(iii) Research and development 

 Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as 
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating 
to the design and testing of new or improved products) are 
recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the 
project will, after considering its commercial and technical 
feasibility, be completed and generate future economic 
benefits and its costs can be measured reliably. The 
expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable 
costs, including costs of materials, services, direct labour 
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other 
development expenditure that does not meet these criteria 
is recognised as an expense as incurred. Development 
costs previously recognised as an expense are not 
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised 
development costs are recorded as intangible assets and 
amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use 
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, which varies from 
3 to 5 years. 

(s) Biological assets 

 Biological assets comprise timber plantations that are 
stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

 Cost has been adopted as the basis of measurement as the 
fair value is not determinable at present as the plantation 
is in its early stages of growth and there is no observable 
active and liquid market for this timber. 

 Once the fair value of the plantation becomes reliably 
measurable it will be measured at its fair value less costs 
to sell with all changes in fair value being recognised in the 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

(t) Exploration, evaluation and development costs 

 Exploration, evaluation and development costs are 
accumulated in respect of each separate area of interest. 
Exploration and evaluation costs are carried forward where 
right of tenure of the area of interest is current and they 
are expected to be recouped through sale or successful 
development and exploitation of the area of interest, or, 
where exploration and evaluation activities in the area 
of interest have not yet reached a stage that permits 
reasonable assessment of the existence of economically 
recoverable reserves. 

 Development assets consist of mining development 
expenditure incurred by or on behalf of the Group. Mining 
development assets are accumulated separately for 
each area of interest in which economically recoverable 
resources have been identified. Such expenditure 
comprises costs directly attributable to the construction of 
a mine and the related infrastructure. 

 Once a development decision has been taken, the carrying 
amount of the exploration and evaluation expenditure 
in respect of the area of interest is aggregated with the 
development expenditure and classified under non-current 
assets as mining development assets. 

 A mining development asset is reclassified as a mining 
property at the end of the commissioning phase, when 
the mine is capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management. 

 Development assets are tested for impairment in 
accordance with the policy in note 1(i)(ii). 

 When an area of interest is abandoned or the directors 
decide that it is not commercial, all accumulated costs in 
respect of that area are impaired in the financial period in 
which the decision is made. 

 Depreciation is not charged on costs carried forward in 
respect of areas of interest in the development phase until 
production commences. When production commences, 
carried forward exploration, evaluation and development 
costs are depreciated on a units of production basis over 
the life of the economically recoverable reserves. 

(u)  Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and 
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial 
year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured 
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade 
and other payables are presented as current liabilities 
unless payment is not due within 12 months from the 
reporting date. 

(v) Borrowings 

 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid 
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as 
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable 
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this 
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the 
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or 
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as 
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the 
period of the facility to which it relates. 

 Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying 
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished 
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in other income or other expenses. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Borrowings (continued)

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the 
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

 Stanwell Corporation Limited operates a debt offset facility 
with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) as part of its 
debt management approach. This is a legally enforceable 
right to offset and it is anticipated that the assets and 
liabilities will be settled on a net basis. 

(w) Borrowing costs 

 Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any 
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed. 
There were no qualifying assets in either the current or 
prior years. 

(x)  Provisions 

 A provision is recognised when there is a legal, equitable 
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 
it is probable that a reliably estimated future sacrifice of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
the timing or amount of which is uncertain. 

 Provisions are measured at the present value of 
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The 
discount rate used to determine the present value reflects 
the current market assessment of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 
interest expense. 

(i) Dividends 

 A provision for dividends payable is recognised in the 
reporting period in which the dividends are declared, for 
the entire undistributed amount, regardless of the extent to 
which they will be paid in cash. 

(ii) Onerous contracts 

 A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the 
expected benefits to be derived from a contract are lower 
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations 
under the contract. 

(iii)  Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning 

 Future costs associated with the rehabilitation of power 
station sites, and close down and restoration of coal 
mines are estimated and provided for. In relation to mining 
activities, restoration and rehabilitation costs are provided 
for in the accounting period when the obligation arising 
from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs 
during the site development or during the production 
phase, based on the net present value of estimated future 

costs. Provisions for restoration and rehabilitation costs do 
not include any additional obligations which are expected 
to arise from future disturbance. The costs are estimated 
on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are 
calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect 
known developments and are subject to formal review at 
regular intervals. 

 When provisions for restoration and rehabilitation 
are initially recognised, the corresponding cost is 
capitalised as an asset, representing part of the cost of 
acquiring the future economic benefits of the operation. 
The capitalised cost is amortised over the estimated 
economic life of the operation. The value of the provision 
is progressively increased over time as the effect of 
the discounting unwinds, creating an expense which 
is recognised as a finance cost. The amortisation or 
‘unwinding’ of the discount applied in establishing the 
net present value of provisions is charged to the profit or 
loss in each accounting period. The amortisation of the 
discount is shown as a financing cost, rather than as an 
operating cost. 

 The costs for the restoration of site damage which arises 
during production, are provided at their net present 
values and charged against operating profits as the 
extraction progresses. 

(y) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term obligations 

 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave 
expected to be settled within 12 months after the end 
of the period in which the employees render the related 
service are recognised in respect of employees’ services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick 
leave is recognised in trade and other payables.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

 The liability for long service leave which is not expected 
to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service is 
recognised in the provision for employee benefits and 
measured as the present value of expected future 
payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period using 
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given 
to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. 

 Expected future payments are discounted at the end 
of the reporting period using market yields on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity and currency 
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future 
cash outflows. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(y) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations (continued)

 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the 
balance sheets if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the 
reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur. 

(iii)  Retirement benefit obligations 

 All employees of the Group are entitled to benefits from 
the Group’s superannuation plan on retirement, disability 
or death. The Group has a defined benefit section and a 
defined contribution section within its plan. The defined 
benefit section provides defined lump sum benefits based 
on years of service and final average salary. The defined 
contribution section receives fixed contributions from Group 
companies and the Group’s legal or constructive obligation 
is limited to these contributions. 

 The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheets 
in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised past 
service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. 

 The present value of the defined benefit surplus (or 
obligation) is based on expected future payments which 
arise from membership of the fund to the reporting date, 
calculated annually by an independent actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. 

 Expected future payments are discounted at the reporting 
date using market yields on national government bonds 
with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, 
the estimated future cash outflows. 

 Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in 
other comprehensive income. 

 Past service costs are recognised immediately in the 
statements of comprehensive income, unless the 
changes to the superannuation fund are conditional on 
the employees remaining in service for a specified period 
of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service 
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period. 

 Future taxes that are funded by the Company and are 
part of the provision of the existing benefit obligation (e.g. 
taxes on investment income and employer contributions) 
are taken into account in measuring the net liability or 

asset. Contributions to the defined contribution fund are 
recognised as an expense as they become payable. 
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the 
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future 
payments is available. 

(iv) Bonus plans 

 The Group recognises a liability and an expense for 
bonuses based on a formula that takes into consideration, 
amongst other factors, the profit attributable to the 
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The 
Group recognises an amount payable where contractually 
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a 
constructive obligation. 

(v) Termination benefits 

 Termination benefits are payable when employment is 
terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an 
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for 
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits 
when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating 
the employment of current employees according to a 
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to 
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more 
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are 
discounted to present value. 

(z) Financial guarantee contracts 

 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial 
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is 
initially measured at fair value, which is determined as the 
present value of the amount that would be payable to a 
third party for assuming the obligation, and subsequently 
at the higher of the amount of the obligation under the 
contract, as determined under AASB 137 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the 
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, 
where appropriate. 

(aa) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or 
as part of the expense. 

 Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the 
amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of 
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 
is included with other receivables or payables in the 
balance sheets. 

 Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST 
components of cash flows arising from investing or 
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable 
to the taxation authority, are presented as operating 
cash flows. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ab) Changes to classifications in the Statements of 
Comprehensive Income 

 In the current financial year the classification of expenses 
in the statements of comprehensive income have been 
changed from a combination of nature and functional 
classifications to nature only to provide more relevant 
information to our stakeholders and align with common 
industry practice. The comparative information has been 
reclassified accordingly (note 4). 

 The change in fair value of derivative instruments that 
do not qualify for hedge accounting was included within 
revenue from continuing operations in the prior year. 
The change in fair value of derivative instruments that do 
not qualify for hedge accounting are now classified as a 
separate line item in the statements of comprehensive 
income. 

(ac) Rounding of amounts 

 The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 
98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and 
Investments Commission, relating to the ‘rounding off’ 
of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts in the 
financial statements have been rounded off in accordance 
with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in 
certain cases, the nearest dollar. 

(ad) Parent entity disclosures 

 The Group has elected to adopt Class Order 10/654 
allowing the disclosure of Parent entity financial statements 
and notes thereto. The class order provides relief from 
the requirement preventing disclosure of single entity 
financial statements and disclosures of specific Parent 
entity financial information under regulation 2M.3.01 of the 
Corporations Regulations. 

(ae) New accounting standards and interpretations 

 Certain new accounting standards and interpretations 
have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 
2012 reporting periods and have not yet been applied 
in the financial statements. The Group’s and the Parent 
entity’s assessment of the impact of these new standards 
and interpretations is set out below. 

(i) AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2010–7 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) (effective from 1 
January 2013*) 

 AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, 
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities. The standard is not applicable until 
1 January 2013* but is available for early adoption. When 
adopted, the standard will affect in particular the Group’s 
accounting for its available-for-sale financial assets, since 
AASB 9 only permits the recognition of fair value gains 
and losses in other comprehensive income if they relate to 

equity investments that are not held for trading. Fair value 
gains and losses on available-for-sale debt investments, 
for example, will therefore have to be recognised directly 
in profit or loss. In the current reporting period, the Group 
did not recognise any such gains in other comprehensive 
income. 

 There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for 
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect 
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated 
at fair value through profit or loss and the group does not 
have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have 
been transferred from AASB 139 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement and have not been 
changed. The Group has not yet decided when to 
adopt AASB 9. 

 * In December 2011, the IASB delayed the application date 
of IFRS 9 to 1 January 2015. The AASB is expected to 
make an equivalent amendment to AASB 9 shortly. 

(ii)  AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 
Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests 
in Other Entities, revised AASB 127 Separate Financial 
Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011–7 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the 
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards  
(effective 1 January 2013) 

  In August 2011, the AASB issued a suite of five new and 
amended standards which address the accounting for 
joint arrangements, consolidated financial statements and 
associated disclosures. 

 AASB 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and 
consolidation in AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements, and Interpretation 12 Consolidation 
– Special Purpose Entities. The core principle that a 
consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries 
as if they are a single economic entity remains unchanged, 
as do the mechanics of consolidation. However the 
standard introduces a single definition of control that 
applies to all entities. It focuses on the need to have both 
power and rights or exposure to variable returns before 
control is present. Power is the current ability to direct the 
activities that significantly influence returns. Returns must 
vary and can be positive, negative or both. There is also 
new guidance on participating and protective rights and 
on agent/principal relationships. While the Group does not 
expect the new standard to have a significant impact on its 
composition, it has yet to perform a detailed analysis of the 
new guidance in the context of its various investees that 
may or may not be controlled under the new rules. 

 AASB 11 introduces a principles-based approach to 
accounting for joint arrangements. The focus is no longer 
on the legal structure of joint arrangements, but rather on 
how rights and obligations are shared by the parties to the 
joint arrangement. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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1  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ae) New accounting standards and interpretations 
(continued)

(ii)  AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 
Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests 
in Other Entities, revised AASB 127 Separate Financial 
Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011–7 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the 
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards  
(effective 1 January 2013) (continued)

 Based on the assessment of rights and obligations, a joint 
arrangement will be classified as either a joint operation 
or a joint venture. Joint ventures are accounted for using 
the equity method, and the choice to proportionately 
consolidate will no longer be permitted. Parties to a joint 
operation will account their share of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities in much the same way as under the 
previous standard. AASB 11 also provides guidance for 
parties that participate in joint arrangements but do not 
share joint control. 

  AASB 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities 
reporting under the two new standards, AASB 10 and 
AASB 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements 
currently found in AASB 127 and AASB 128. Application 
of this standard by the Group will not affect any of the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements, but will 
impact the type of information disclosed in relation to the 
Group’s investments. 

 The Group does not expect to adopt the new standards 
before their operative date. They would therefore be first 
applied in the financial statements for the annual reporting 
period ending 30 June 2015. 

(iii) AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011–8 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 13 (effective 1 January 2013) 

 AASB 13 was released in September 2011. It explains 
how to measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value 
disclosures. The Group has yet to determine which, if any, 
of its current measurement techniques will have to change 
as a result of the new guidance. It is therefore not possible 
to state the impact, if any, of the new rules on any of the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. However, 
application of the new standard will impact the type of 
information disclosed in the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements. The Group does not intend to adopt 
the new standard before its operative date, which means 
that it would be first applied in the annual reporting period 
ending 30 June 2015. 

(iv) Revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits, AASB 2011–10 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 119 (September 2011) (effective 1 January 
2013). 

 In September 2011, the AASB released a revised standard 
on accounting for employee benefits. It requires the 
recognition of all remeasurements of defined benefit 
liabilities/assets immediately in other comprehensive 
income (removal of the so called ‘corridor’ method) and 
the calculation of a net interest expense or income by 
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset. This replaces the expected return on plan assets 
that is currently included in profit or loss. The standard also 
introduces a number of additional disclosures for defined 
benefit liabilities/assets and could affect the timing of the 
recognition of termination benefits. The amendments will 
have to be implemented retrospectively. The Group intends 
to apply the amendment from 1 July 2012. 

(v) Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 
a Surface Mine (effective 1 January 2013) 

 Interpretation 20 provides guidance on accounting for costs 
associated with stripping activity during the production 
phase of surface mining. Interpretation 20 requires the 
entity to account for the related production stripping 
costs as inventory and/or a non-current asset (stripping 
activity asset). 

 The Interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods 
commencing from 1 January 2013. 

 There are no other standards that are not yet effective and 
that are expected to have a material impact on the entity in 
the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable 
future transactions. 

2  Financial risk management 

 The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 
market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign exchange 
risk and electricity commodity price risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program 
focuses mainly on the unpredictability of the electricity and 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse 
effects on the financial performance of the Group. The 
Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain 
risk exposures. The Group uses different methods to 
measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These 
methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest 
rate and electricity commodity price risks, a counterparty 
credit ratings analysis for credit risk and a contracts aging 
analysis for liquidity risk. 

 Financial risk management is carried out by the Financial 
Risk and Treasury group under policies approved by 
the Board. The Trading group identifies, evaluates and 
hedges electricity market risks. The Board provides written 
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies 
covering specific areas, such as mitigating interest rate 
and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and 
investment of excess liquidity. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 46,334 419,334 43,233 418,706

Trade and other receivables 146,694 58,163 849,640 67,601

Financial assets 64,431 6,599 64,431 6,599

Derivative financial instruments 271,565 85,674 271,565 85,674

Available-for-sale financial assets 36,751 43,799 36,751 43,799

Other non-current assets 1,673 2,500 1,673 2,500

567,448 616,069 1,267,293 624,879

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 179,015 48,535 109,533 48,535

Borrowings 777,007 637,146 777,007 637,146

Derivative financial instruments 198,377 31,929 198,377 31,929

Security deposits 51 21 21 21

Other non-current liabilities – 2,500 – 2,500

1,154,450 720,131 1,084,938 720,131
 

(a) Market risk 

(i)  Foreign exchange risk 

 Foreign exchange risk arises when future transactions are denominated in non-Australian currency or where future 
transaction values are calculated by reference to a non-Australian currency. 

 The Group and Parent entity’s risk management policy is to hedge a proportion of anticipated transactions that are 
denominated in or calculated by reference to a foreign currency. Currency derivatives such as forward currency contracts 
and currency options are used to manage foreign exchange risk. The Group and the Parent entity designate currency 
derivatives as cash flow hedges where they qualify for hedge accounting and measures them at fair value. 
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2  Financial risk management (continued)

The Group and the Parent entity hold the following financial instruments: 
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2  Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

All foreign exchange contracts were entered into by the Parent entity. The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are set out in the following table: 

Consolidated and Parent entity 2012 
AUD 

$’000

2011 
AUD 

$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

– United States Dollars (USD) – 395

– Great British Pounds (GBP) – 613

– Euros (EUR) – 23

– 1,031

Forward exchange contracts

– buy foreign currency (USD cash flow hedges) (27) (48)

– buy foreign currency (USD held for trading*) (222) –

– sell foreign currency (USD held for trading*) 183 –

– buy foreign currency (Euro cash flow hedges) (222) (283)

– buy foreign currency (JPY cash flow hedges) – (31)

– buy foreign currency (JPY held for trading*) – (245)

– sell foreign currency (JPY held for trading*) – 159

(288) (448)

Currency options

– buy foreign currency (USD held for trading*) (1) –

– sell foreign currency (USD held for trading*) 2,056 8,968

2,055 8,968

* contracts that do not meet the requirements of hedge accounting. 

(ii) Commodity price risk 

 The Group and Parent entity are exposed to electricity price 
movements in the National Electricity Market. To manage 
its electricity commodity price risk the Group and Parent 
entity have entered into a number of electricity derivatives 
(including over the counter swaps, futures, cap and option 
contracts) in accordance with the Board approved risk 
management policy. For the majority of these contracts 
the Group and Parent entity receive from counterparties 
a fixed price per megawatt hour and in return pay the 
actual observed pool price. These contracts assist the 
Group and Parent entity to provide certainty in relation to 
revenue received. 

 Electricity price risk is measured weekly through the review 
of the Group and Parent entity’s mark-to-market exposure 
of the net derivative asset and liability position. 

 The Group and the Parent entity are exposed to 
environmental certificate price movements through 
their requirement to comply with various regulatory 
environmental schemes as part of their normal business 

operations. To manage their environmental certificate price 
risk the Group and the Parent entity buy and sell these 
certificates in both the spot and forward markets. 

 The Group incurs exposure to diesel price movements 
through operating its vehicle fleet and equipment at its coal 
mine and power stations. To manage its diesel price risk, 
the Group has entered into a number of diesel derivatives. 
Two types of transactions have been entered into, either 
the Group pays a fixed Australian Dollar (AUD) price to 
counterparties and in return receives a floating AUD price 
referenced to actual observed daily closing oil price in 
United States Dollars (USD) and foreign exchange prices, 
or the Group pays a fixed USD price to counterparties 
and a separate foreign exchange forward contract is 
used to hedge the foreign currency exposure. Under 
both transaction types, the derivative settlement receipts/
payments are offset against actual physical consumption 
that is paid for monthly. These contracts assist the Group in 
managing its diesel consumption costs. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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2  Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis 

 The following commentary and tables summarise the sensitivity of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities to foreign 
exchange risk and commodity price risk. The analysis is pre-tax and is based on similar information to that which would be 
provided to management and reflects the impact on the Group and Parent entity’s financial position should certain price 
movements occur. 

 The sensitivity in the mark-to-market of the electricity derivative portfolio at balance date was investigated by observing the 
price relative impact of annualised volatility in the forward curve over a selected period under observable market conditions. 
The analysis assumes an upward movement of 15% (2011: 20%) and a downward movement of 15% (2011: 20%), which 
reflects the market sensitivity of positions held by the Group at balance date. 

 The sensitivity of the Parent entity’s financial instruments is not materially different to the amounts disclosed below. 

–15% (2011: –20%) +15% (2011: +20%)

Carrying 
amount  

$’000

Profit  
$’000

Other  
equity  
$’000

Profit  
$’000

Other  
equity  
$’000

Foreign exchange risk

USD

2012 1,989 927 200 5,684 –

2011 8,276 (5,940) 156 12,587 (104)

GBP

2012 – – – – –

2011 613 153 – (102) –

Euro

2012 (222) – 72 – (53)

2011 (260) 6 176 (4) (117)

JPY

2012 – – – – –

2011 (117) 703 575 (468) (383)

Commodity price risk

2012 71,421 59,248 160,516 (62,151) (159,430)

2011 45,225 7,236 75,662 (7,692) (76,172)

– 100 basis points + 100 basis points

Carrying  
amount  

$’000

Profit  
$’000

Other  
equity  
$’000

Profit  
$’000

Other  
equity  
$’000

Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents

2012 46,334 (463) – 463 –

2011 419,334 (4,184) – 4,184 –

Borrowings current

2012 4,783 48 – (48) –

2011 – – – – –

Borrowings non–current

2012 772,224 560 – (560) –

2011 637,146 1,070 – (1,070) –

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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2  Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk 

 Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where the Group 
may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a 
financial instrument failing to fulfil their obligation. 

 The Group utilises industry practice credit review processes 
and security instruments to manage its credit risks. The 
Group’s credit risk exposure is managed by trading with 
energy industry counterparties under International Swaps 
and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements. The Group 
has a strict credit policy for all customers trading on credit 
terms and assesses counterparty creditworthiness using 
a range of quantitative and qualitative measures. Credit 
ratings determined by a recognised rating agency are 
considered where available. Particularly in instances where 
counterparties are not rated, the Group lowers potential 
net credit impact by requiring credit support provision. 
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis 
with the result that the entity’s exposure to bad debts is 
not significant. 

 The credit exposure of derivative contracts is calculated 
utilising the value at risk methodology which takes into 
account the current market value, duration of exposure, 
diversification of the counterparty’s market operations, 
likelihood of default of the counterparty, the expected loss 
given default and the volatility of market prices. 

 Concentrations of credit risk exist for groups 
of counterparties when they have similar 
economic characteristics that would cause their ability to 
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by 
changes in economic or other conditions. A concentration 
of credit risk for derivative instruments exists predominantly 
in the Queensland electricity market. Wholesale trading 
counterparty credit risk exposures are predominantly to 
financial institutions and energy market participants that 

 

 have a credit rating of at least BBB assigned by Standard 
and Poor’s. Retail trading counterparties, which include 
large commercial and industrial customers, have ongoing 
credit evaluations performed on their financial condition 
and other qualitative measures to ensure all counterparty 
creditworthiness remain within acceptable levels. 

 The Group transacts with the Australian Energy Market 
Operator (AEMO), which is a company limited by guarantee. 
AEMO was incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 
and is owned by the Governments of the six jurisdictions 
who are members of the Australian Energy Market – 
Queensland, Victoria, South Australia, New South Wales, 
Australian Capital Territory and Tasmania. AEMO is self-
funding and has an ability to recover its costs from fees that 
participants are required to pay. As effective power system 
operations are of great importance to the Governments 
involved, support from all owners is assumed. As a result, 
credit risk with AEMO is not considered significant. 

(c) Liquidity risk 

 The Group is subject to cash flow volatility and prefers 
to minimise the risk by maintaining a highly contracted 
profile. To the extent that volatility still arises, the Group 
manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and 
undrawn facilities to meet any unexpected volatility. The 
Group uses stress testing to measure extreme cash flow 
risk. The Group has access to QTC funds as required once 
shareholding Ministers’ approval for the borrowing purpose 
has been received, subject to meeting credit criteria set by 
QTC. The QTC borrowings have no fixed repayment date, 
however the facility is assessed by QTC annually. 

 Financing arrangements 

 The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing 
facilities at the end of the reporting period: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Expiring within one year  
(bank overdraft and working capital facility) 57,217 11,000 57,217 11,000

Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) – 83,105 – 83,105

57,217 94,105 57,217 94,105

 
The overdraft facility is with the Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd and has an approved limit of $2,000,000  
(2011: $1,000,000). The working capital facility is with Queensland Treasury Corporation and has an approved limit of 
$60,000,000 (2011: $10,000,000). As at 30 June 2012, the Company had drawn down $4,783,000 against the working 
capital facility (2011:nil). 

The Group is wholly owned by the State of Queensland and has been subject to review by an international credit rating agency. 

The public long-term rating of the Group is AA+ with a negative outlook. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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Contractual maturities of 
financial liabilities 

0 to 1  
year

Between  
1 and 5 years

Over  
5 years

Nominal  
amount

Consolidated entity – at 30 June 2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non–derivatives

Trade and other payables 179,015 – – 179,015

Borrowings 66,676 266,887 781,020 1,114,583

Security deposits and retentions 51 – – 51

Total non–derivatives 245,742 266,887 781,020 1,293,649

Consolidated entity – at 30 June 2011

Non–derivatives

Trade and other payables 47,268 1,267 – 48,535

Borrowings 53,143 212,134 635,581 900,858

Security deposits and retentions 21 – – 21

Financial guarantee contracts 993 – – 993

Total non–derivatives 101,425 213,401 635,581 950,407

Contractual maturities of  
financial liabilities 

Less than  
5 months 

Greater than  
5 months

Nominal  
amount

Consolidated entity – at 30 June 2012 $’000 $’000 $’000

Derivatives

Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 28,405 10,932 39,337

Electricity contracts – held for trading 68,062 62,387 130,449

Foreign currency contracts – cash flow hedges 81 169 250

Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 144 112 256

Environmental contracts – held for trading 2,226 7,629 9,855

Diesel contracts – held for trading 505 545 1,050

99,423 81,774 181,197

Consolidated entity – at 30 June 2011

Derivatives

Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 371 15,925 16,296

Electricity contracts – held for trading 2,597 18,332 20,929

Foreign currency contracts – cash flow hedges 56 307 363

Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 244 – 244

Environmental contracts – held for trading – 1,218 1,218

3,268 35,782 39,050

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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2  Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements 

 The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for 
disclosure purposes. 

 AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value 
measurement hierarchy: 

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 Level 2 –  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as 
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 

 Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

The following tables present the Group’s assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value: 

Consolidated entity –  
at 30 June 2012 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
– trading derivatives 4,668 153,287 79,143 237,098

Derivatives used for hedging – 27,926 206 28,132

Available–for–sale financial assets 

– equity securities 5,137 – – 5,137

– other – 31,614 – 31,614

Total assets 9,805 212,827 79,349 301,981

Liabilities

Financial liabities at fair value through profit or loss 
– trading derivatives 51,441 72,072 26,648 150,161

Derivatives used for hedging – 23,698 18,818 42,516

Total liabilities 51,441 95,770 45,466 192,677

Consolidated entity – 
at 30 June 2011

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
– trading derivatives 3,395 10,814 3,340 17,549

Derivatives used for hedging – 30,816 37,939 68,755

Available–for–sale financial assets

– equity securities 5,577 3,490 – 9,067

– other – 34,732 – 34,732

Total assets 8,972 79,852 41,279 130,103

Liabilities

Financial liabities at fair value through profit or loss 
– trading derivatives 9,991 3,673 2,366 16,030

Derivatives used for hedging – 9,724 6,175 15,899

Total liabilities 9,991 13,397 8,541 31,929

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial 
assets held by the Group is the bid price as at close of trading on 30 June. These instruments are included in level 1.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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2  Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements (continued) 

 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) 
is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based 
on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is 
determined using other techniques including estimated discounted cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is 
determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period. These instruments are included in level 2 
and comprise derivative financial instruments and other financial assets (refer note 13 and note 17). 

 As at 30 June 2012 the Group and the Parent entity had certain derivative financial instruments classified as level 3. The 
following tables present the net changes in level 3 instruments for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011:

Consolidated entity Total 

$’000

Opening balance 30 June 2010 –

Transfer into level 3 32,738

Closing balance 30 June 2011 32,738

Transfers out of level 3 into level 2 (13,442)

Gains recognised in other comprehensive income 18,612

Losses recognised in statement of comprehensive income (4,025)

Closing balance 30 June 2012 33,883

 
Although the Group and Parent entity believe that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies 
or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value. For fair value measurements in levels 2 and 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy, changing one or more of the derived or unobservable inputs used could lead to a reasonably possible 
alternative fair value being reached. For fair value measurements in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, changing one or more of 
the unobservable inputs used, to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would have the following effects: 

Effect on profit or loss Effect on hedging reserve

Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Consolidated and Parent entity

Derivative financial assets 2,079 (2,236) 6,315 (6,172)

Derivative financial liabilities 25,578 (43,652) 29 (29)

Total 27,657 (45,888) 6,344 (6,201)
 
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term 
nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash 
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments. The fair value of current 
borrowings approximates the carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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3  Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and 
are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a 
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 

(a) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s 
accounting policies 

(i) Impairment of assets 

 The Group assesses impairment at the end of each 
reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to it 
that may lead to indicators of impairment of assets in 
accordance with note 1(i). For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows which 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or groups of assets (cash generating units). Key 
estimates and assumptions are made in determining the 
recoverable amount of assets including electricity demand, 
wholesale electricity prices, discount rate and the impact 
of the carbon pricing mechanism. The sources for the key 
estimates and assumptions include: 

 •   Market pricing and dispatch are based on the most 
recent management endorsed forecast. Longer term 
modelling is developed on a portfolio approach, 
based around recent observable peak/energy 
demand forecasts available at the time of evaluation, 
combined with internally developed assumptions 
around new entrants and retirements and the impact 
of renewables. 

 •  A weighted approach is taken to carbon pricing, 
combining forecasts contained in the Clean Energy 
legislation (announced during July 2011) with 
Stanwell Corporation Limited’s internally developed 
assumptions. This approach is consistent with that 
of the previous year, however, management has 
amended its weighting to assign a higher weighting 
towards a lower carbon price to take account of 
developments in international carbon markets and the 
emerging details of the Federal Government’s carbon 
pricing scheme.

 •  All other costs are based on the most recent 
management endorsed forecast.

 • Capital expenditure is based on asset life plans.

 •  Escalation, taxation and discounting were applied in 
accordance with the Group’s assumptions at the time 
of evaluation. 

 An impairment loss of $30,198,000 (2011: $234,183,000) 
was recognised in relation to generation assets. The 
primary driver of the impairment was contracted capacity 
into the future. Sensitivities in the modelling do not show 
material changes to the asset impairment test results. The 

prior year impairment was largely as a result of the Federal 
Government’s then proposed carbon pricing mechanism. 

(ii) Fair value of financial instruments 

 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in 
an active market (for example, certain types of electricity 
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. 
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of 
methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on 
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. 

(iii) Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning 

 The Group has to provide for site closure and restoration in 
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1(x)
(iii). This calculation requires the use of key assumptions 
including the timing of restoration work, legal requirements 
and a discount rate. 

 The Group recognised provisions totalling $308,377,000 
for restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning for 
assets transferred on 1 July 2011 from Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited and CS Energy Limited. The provisions 
were calculated by ascribing values and assumptions in 
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy stated in 
note 1(x)(iii). Such values may differ from the values ascribed 
by CS Energy Limited and Tarong Energy Corporation 
Limited at 30 June 2011. 

(iv) Retirement benefits 

 Various actuarial assumptions underpin the determination 
of the Group’s retirement benefit obligations. These 
assumptions and the related carrying amounts are outlined 
in note 24. 

(v) Long service leave provision 

 As discussed in note 1(y). 

(vi) Estimation of useful lives of assets 

 The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based 
on historical experience as well as the manufacturers’ 
design life. Depreciation and amortisation rates are 
reviewed annually for appropriateness. 

 Adjustments to useful life are made when considered 
necessary. Effective lives are included in note 1(q). 

(vii) Onerous contract provision 

 In the prior year, the Group recognised an onerous contract 
provision relating to the Gladstone Interconnection and 
Power Pooling Agreement. The methodology adopted to 
value this provision included a number of key assumptions 
including estimates of future wholesale pool prices, 
generation output and the appropriate discount rate for net 
present value purposes. The Gladstone Interconnection 
and Power Pooling Agreement was classified as held 
for distribution in the prior year and was transferred 
to CS Energy Limited on 1 July 2011 as part of the 
generator restructure. 
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3  Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
(continued)

(a) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s 
accounting policies (continued)

(vii) Onerous contract provision (continued)

 The Group recognised an onerous contract provision on 
1 July 2011 in relation to the Collinsville Power Purchase 
Agreement which was transferred from CS Energy Limited. 
The onerous contract provision was recognised for 
obligations under the contract, determined by taking into 
account the following assumptions: 

 • Estimated future wholesale pool prices;

 • Generation output; and

 • Discount factor.

 The estimated carrying value of the provision as at 1 July 
2011 was $136,051,000, calculated by ascribing values to 
the above assumptions. Such values may differ from the 
values ascribed by CS Energy Limited at 30 June 2011. 
If the Company’s estimate of the future wholesale pool 
prices at 1 July 2011 were 5% higher or lower, with all other 
estimated variables held constant, the estimated carrying 
value of the provision for the onerous contract as at 1 July 
2011 ranged from $131,400,000 to $140,700,000. 

 The early termination of the Collinsville Power Purchase 
Agreement was negotiated during the year and the contract 
was terminated on 30 June 2012 for a cash payment which 
was $20,538,000 below the provision value. This amount 
has been classified as an Onerous contract remeasurement 
in the statements of comprehensive income. 

(viii) Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held 
for distribution 

 Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held 
for sale or distribution in the prior year were measured at 
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell or distribute, except for deferred tax balances, assets 
and liabilities associated with employee benefits, financial 
assets and liabilities, investment property and non-current 
biological assets. The methodology adopted to value these 
assets and disposal groups included key assumptions on 
electricity demand, wholesale electricity prices and carbon 
price scenarios. 

4  Correction of error 
(a) Correction of error in statements of comprehensive 

income presentation 

 A review of the classification of items disclosed in the 
statements of comprehensive income has identified that 
expenses were disclosed based on a combination of nature 
and function. Expenses have been restated according to 
their nature in accordance with AASB 101 Presentation 
of Financial Statements. Furthermore, the change in fair 
value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge 
accounting was included in revenue. The change in fair 
value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge 
accounting is now classified as a separate line item in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

 The reclassifications did not have an impact on the balance 
sheets nor on the net result. The classification errors have 
been corrected by restating each of the affected financial 
statements line items for the prior periods as follows: 

Consolidated entity 2011 

$’000

Reclassification

$’000

2011 (Restated) 

$’000

Revenue from continuing operations 562,619 939 563,558
Other income 288,429 – 288,429
Change in fair value of derivative instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting – (939) (939)
Fuel costs – (109,840) (109,840)
Raw materials and consumables used – (119,443) (119,443)
Employee benefits expense (49,437) (2,479) (51,916)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (81,580) – (81,580)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (8,066) – (8,066)
Other expenses (37,555) (29,924) (67,479)
Onerous contract (140,951) – (140,951)
Impairment loss (251,286) – (251,286)
Finance costs (45,066) – (45,066)
Cost of sales (226,039) 226,039 –
Business support costs (35,345) 35,345 –
Research and development (302) 302 –

Loss before income tax (24,579) – (24,579)

Income tax benefit 12,587 – 12,587
Loss for the year (11,992) – (11,992)
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4  Correction of error (continued)
(a) Correction of error in statements of comprehensive income presentation (continued)

Parent entity 2011 

$’000

Reclassification 

$’000

 2011 (Restated)

 $’000

Revenue from continuing operations 554,933 939 555,872

Other income 309,225 – 309,225

Change in fair value of derivative instruments 
that do not qualify for hedge accounting – (939) (939)

Fuel costs – (109,841) (109,841)

Raw materials and consumables used – (117,811) (117,811)

Employee benefits expense (49,433) (2,479) (51,912)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (81,580) – (81,580)

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (8,066) – (8,066)

Other expenses (37,555) (29,097) (66,652)

Onerous contract (140,951) – (140,951)

Impairment loss (246,873) – (246,873)

Finance costs (45,022) – (45,022)

Cost of sales (223,814) 223,814 –

Business support costs (35,112) 35,112 –

Research and development (302) 302 –

Loss before income tax (4,550) – (4,550)

Income tax benefit 9,067 – 9,067

Profit for the year 4,517 – 4,517

b) Reclassification of prior year investment in joint venture

  The Parent entity holds interests in joint ventures which are classified as non-current available-for-sale assets (note 17). In the 
prior year, the Parent entity acquired a 1% interest in the Tri-Star joint venture for $34,732,000. This amount was classified as an 
exploration and evaluation asset in the prior year financial statements. The prior year figures have been restated to reflect this 
balance within non-current available-for-sale assets.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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5 Revenue

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

From continuing operations

Sales revenue

Sales of electricity 987,209 350,929 808,827 344,476

Coal revenue sharing arrangements 208,877 115,392 208,877 115,392

Energy services revenue 74,004 – 74,004 –

Environmental certificates 20,642 31,490 20,545 25,111

Interest 9,316 20,004 9,268 19,371

Dividends – – – 5,779

Other 11,566 38,914 11,056 38,914

1,311,614 556,729 1,132,577 549,043

Other revenue

Coal on–sale 5,312 3,505 5,312 3,505

Other operating revenue 2,119 3,324 2,013 3,324

7,431 6,829 7,325 6,829

1,319,045 563,558 1,139,902 555,872

6 Other income

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Insurance recovery 5,516 – – –

Government grants – 11,950 – 11,950

Net gain on disposal of net assets held for sale in
disposal groups – 276,479 – 297,275

Other income 7,931 – 7,403 –

13,447 288,429 7,403 309,225

(a) Net gain on disposal of net assets held for sale in disposal groups in prior year 

 The sales of EDWF Holdings 1 Pty Ltd and Wind Portfolio Pty Ltd were completed on 30 June 2011. Proceeds from the 
disposal after deducting related selling costs were $91,000,000 while the net assets disposed of were $85,600,000. The result 
was a consolidated gain on disposal of $5,400,000 before tax (after tax gain of $3,780,000). 

 An interest in a mineral development licence in Queensland was sold on 1 September 2010. Proceeds from the disposal were 
$285,100,000 while the net book value of the licence and associated land was $14,100,000. The result was a consolidated 
gain on disposal of $271,000,000 before tax (after tax gain of $189,700,000). 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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7 Expenses

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Profit before income tax includes  
the following specific expenses: 

Amounts included in other expenses 
Services and consultants 63,109 36,987 49,539 36,987

External labour 22,275 6,970 13,947 6,970

Employee benefits expenses  
Defined contribution superannuation expense 7,619 3,450 7,527 3,450

Defined benefit plan expense 2,463 990 2,463 990

Depreciation 
Buildings 2,932 773 1,460 773

Operational mining assets 12,254 – – –

Generation assets 136,620 70,021 107,805 70,021

Other property, plant and equipment 15,195 7,081 14,325 7,081

Total depreciation 18 167,001 77,875 123,590 77,875

Amortisation  
Software 19 5,636 3,705 5,628 3,705

Total depreciation and amortisation 172,637 81,580 129,218 81,580

Research and development 2,964 302 2,964 302

Finance costs  
Interest and finance charges paid/payable for financial 
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss 69,403 44,744 69,403 44,743

Provisions: unwinding of discount 31 29,780 322 23,219 279

99,183 45,066 92,622 45,022

Rental expense relating to operating leases 
Rental expense relating to operating leases 7,087 2,798 7,087 2,574

Impairment losses 
Available–for–sale financial assets 17 14,048 9,690 14,048 9,690

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 21 4,000 7,413 3,000 3,000

Property, plant and equipment 18 30,198 234,183 – 234,183

Total impairment losses 48,246 251,286 17,048 246,873
 
Impairment losses 

 The impairment of available-for-sale financial assets includes impairments recognised in relation to the listed equity securities 
interest in Blue Energy Limited and investment in the Tri-Star joint venture (note 17).

 Exploration and evaluation expenditure impairment relates to the Group’s expenditure in relation to Icon Energy Limited. The 
Group recognised partial impairment of the expenditure to date based on drilling results indicating a likelihood of reduced 
commercial gas reserves being found in the future. 

 Property, plant and equipment impairment relates to impairment of generation assets (refer to note 18). 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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8 Income tax equivalent expense

(a) Income tax equivalent expense/(benefit)

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current tax equivalent (14,908) 127,559 11,489 125,635

Deferred tax equivalent 32,387 (134,155) 11,329 (128,711)

Adjustments for current tax equivalent of prior periods 8,169 (5,991) (3,080) (5,991)

Income tax equivalent expense/(benefit) 25,648 (12,587) 19,738 (9,067)

Deferred income tax equivalent expense/(benefit) included 
in income tax equivalent expense/(benefit) comprises: 

(Increase) in deferred tax assets (note 22) 30,594 (42,821) 31,041 (41,533)

(Decrease) in deferred tax liabilities (note 30) 25,074 (89,858) (7,950) (85,132)

(Under) provision in prior year (23,281) (1,476) (11,762) (2,046)

32,387 (134,155) 11,329 (128,711)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense/(benefit) to prima facie tax payable

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before income tax 105,508 (24,579) 146,360 (4,550)

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2011 – 30%) 31,652 (7,374) 43,908 (1,365)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in 
calculating taxable income:

  Deferred tax asset derecognised in period 15,851 – 8,937 –

  Non–assessable income (30,641) – (30,641) –

  Non–deductible expenses 617 778 614 23

  Dividends paid – – – (1,734)

17,479 (6,596) 22,818 (3,076)

Adjustments for current tax equivalent of prior periods 8,169 (5,991) (3,080) (5,991)

Income tax expense/(benefit) 25,648 (12,587) 19,738 (9,067)

(c) Tax equivalent expense/(benefit) relating to items of other comprehensive income

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash flow hedges 34(a) 11,644 24,202 11,644 24,202

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans 34(b) 7,250 92 7,250 92

18,894 24,294 18,894 24,294

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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9 Restructure of the Queensland Government Owned 
Electricity Generator Corporations

(a) Background 

 The Queensland Government completed the restructure 
of the three Government owned electricity generator 
corporations – CS Energy Limited, Stanwell Corporation 
Limited and Tarong Energy Corporation Limited into two 
generator companies on 1 July 2011. As a result of the 
Generator Restructure, the Gladstone Interconnection and 
Power Pooling Agreement was transferred from Stanwell 
Corporation Limited to CS Energy Limited on 1 July 2011. 
In addition, certain subsidiaries, assets and liabilities were 
transferred to the Company as an equity contribution from 
the Queensland Government. This note sets out the details 
of the assets and liabilities transferred to and from the 
Company on 1 July 2011. 

 Net assets received from CS Energy Limited 

 Assets, liabilities and subsidiaries previously held by CS 
Energy Limited in relation to Mica Creek Power Station, 
Swanbank B and E Power Stations, with a net carrying 
value of $51,638,000 were transferred to the Group 
on 1 July 2011. 

 The transfer also included the shares in CS Energy Mica 
Creek Pty Ltd and CS North West Pty Ltd. 

 In addition to the above assets and business units, the 
Group also received net liabilities of $126,092,000 relating 
to the Collinsville Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) from 
CS Energy Limited, which included an onerous contract 
for the PPA, trade and other receivables, trade and other 
payables and related deferred tax. The onerous contract 
provision for the PPA was measured at $136,051,000 on 1 
July 2011 (refer note 3). 

 Net assets received from Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited 

 Assets and business units previously held by Tarong Energy 
Corporation Limited in relation to Tarong Power Station, 
Tarong North Power Station, coal mining assets, Tarong 
Energy Pty Ltd and its subsidiaries, with a net carrying 
value of $640,528,000, were transferred to the Group 
on 1 July 2011. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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9 Restructure of the Queensland Government Owned Electricity Generator Corporations (continued)

(b) Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities transferred

 The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at 1 July 2011 were:

Consolidated entity Notes Transfers in Transfers out Net transfers

$’000 $’000 $’000

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 41,641 – 41,641

Trade and other receivables 91,067 (21,158) 69,909

Inventories 80,742 – 80,742

Financial assets 44,542 – 44,542

Derivative financial instruments 162,534 – 162,534

Other current assets 50,829 – 50,829

Total current assets 471,355 (21,158) 450,197

 
Non-current assets

Derivative financial instruments 132,592 – 132,592

Property, plant and equipment 18 1,140,498 – 1,140,498

Intangible assets 19 80,112 (291) 79,821

Exploration and evaluation 21 6,008 – 6,008

Deferred tax assets 22 138,689 (48,408) 90,281

Retirement benefit obligation 5,007 (277) 4,730

Other non–current assets 11,123 – 11,123

Total non–current assets 1,514,029 (48,976) 1,465,053

Total assets 1,985,384 (70,134) 1,915,250

 
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (103,759) 11,794 (91,965)

Derivative financial instruments (85,434) – (85,434)

Current tax liabilities (10,912) – (10,912)

Provisions (65,131) 145,884 80,753

Other current liabilities (760) 15,046 14,286

Total current liabilities (265,996) 172,724 (93,272)

 
Non–current liabilities

Borrowings (481,289) – (481,289)

Derivative financial instruments (108,014) – (108,014)

Deferred tax liabilities 30 (152,920) – (152,920)

Provisions (408,910) 12,000 (396,910)

Other non–current liabilities (2,180) – (2,180)

Total non–current liabilities (1,153,313) 12,000 (1,141,313)

Total liabilities (1,419,309) 184,724 (1,234,585)

Net assets transferred 566,075 114,590 680,665

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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9 Restructure of the Queensland Government Owned Electricity Generator Corporations (continued)

(b) Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities transferred (continued)

Parent entity Notes Transfers in Transfers out Net transfers

$’000 $’000 $’000

Assets 

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 41,294 – 41,294

Trade and other receivables 78,955 (21,158) 57,797

Inventories 67,640 – 67,640

Financial assets 44,542 – 44,542

Derivative financial instruments 162,534 – 162,534

Other current assets 1,184 – 1,184

Total current assets 396,149 (21,158) 374,991

 
Non-current assets

Receivables 660,860 – 660,860

Derivative financial instruments 132,592 – 132,592

Property, plant and equipment 18 631,531 – 631,531

Intangible assets 19 4,823 (291) 4,532

Exploration and evaluation 21 6,008 – 6,008

Deferred tax assets 22 99,016 (48,408) 50,608

Retirement benefit obligation 5,007 (277) 4,730

Other non–current assets 6,163 – 6,163

Total non–current assets 1,546,000 (48,976) 1,497,024

Total assets 1,942,149 (70,134) 1,872,015

 
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (61,484) 11,794 (49,690)

Derivative financial instruments (85,434) – (85,434)

Current tax liabilities (10,912) – (10,912)

Provisions (55,678) 145,884 90,206

Other current liabilities (389) 15,046 14,657

Total current liabilities (213,897) 172,724 (41,173)

 
Non–current liabilities

Borrowings (481,289) – (481,289)

Derivative financial instruments (108,014) – (108,014)

Deferred tax liabilities 30 (141,273) – (141,273)

Provisions (291,653) 12,000 (279,653)

Other non–current liabilities (2,180) – (2,180)

Total non–current liabilities (1,024,409) 12,000 (1,012,409)

Total liabilities (1,238,306) 184,724 (1,053,582)

Net assets transferred 703,843 114,590 818,433

 The net assets transferred out above of $114,590,000 differs from the amount disclosed in the prior period financial report of 
$114,867,000 due to the retirement benefit obligation transferring to CS Energy Limited being omitted in the prior year disclosure. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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10 Current assets -- Cash and cash equivalents 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash at bank and on hand 6,172 1,585 3,071 957

Deposits at call 39,635 417,749 39,635 417,749

Other cash and cash equivalents 527 – 527 –

46,334 419,334 43,233 418,706

 The total balance reconciles to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year, as shown in the statements of  
cash flows. 

(a) Cash at bank and on hand 

 Cash held with banks is bearing an interest rate of 2.5% (2011: 3.0%). 

(b) Deposits at call 

 The deposits yielded floating interest rates between 4.03% and 5.52% during the year ended 30 June 2012 
(2011: 5.06% to 5.56%). 

(c) Fair value 

 The carrying amount for cash and cash equivalents reasonably equates to their fair value. 

11 Current assets -- Trade and other receivables 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade receivables 135,336 46,256 126,595 46,256

Loans to related parties – – – 9,440

Other receivables 11,358 11,907 10,542 11,905

146,694 58,163 137,137 67,601

(a) Impaired trade receivables 

 As at 30 June 2012 there were no impaired current trade receivables of the Group and Parent entity (2011: $nil). The amount of 
the provision was $nil (2011: $nil). 

 Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Provision for impairment recognised during the year – (3) – (3)

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable – 3 – 3

At 30 June – – – –

 The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss. 
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional 
cash. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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11 Current assets -- Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Past due but not impaired 

 As at 30 June 2012, there were no material trade receivables past due but not impaired (2011: $nil). 

(c) Other receivables 

 These amounts generally arise from non-electricity related transactions of the Group. Repayment terms are generally 30 days 
from invoice date. No interest is charged on outstanding balances. Collateral is not normally obtained. 

(d) Foreign exchange and interest rate risk 

 Information about the Group’s and the Parent entity’s exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in relation to trade 
and other receivables is provided in note 2. 

(e) Fair value and credit risk 

 Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value. 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of receivables 
(refer to note 2 for more information on the risk management policy of the Group and the credit quality of the entity’s 
trade receivables). 

12 Current assets -- Inventories

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Fuel at weighted average cost (work in progress) 3,170 – – –

Fuel at weighted average cost (finished goods) 32,226 7,354 32,226 7,354

Environmental certificates at fair market value 32,041 27,418 28,633 27,418

Stores at weighted average cost 51,975 14,700 32,703 14,700

Provision for write–down of stores (6,616) (727) (1,162) (727)

112,796 48,745 92,400 48,745

(a) Inventory expense 

 Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year ended 30 June 2012 amounted 
to $957,000 (2011: $nil) in the Group and Parent entity. The expense is included in Raw materials and consumables in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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13 Current assets -- Financial assets 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash collateral 64,431 6,599 64,431 6,599

 Cash collateral is provided to support the margin requirements that are required to be held to cover positions traded on the 
Sydney Futures Exchange. The classification of the cash collateral was reviewed during the year and revised from Trade 
and other receivables (note 11) to Financial assets. The prior year cash collateral balance of $6,599,000 has been restated 
accordingly.

(a)  Risk exposure and fair value measurements 

 Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk and about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value is 
provided in note 2. 

14 Current assets -- Other current assets 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred stripping 64,177 – – –

Prepayments 8,741 1,798 8,132 1,798

Other 2,576 – 2,405 –

75,494 1,798 10,537 1,798

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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15 Derivative financial instruments 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 
Current assets

Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 40,673 1,232 40,673 1,232

Electricity contracts – held for trading 120,267 1,468 120,267 1,468

Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 1,400 8,575 1,400 8,575

Environmental contracts – held for trading 5,384 959 5,384 959

Total current derivative financial instrument assets 167,724 12,234 167,724 12,234

 
Non–current assets

Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 44,951 66,893 44,951 66,893

Electricity contracts – held for trading 57,621 5,783 57,621 5,783

Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 656 552 656 552

Environmental contracts – held for trading 506 212 506 212

Diesel contracts – held for trading 107 – 107 –

Total non–current derivative financial instrument assets 103,841 73,440 103,841 73,440

 
Current liabilities

Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 40,423 153 40,423 153

Electricity contracts – held for trading 112,360 3,897 112,360 3,897

Foreign currency contracts – cash flow hedges 175 199 175 199

Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 21 245 21 245

Environmental contracts – held for trading 6,498 565 6,498 565

Diesel contracts – held for trading 1,050 – 1,050 –

Total current derivative financial instrument liabilities 160,527 5,059 160,527 5,059

 
Non–current liabilities

Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 1,127 15,383 1,127 15,383

Electricity contracts – held for trading 33,273 10,666 33,273 10,666

Foreign currency contracts – cash flow hedges 74 163 74 163

Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 19 – 19 –

Environmental contracts – held for trading 3,357 658 3,357 658

Total non–current derivative financial instrument liabilities 37,850 26,870 37,850 26,870

 
Net derivative financial instrument assets 73,188 53,745 73,188 53,745

(a) Instruments used by the Group 

 The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business primarily to hedge exposure to 
fluctuations in the spot price of electricity and forward exchange rates in accordance with the Group’s risk management policies 
(refer to note 2). 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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15 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(a) Instruments used by the Group (continued)

(i) Foreign currency contracts – cash flow hedges 

 Transaction exposures relating to foreign currencies are 
managed by entering into forward exchange contracts to 
purchase and sell foreign currencies. These transactions 
relate to the contracted purchase of capital equipment 
and operating expenditure denominated in US Dollars, 
Japanese Yen, Pounds Sterling and Euros. The Group 
classifies its forward exchange contracts which hedge 
forecast transactions as cash flow hedges and states 
them at fair value. 

 The forward contracts in place cover a proportion of 
highly probable transactions and are timed to expire as 
each cash flow is due. The contracts are settled either 
on a net basis or by taking delivery of the contracted 
foreign currency. 

 The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging 
instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the hedging 
reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective. When 
the cash flows occur for hedges of capital equipment 
purchases the Group adjusts the initial measurement 
of the capital equipment recognised in the balance 
sheet by the related amount deferred in equity. Gains 
and losses deferred in equity for hedges of revenue and 
expense transactions are reclassified in the statements 
of comprehensive income when the hedged transaction 
is recognised. 

 All foreign exchange contracts were entered into by the 
Parent entity. 

(ii)  Foreign currency contracts – held for trading 

 The Parent entity has also entered into forward exchange 
contracts and currency options which are economic 
hedges but do not satisfy the requirements for hedge 
accounting. These transactions relate to the contracted 
purchase of capital equipment denominated in Euro 
and Japanese Yen and the receipt of revenue from coal 
export sharing arrangements with prices referenced to 
US Dollars. These contracts are subject to the same risk 
management policies as all other derivative contracts (refer 
to note 2). 

 The gain or loss on derivatives entered into for economic 
hedge purposes and which are not hedge accounted for 
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
immediately. In the year ended 30 June 2012 a loss of 
$4,161,000 (2011: $7,618,000 gain) was included in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

(iii)  Electricity contracts – cash flow hedges 

 The Parent entity bids all electricity generated into the 
National Electricity Market (NEM). Cash flows received 
from the NEM can be volatile and accordingly the Parent 
entity has entered into electricity derivatives such as price 
swaps under which it is obliged to receive cash flows 
at fixed electricity prices and pay cash flows at variable 
electricity prices. 

 Swaps currently in place cover a large proportion of the 
total load to be generated over the next three years and are 
timed to settle as each cash flow is received from the NEM. 

 The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging 
instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the hedging 
reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and 
reclassified into the statements of comprehensive income 
when the hedged electricity revenue is recognised. 

 The ineffective portion that arises from cash flow hedges is 
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive 
income. In the year ended 30 June 2012 a gain of 
$20,517,000 (2011: $884,000 loss) was included in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

 All electricity contracts were entered into by the Parent entity. 

(iv) Electricity contracts – held for trading 

 The Parent entity has entered into electricity contracts 
which are economic hedges but do not satisfy the 
requirements for hedge accounting. These contracts are 
subject to the same risk management policies as all other 
derivative contracts (refer to note 2). 

 The gain or loss on derivatives entered into for economic 
hedge purposes and which are not hedge accounted for 
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
immediately. In the year ended 30 June 2012 a loss of 
$63,795,000 (2011: gain of $1,305,000) was included in the 
statements of comprehensive income. 

(v) Environmental contracts – held for trading 

 The Parent entity creates environmental certificates 
which can then be traded in the open market. To derive 
additional income from these environmental certificates the 
Parent entity trades in environmental derivative contracts, 
such as forward contracts and options. 

 The gain or loss on derivatives is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income immediately. In the 
year ended 30 June 2012 a loss of $7,697,000 (2011: 
loss of $2,095,000) was included in the statements of 
comprehensive income. 

(vi) Diesel contracts – held for trading 

 The Group has exposure to diesel price movements 
through operating its vehicle fleet and equipment. This 
exposure is managed by entering into diesel derivative 
contracts. These contracts are economic hedges and are 
subject to the same risk management policies as all other 
derivative contracts (refer to note 2). 

 The gain or loss on derivatives is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income immediately. In the 
year ended 30 June 2012 a loss of $1,833,000 (2011: $nil) 
was included in the statements of comprehensive income. 

(b) Risk exposures and fair value measurements 

 For an analysis of the sensitivity of derivatives to interest 
rate, foreign exchange and commodity price risk, see 
note 2. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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16 Non-current assets -- Receivables 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Loans to subsidiaries – – 712,503 –

 Non-current receivables comprise loans provided to subsidiaries for their net cash requirements. These loans are non-interest 
bearing and are eliminated upon consolidation.

17 Non-current assets -- Available-for-sale financial assets

 Available–for–sale financial assets includes the following classes of financial assets:

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Listed equity securities 5,137 9,067 5,137 9,067

Investments in joint ventures 31,614 34,732 31,614 34,732

36,751 43,799 36,751 43,799

 Movements for each class of available–for–sale financial assets were as follows:

Consolidated and  
Parent entity – 2012

Listed Equity 
Securities  

$’000

Investments in 
Joint Ventures 

$’000

Total  
 

$’000

At 1 July 9,067 34,732 43,799

Acquisitions – 7,000 7,000

Losses from impairment (3,930) (10,118) (14,048)

At 30 June 5,137 31,614 36,751

Consolidated and  
Parent entity – 2011 

Listed Equity 
Securities  

$’000

Investments in 
Joint Ventures 

$’000

Total  
 

$’000

At 1 July 18,757 – 18,757

Acquisitions – 34,732 34,732

Losses from impairment (9,690) – (9,690)

At 30 June 9,067 34,732 43,799

(a) Listed equity securities 

 The listed investment relates to a 7.67% (2011: 12.09%) holding in Blue Energy Limited (ASX: BUL). The acquisition included 
the shares in Blue Energy Limited at a premium to the market price and an option for a gas supply arrangement. At the date of 
acquisition the share price was 29 cents. At the reporting date the investment is required to be marked-to-market resulting in a 
reduction of the investment value. At 30 June 2012 the market value of the shares was 5.9 cents (2011: 6.4 cents) resulting in the 
recognition of an impairment in the statement of comprehensive income of $440,000 (2011: $6,200,000). A further impairment of 
$3,490,000 (2011: $3,490,000) was recognised in relation to the option to a Gas Development Alliance Agreement reflecting the 
diminution of value in the investment. The total impairment for the year was $3,930,000 (2011: $9,690,000). 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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17 Non-current assets -- Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

(b) Investments in joint ventures 

 The Company acquired a 5% interest for $7,000,000 in the ATP 337P Mahalo carve out block from Comet Ridge during 
December 2011. The Sales and Purchase Option Agreement committed the Company to fund its 5% share and Comet 
Ridge’s 35% share of funding of a reserves certification program up to $8,000,000. At the end of this program, the Company 
will have the option to purchase a further 15% or 35% of the block, based on a competitive pre-determined price. Expenditure 
on the program is accumulated as Exploration and evaluation assets. 

 The Company also owns a 1% interest (2011: 1%) in a joint venture aimed at the exploration and development of ATP 606P 
and ATP 972P. The interest was acquired from Tri-Star during the prior financial year for $34,732,000. During the current 
financial year the Company performed a review of the classification of this interest and has reclassified the interest from 
Exploration and evaluation assets to Available-for-sale assets. Prior year figures have been restated accordingly. Expenditure 
on the program is accumulated as Exploration and evaluation assets. An impairment of $10,118,000 (2011: $nil) was 
recognised during the year after a review of the carrying amount of the investment compared to the estimated resale value.

18 Non-current assets -- Property, plant and equipment 

Consolidated entity Land and 
buildings

Generation 
assets 

Operational 
mining 
assets

Other 
plant & 

equipment

Mining 
develop-

ment assets

Capital 
work in 

progress

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 
30 June 2012 
Opening net 
book amount 34,084 949,274 – 24,833 – 31,053 1,039,244

Transfers in on 1 July 71,642 770,099 131,444 20,456 88,185 58,672 1,140,498

Additions – – – – – 212,202 212,202

Transfer between 
asset classes 1,973 149,022 29,195 14,072 2,512 (196,774) –

Change in 
rehabilitation assets – 29,221 (8,713) – – – 20,508

Disposals (522) (909) (164) (289) – – (1,884)

Impairment loss – (30,198) – – – – (30,198)

Depreciation (2,932) (136,620) (12,254) (15,195) – – (167,001)

Closing net 
book amount 104,245 1,729,889 139,508 43,877 90,697 105,153 2,213,369

 
At 30 June 2012 
Cost or 
recoverable amount 147,123 3,854,088 180,972 129,437 90,697 105,153 4,507,470

Accumulated 
depreciation (42,878) (2,124,199) (41,464) (85,560) – – (2,294,101)

Net book amount 104,245 1,729,889 139,508 43,877 90,697 105,153 2,213,369

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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18 Non-current assets -- Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Consolidated entity Land and 
buildings

Generation 
assets 

Operational 
mining 
assets

Other 
plant & 

equipment

Mining 
develop-

ment assets

Capital 
work in 

progress

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended  
30 June 2011 
Opening net 
book amount 30,109 1,190,728 – 24,612 – 52,074 1,297,523

Additions – – – – – 63,440 63,440

Transfer between 
asset classes 5,240 70,407 – 7,474 – (83,121) –

Disposals (492) (7,657) – (172) – (1,340) (9,661)

Impairment loss – (234,183) – – – – (234,183)

Depreciation (773) (70,021) – (7,081) – – (77,875)

Closing net 
book amount 34,084 949,274 – 24,833 – 31,053 1,039,244

 
At 30 June 2011 
Cost or 
recoverable amount 41,851 1,951,881 – 52,412 – 31,053 2,077,197

Accumulated 
depreciation (7,767) (1,002,607) – (27,579) – – (1,037,953)

Net book amount 34,084 949,274 – 24,833 – 31,053 1,039,244

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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18 Non-current assets -- Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Parent entity Land and 
buildings

Generation 
assets

Other plant & 
equipment

Mining 
development 

assets

Capital work 
in progress

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended  
30 June 2012 
Opening net book 
amount 34,084 949,274 24,833 – 31,053 1,039,244

Transfers in on 1 July 33,921 474,183 18,071 88,185 17,171 631,531

Additions – – – – 120,976 120,976

Transfer between 
asset classes 1,344 82,080 13,655 2,512 (99,591) –

Change in 
rehabilitation assets – 30,601 – – – 30,601

Disposals (7) (692) (284) – – (983)

Depreciation (1,460) (107,805) (14,325) – – (123,590)

Closing net book 
amount 67,882 1,427,641 41,950 90,697 69,609 1,697,779

At 30 June 2012 
Cost or 
recoverable amount 104,324 3,187,241 122,154 90,697 69,609 3,574,025

Accumulated 
depreciation (36,442) (1,759,600) (80,204) – – (1,876,246)

Net book amount 67,882 1,427,641 41,950 90,697 69,609 1,697,779

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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18 Non-current assets -- Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Parent entity Land and 
buildings

Generation 
assets 

Other plant & 
equipment

Mining 
develop-

ment assets

Capital work 
in progress

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 2011 
Opening net book amount 30,109 1,190,728 24,612 – 52,074 1,297,523

Additions – – – – 63,440 63,440

Transfer between asset 
classes 5,240 70,407 7,474 – (83,121) –

Disposals (492) (7,657) (172) – (1,340) (9,661)

Impairment loss – (234,183) – – – (234,183)

Depreciation (773) (70,021) (7,081) – – (77,875)

Closing net book amount 34,084 949,274 24,833 – 31,053 1,039,244

 
At 30 June 2011 
Cost or recoverable amount 41,851 1,951,881 52,412 – 31,053 2,077,197

Accumulated depreciation (7,767) (1,002,607) (27,579) – – (1,037,953)

Net book amount 34,084 949,274 24,833 – 31,053 1,039,244

(a) Leased assets 

 Included within Property, plant and equipment are assets subject to cross border leases with carrying amounts as follows: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Leased assets

Cost 1,462,902 1,472,869 1,462,902 1,472,869

Accumulated depreciation (837,754) (792,823) (837,754) (792,823)

Net book amount 625,148 680,046 625,148 680,046

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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19 Non-current assets -- Intangible assets 

Consolidated entity Software Mining Lease  
and Information

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 2012

At 1 July 2011 9,315 – 9,315

Transfers in on 1 July 4,834 75,278 80,112

Additions 4,272 – 4,272

Amortisation charge (5,636) – (5,636)

At 30 June 2012 12,785 75,278 88,063

 
At 30 June 2012

Cost 43,516 75,278 118,794

Accumulated amortisation (30,731) – (30,731)

Net book amount 12,785 75,278 88,063

Consolidated entity Software Mining Lease  
and Information

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 2011

At 1 July 2010 4,351 – 4,351

Additions 8,960 – 8,960

Amortisation charge (3,705) – (3,705)

Transfers to disposal groups held for 
distribution (291) – (291)

At 30 June 2011 9,315 – 9,315

At 30 June 2011

Cost 33,547 – 33,547

Accumulated amortisation and 
impairment (24,232) – (24,232)

Net book amount 9,315 – 9,315

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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19 Non-current assets -- Intangible assets (continued)

Parent entity Software Total

$’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 2012

At 1 July 9,315 9,315

Transfers in on 1 July 4,823 4,823

Additions 4,272 4,272

Amortisation charge (5,628) (5,628)

At 30 June 12,782 12,782

At 30 June 2012

Cost 43,261 43,261

Accumulated amortisation (30,479) (30,479)

Net book amount 12,782 12,782

 

Parent entity Software Total

$’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 2011

At 1 July 4,351 4,351

Additions 8,960 8,960

Amortisation charge (3,705) (3,705)

Transfers to disposal groups held for distribution (291) (291)

At 30 June 9,315 9,315

At 30 June 2011

Cost 33,547 33,547

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (24,232) (24,232)

Net book amount 9,315 9,315

Mining lease and information 

 The Kunioon coal resource was transferred in from Tarong Energy Corporation Limited as a result of the Generator Restructure. 
Additional economic coal reserves at the Meandu Mine were confirmed during the 2009 financial year which enabled the Group 
to defer a full-scale development and transition to the Kunioon coal resource. Activities relating to the transition to the Kunioon 
coal resource have been deferred, however the resource continues to be part of the Group’s long-term fuel supply plan. 
Amortisation of the Kunioon mining lease and mining information will occur over the life of the Kunioon Mine using a units of 
production method and reflecting the pattern of economic benefit to the Group in accordance with note 1(r)(ii). Amortisation will 
commence once the Kunioon Mine is operational. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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20  Non-current assets -- Biological assets 

 The Group has three timber plantations situated at Rockhampton, the Tully River and Tarong. 

 Rockhampton 

 Stanwell Corporation Limited is a joint venture partner in a 99-hectare native (mixed eucalypt species) hardwood plantation 
on Stanwell Power Station non-operational land. Planted in 2008, Stanwell Corporation Limited works with the joint venture 
partner to manage the plantation in accordance with good forestry and environmental practice. To maximise return on 
investment, forest management and harvest planning will consider both market opportunities and the biological requirements 
of the plantation. 

 Tully River 

 In 2010, Stanwell Corporation Limited planted a 20-hectare native (mixed species) timber plantation on the King Ranch 
property. The plantation comprises a mix of native rainforest and eucalypt species. The plantation was impacted heavily by 
Cyclone Yasi in 2011, with more than 30% of the plantation lost. Stanwell will maintain the woodlot and monitor opportunities 
for potential future use of the resource. 

 Tarong 

 Stanwell Corporation Limited was transferred a joint venture interest in a 79-hectare hoop pine plantation in the Tarong area 
from Tarong Energy Corporation Limited on 1 July 2011. The principle activity of the joint venture is the commercial production 
of plantation timber. 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Plantation growing timber

At 1 July 513 424 513 424

Additions – 89 – 89

Other (50) – (50) –

Carrying amount at 30 June 463 513 463 513

(a)  Financial risk management strategies 

 The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from changes in the price of timber. The Group does not anticipate that timber 
prices will decline significantly in the foreseeable future and, therefore, has not entered into derivative or other contracts to 
manage the risk of a decline in timber prices. The Group reviews its outlook for timber prices regularly in considering the need 
for active financial risk management. 

(b) Contractual obligations 

 See note 39 for disclosure of commitments to develop or acquire biological assets. 

21  Non-current assets -- Exploration and evaluation 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 7,485 6,132 3,072 6,000

Transfers in on 1 July 6,008 – 6,008 –

Expenditure incurred 9,302 8,766 4,852 72

Amortisation charge (1,311) – (1,311) –

Impairment loss 7 (4,000) (7,413) (3,000) (3,000)

At 30 June 17,484 7,485 9,621 3,072

 The ultimate recoupment of costs carried forward for exploration and evaluation phases is dependant on the successful 
development and commercial exploitation or sale of the areas of interest.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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22  Non-current assets -- Deferred tax assets 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

The balance comprises temporary  
differences attributable to:

Retirement benefit obligations 4,754 – 4,754 –

Provisions and accrued employee entitlements 
not currently deductible 18,552 56,769 17,523 56,769

Sundry items 124,776 247 84,361 247

Investment writedown 761 9,982 761 8,658

Transfers to disposal groups held for distribution – (48,408) – (48,408)

Total deferred tax assets 148,843 18,590 107,399 17,266

 
Deferred tax assets expected to be 
recovered within 12 months 25,639 6,314 19,580 6,314

Deferred tax assets expected to be recovered 
after more than 12 months 123,204 12,276 87,819 10,952

148,843 18,590 107,399 17,266

Movements –  
Consolidated entity 

Employee 
benefits

Retirement 
benefit 

obligation

Investment 
impairment

Other Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 5,469 – 9,982 3,139 18,590

Transfers in on 1 July 11,779 (736) – 127,646 138,689

(Charged)/credited

– to profit or loss 1,304 (1,760) (9,221) (20,917) (30,594)

– to other comprehensive income – 7,250 – – 7,250

– tax losses carried forward – – – 14,908 14,908

At 30 June 2012 18,552 4,754 761 124,776 148,843
 
At 1 July 2010 5,235 – 4,851 14,091 24,177

(Charged)/credited 

– to profit or loss 234 – 5,131 37,456 42,821

Transfers to disposal groups held 
for distribution – – – (48,408) (48,408)

At 30 June 2011 5,469 – 9,982 3,139 18,590

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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22  Non-current assets -- Deferred tax assets (continued)

Movements – Parent entity Employee 
benefits

Retirement 
benefit 

obligation

Investment 
impairment

Other Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 5,469 – 8,658 3,139 17,266

Transfers in on 1 July 10,560 (736) – 89,192 99,016

(Charged)/credited

– to profit or loss 1,494 (1,760) (7,897) (22,878) (31,041)

– to other comprehensive income – 7,250 – – 7,250

– tax losses carried forward – – – 14,908 14,908

At 30 June 2012 17,523 4,754 761 84,361 107,399
 
At 1 July 2010 5,235 – 4,851 14,055 24,141

(Charged)/credited

– to profit or loss 234 – 3,807 37,492 41,533

Transfers to disposal groups held 
for distribution – – – (48,408) (48,408)

At 30 June 2011 5,469 – 8,658 3,139 17,266

23 Non-current assets -- Other non-current assets 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred stripping 20,536 – – –

Deferred receivable – 2,500 – 2,500

Other 1,673 – 1,673 –

22,209 2,500 1,673 2,500

24 Non-current liabilities -- Retirement benefit obligations 

(a)  Superannuation plan 

 The Group contributes on behalf of its employees to a number of defined contribution funds as well as to the industry multiple 
employer superannuation scheme, managed by Energy Super, which consists of a defined benefit fund and a defined 
contribution fund. The defined benefit section provides lump sum benefits based on years of service and average salary. The 
defined contribution section receives fixed contributions from the Group and the Group’s legal or constructive obligation is 
limited to these contributions. 

 The following sets out details in respect of the defined benefit section only. The expense recognised in relation to the defined 
contribution plan is disclosed in note 7. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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24 Non-current liabilities -- Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(b)  Balance sheet amounts 

 The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows: 

Consolidated and Parent entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (109,699) (29,565)

Fair value of defined benefit plan assets 96,231 32,228

(13,468) 2,663

 
Net (liability)/asset before adjustment for contributions tax (13,468) 2,663

Adjustment for contributions tax (2,377) 470

Net (liability)/asset in the balance sheet (15,845) 3,133

(c) Categories of plan assets 

 The major categories of plan assets are as follows: 

Consolidated and Parent entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Cash 9,623 1,611

Fixed interest securities 9,623 4,834

Domestic equities 26,946 9,024

Private equity 19,246 6,446

International equities 21,170 7,090

Unlisted property 9,623 3,223

96,231 32,228

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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24 Non-current liabilities -- Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(d) Reconciliations 

Consolidated and Parent entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation, which is partly funded:

Balance at 1 July 29,095 25,870

Current service cost 3,376 1,423

Interest cost 3,631 1,277

Contributions by plan participants 1,146 439

Actuarial (gains)/losses 20,947 1,186

Estimated benefit payments, insurance and tax 
plus net transfers 53,881 (1,100)

Balance at 30 June 112,076 29,095

 
Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets:

Balance at 1 July 32,228 28,742

Expected return on plan assets 4,559 1,710

Actuarial (losses)/gains (3,221) 879

Contributions by Group companies 2,923 1,051

Contributions by plan participants 1,146 439

Estimated benefit payments, insurance and tax  
plus net transfers 58,611 (593)

Other cash flow (15) –

Balance at 30 June 96,231 32,228

(e) Amounts recognised in statements of comprehensive income 

 The amounts recognised in statements of comprehensive income are as follows: 

Consolidated and Parent entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Current service cost 3,376 1,423

Interest cost 3,631 1,277

Expected return on plan assets (4,559) (1,710)

Other 15 –

Total included in employee benefits expense 2,463 990

Actual (loss)/gain on plan assets 1,338 2,589

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2
St

an
w

el
l F

in
an

ci
al

 R
es

ul
ts

 2
01

2



90

24 Non-current liabilities -- Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(f)  Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 

Consolidated and Parent entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Cumulative actuarial losses at 1 July (1,448) (1,141)

Actuarial losses (24,168) (307)

(25,616) (1,448)

(g)  Reconciliation of net liability/(asset) recognised in balance sheet

Consolidated and Parent entity

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Net asset recognised in balance sheet at 1 July (3,133) (3,379)

Net asset transferred in on 1 July (4,730) –

Estimated company contributions (2,923) (1,051)

Expense recognised in income statement 2,463 990

Loss in year 24,168 307

Net liability/(asset) recognised in  
balance sheet at 30 June 15,845 (3,133)

(h)  Principal actuarial assumptions

 The principal actuarial assumptions used (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Discount rate 3.1% 5.2% 3.1% 5.2%

Expected return on plan assets 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

Future salary increases 4.0% 4.5% 4.0% 4.5%

 The expected rate of return on plan assets has been calculated based on the current asset allocation to each of the major asset 
classes and the expected future investment return for each of these asset classes. This resulted in a selection of a 6% (2011: 
6%) expected return (net of investment fees and tax). 

(i) Employer contributions 

 Employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the plan are based on recommendations by the plan’s actuary. Actuarial 
assessments are made at no more than three yearly intervals, and the last such assessment was made as at 1 July 2010 by 
Sunsuper Financial Services Pty Ltd. 

 The objective of funding is to ensure that the benefit entitlements of members and other beneficiaries are fully funded by the time 
they become payable. To achieve this objective, the actuary has adopted a method of funding benefits known as the projected 
unit credit method. This funding method seeks to have the benefits funded by means of a total contribution which is expected to 
be a consistent percentage of members’ salaries over their working lifetime. 

 Using the projected unit credit method and particular actuarial assumptions as to the plan’s future experience, the actuary 
recommended in the actuarial review as at 1 July 2010, the payment of employer contributions to the fund of 12% of defined 
benefit members salaries. A contribution rate of 12% (2011: 12%) has been adopted by the Group. 

 Total employer contributions expected to be paid by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 are $2,844,000. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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24 Non-current liabilities -- Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(j)  Historic summary 

 Consolidated and Parent entity 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Defined benefit plan obligation (109,699) (29,565) (25,870) (24,355) (24,353)

Plan assets 96,231 32,228 28,742 27,131 26,705

(Deficit)/surplus (13,468) 2,663 2,872 2,776 2,352

Experience adjustments arising 
on plan liabilities (16,217) 1,186 (601) 1,430 (1,092)

Experience adjustments arising 
on plan assets (7,951) (879) 809 (3,031) (7,366)

(k)  Restructure of the Queensland Government Owned Electricity Generator Corporations 

 As part of the restructure which was effected on 1 July 2011, a net retirement benefit surplus value of $4,730,000 was 
transferred to the Group. 

25 Current liabilities -- Trade and other payables 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade payables 34,327 16,759 29,049 16,759

Other payables and 
accrued expenses 144,688 31,776 80,484 31,776

179,015 48,535 109,533 48,535

 Trade and other payables are generally due within 30 days. 

 The carrying value of trade payables approximates their fair value. 

(a) Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months 

 The current provision for employee benefits included within other payables and accrued expenses includes accrued annual 
leave and vesting sick leave. The entire amount of the provision is presented as current, since the Group does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Group does not 
expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months. The following 
amounts reflect leave that is not to be expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months. 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Leave obligations expected to be settled after  
12 months 6,003 1,267 5,222 1,267

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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26 Current liabilities -- Borrowings 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Unsecured 

Loans from Queensland Treasury Corporation 4,783 – 4,783 –

 The loan from QTC represents a Working Capital Facility, used for short-term funding. The terms of the facility are reviewed 
annually. Interest is charged (or earned) based on an interest rate that changes daily based on the Reserve Bank of Australia’s 
official cash rate. 

27 Current liabilities -- Provisions 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Employee benefits 23,114 6,798 21,351 6,798

Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning 12,615 773 11,187 773

Dividends 63,900 – 63,900 –

99,629 7,571 96,438 7,571

(a) Movements in provisions

 Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Consolidated entity  
2012

Dividends Restoration, 
rehabilitation and 
decommissioning

Onerous  
contracts

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 – 773 – 773

Transfers in on 1 July – 10,679 40,619 51,298

Amounts used/paid during the year – (7,197) (40,619) (47,816)

Additional provisions recognised 63,900 8,360 – 72,260

At 30 June 2012 63,900 12,615 – 76,515

Consolidated entity  
2011 

Dividends Restoration, 
rehabilitation and 
decommissioning

Onerous  
contracts

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2010 116,700 678 4,400 121,778

Amounts used/paid during the year – (363) – (363)

Additional provisions recognised – 458 140,951 141,409

Dividends paid (116,700) – – (116,700)

Transfers to disposal groups held  
for distribution – – (145,351) (145,351)

At 30 June 2011 – 773 – 773

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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27 Current liabilities -- Provisions (continued)

(a) Movements in provisions (continued)

Parent entity  
2012

Dividends Restoration, 
rehabilitation and 
decommissioning

Onerous  
contracts

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 – 773 – 773

Transfers in on 1 July – 2,610 40,619 43,229

Amounts used/paid during the year – (1,629) (40,619) (42,248)

Additional provisions recognised 63,900 9,433 – 73,333

At 30 June 2012 63,900 11,187 – 75,087

Parent entity  
2011 

Dividends Restoration, 
rehabilitation and 
decommissioning

Onerous  
contracts

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2010 116,700 678 4,400 121,778

Amounts used/paid during the year – (363) – (363)

Additional provisions recognised – 458 140,951 141,409

Dividends paid (116,700) – – (116,700)

Transfers to disposal groups held  
for distribution – – (145,351) (145,351)

At 30 June 2011 – 773 – 773

(b)  Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months 

 The current provision for long service leave includes all unconditional entitlements where employees have completed the 
required period of service and also those where employees are entitled to pro-rata payments in certain circumstances. 
However, based on past experience, the Group does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued long service 
leave or require payment within the next 12 months. The following amounts reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or 
paid within the next 12 months. 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Long service leave obligation  
expected to be settled after 12 months 20,862 6,549 19,099 6,549

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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28  Current liabilities -- Other current liabilities

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred revenue 2,405 – 2,405 –

Security deposits and retentions 51 21 21 21

2,456 21 2,426 21

29  Non-current liabilities -- Borrowings 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Unsecured borrowings 772,224 637,146 772,224 637,146

 Further information relating to loans from related parties is set out in note 40. 

(a)  Unsecured borrowings 

 The unsecured borrowings are provided by Queensland 
Treasury Corporation (QTC). The borrowings have no fixed 
repayment date however the facility is assessed by QTC 
annually. An amount of $568,105,000 (2011: $83,105,000) 
is held in a debt offset account, and is reported as a set-off 
against non-current borrowings. The net balance after offset 
is $772,224,000 (2011: $637,146,000). Interest rates on the 
unsecured borrowings are at book rate which is reviewed 
and updated as necessary once per year to reflect the 
evolving market rate of interest that QTC pays to investors to 
service the underlying bond funding. The total interest rate 
payable includes a Competitive Neutrality Fee payable to 
QTC, representing the difference between the cost at which 
QTC is able to source debt and the estimated cost of debt 
for the Economic entity were it to be a stand-alone entity not 
owned by the Queensland Government. The Competitive 
Neutrality Fee can be adjusted up or down according to 
changes in credit quality of the Economic entity and market 
changes to the relative cost of debt compared with a highly-
rated government issuer. 

 In addition to the unrestricted access to funds as noted 
above, the Corporation has a $60,000,000 Working 
Capital Facility with QTC which meets short-term funding 
requirements. At 30 June 2012, $4,783,000 of the facility 
was utilised (2011: nil) (refer note 26). 

(b) Fair value 

 The fair value of unsecured borrowings for the Group 
and Parent entity at 30 June 2012 was $864,357,000 
(2011: $655,602,000) compared to a carrying amount of 
$772,224,000 (2011: $637,146,000). Quoted market prices 
or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used to estimate 
fair value for long-term debt for disclosure purposes. 

(c) Risk exposures 

 For an analysis of the sensitivity of borrowings to interest 
rate risk refer to note 2. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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30  Non-current liabilities -- Deferred tax liabilities 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

The balance comprises temporary 
differences attributable to:  
Differences in depreciation and amortisation of property, 
plant and equipment for accounting and income tax 
equivalent purposes 250,327 206,938 252,866 206,938

Expenditure currently deductible for tax equivalent purposes 
but deferred and amortised for accounting purposes 114,600 10,292 66,031 10,292

Revenue recognised in accounting revenue but deferred for 
tax purposes 18,881 3,554 16,448 3,554

Defined benefit plan asset – 940 – 940

Derivative assets 24,181 16,123 24,181 16,123

407,989 237,847 359,526 237,847

Deferred tax liabilities expected to be settled within 
12 months 98,951 16,196 70,533 16,196

Deferred tax liabilities expected to be settled after more 
than 12 months 309,038 221,651 288,993 221,651

407,989 237,847 359,526 237,847

Movements –  
Consolidated entity

Property, plant 
and equipment

Defined benefit 
plan

Derivatives Other Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 206,938 940 16,123 13,846 237,847

Transfers in on 1 July 51,993 – 45,345 55,582 152,920

Charged/(credited)

– profit or loss (12,396) (940) (25,643) 64,053 25,074

– to other  
 comprehensive income 3,792 – (11,644) – (7,852)

At 30 June 2012 250,327 – 24,181 133,481 407,989

At 1 July 2010 296,661 1,014 40,851 13,473 351,999

Charged/(credited)

– profit or loss (89,723) 18 (526) 373 (89,858)

– to other  
 comprehensive income – (92) (24,202) – (24,294)

At 30 June 2011 206,938 940 16,123 13,846 237,847

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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30  Non-current liabilities -- Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Movements –  
Parent entity

Property, plant 
and equipment

Defined benefit 
plan

Derivatives Other Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 206,938 940 16,123 13,846 237,847

Transfers in on 1 July 72,586 – 45,345 23,342 141,273

Charged/(credited)

– profit or loss (26,656) (940) (25,645) 45,291 (7,950)

– to other  
 comprehensive income – – (11,644) – (11,644)

At 30 June 2012 252,868 – 24,179 82,479 359,526

At 1 July 2010 291,935 1,014 40,851 13,473 347,273

Charged/(credited)

– profit or loss (84,997) 18 (526) 373 (85,132)

– to other 
 comprehensive income – (92) (24,202) – (24,294)

At 30 June 2011 206,938 940 16,123 13,846 237,847

31 Non-current liabilities -- Provisions

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Employee benefits – long service leave 4,060 1,895 3,927 1,895

Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning (a) 334,158 2,868 217,834 2,868

338,218 4,763 221,761 4,763

(a) Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning 

 Provision is made for site rehabilitation costs expected to be incurred upon the closure of each operating site, including 
corporate offices. The estimated costs include reclamation, plant closure, waste site closure, monitoring activities and make-
good. The costs have been determined on the basis of current costs, current legal requirements and current technology. The 
calculation of the provision is in accordance with note 1(x)(iii). 

(b) Movements in provisions 

 Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out in the following tables: 

Consolidated entity  
2012

Restoration, rehabilitation 
and decommissioning

Onerous contracts Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 2,868 – 2,868

Transfers in on 1 July 297,698 99,091 396,789

Unwinding of discount 16,373 13,407 29,780

Additional provision recognised 17,219 – 17,219

Amounts paid during the year – (91,960) (91,960)

Reversal of unused amounts – (20,538) (20,538)

At 30 June 2012 334,158 – 334,158

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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31 Non-current liabilities -- Provisions (continued)

(b) Movements in provisions (continued)

Consolidated entity  
2011

Restoration, rehabilitation 
and decommissioning

Onerous contracts Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2010 1,919 12,000 13,919

Transfers in on 1 July 685 – 685

Unwinding of discount 149 – 149

Additional provision recognised 115 – 115

Transfers to disposal groups 
classified as held for sale – (12,000) (12,000)

At 30 June 2011 2,868 – 2,868

Parent entity  
2012

Restoration, rehabilitation 
and decommissioning

Onerous contracts Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2011 2,868 – 2,868

Transfers in on 1 July 182,105 99,091 281,196

Unwinding of discount 9,812 13,407 23,219

Additional provision recognised 23,049 – 23,049

Amounts paid during the year – (91,960) (91,960)

Reversal of unused amounts – (20,538) (20,538)

At 30 June 2012 217,834 – 217,834

Parent entity  
2011

Restoration, rehabilitation 
and decommissioning

Onerous contracts Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2010 1,919 12,000 13,919

Transfers in on 1 July 685 – 685

Unwinding of discount 149 – 149

Additional provision recognised 115 – 115

Transfers to disposal groups 
classified as held for sale – (12,000) (12,000)

At 30 June 2011 2,868 – 2,868

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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32 Non-current liabilities -- Other non-current liabilities 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Other non–current liabilities 2,583 2,500 2,583 2,500

33 Contributed equity

(a) Share capital

Consolidated and  
Parent entity

Consolidated and  
Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Shares Shares $’000 $’000

Ordinary voting (A class), fully paid 4 4 – –

Ordinary non–voting (B class), fully paid 924,568,658 924,568,658 1,214,693 544,569

Total Consolidated and Parent entity contributed equity 924,568,662 924,568,662 1,214,693 544,569

(b) Movements in ordinary non–voting (B class)

Date Details Number of shares $’000

1 July 2010 Opening balance 924,568,658 544,569

30 June 2011 Closing balance 924,568,658 544,569

1 July 2011 Opening balance 924,568,658 544,569

1 July 2011 Transfer of net assets and subsidiaries by regulation – 818,433

1 July 2011 Transfer of other owner contributions – (148,309)

30 June 2012 Closing balance 924,568,658 1,214,693

(c) Ordinary shares 

 The Company is wholly owned by the Queensland Government. 

 Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and holders of A class shares are 
entitled to one vote per share at a shareholders’ meeting. 

 In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after creditors and are fully entitled to any proceeds 
of liquidation. 

(d)  Capital risk management 

 The Group’s and the Parent entity’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going 
concern, so that they can continue to maintain the required credit rating for a Government Owned Corporation generator 
operating in a deregulated electricity market, to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

 Consistent with others in the industry, the Group and the Parent entity monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This 
ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the balance sheets). Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance sheets plus 
debt. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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33 Contributed equity (continued)

(d)  Capital risk management (continued)

 During 2012, the Group’s board continued to support a target debt range of between 30% and 50% of total capital. The 
gearing ratios at 30 June were as follows: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Total borrowings 26, 29 777,007 637,146 777,007 637,146

Total equity 1,259,153 610,421 1,450,554 613,494

Total capital 2,036,160 1,247,567 2,227,561 1,250,640

Gearing ratio 38.2% 51.1% 34.9% 50.9%

34 Reserves and retained earnings

(a) Reserves

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash flow hedges 9,951 37,121 9,951 37,121

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Movements: 

Cash flow hedges  
Balance at 1 July 37,121 93,591 37,121 93,591

Gain on revaluation – gross:  
electricity contracts 53,541 26,593 53,541 26,593

Loss on revaluation – gross:  
foreign exchange contracts (28) (2,019) (28) (2,019)

Transfer to profit or loss – gross:  
electricity contracts (92,631) (105,101) (92,631) (105,101)

Transfer to profit or loss – gross:  
foreign currency contracts 138 123 138 123

Transfer to property, plant and equipment 
– gross: foreign currency contracts 166 (268) 166 (268)

Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 30 11,644 24,202 11,644 24,202

Balance 30 June 9,951 37,121 9,951 37,121

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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34 Reserves and retained earnings (continued)

(b) Retained earnings 

 Movements in retained earnings were as follows: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 177,040 190,070 180,113 176,634

Subsidiary accumulated losses transferred in on  
1 July (137,767) – – –

Net profit for the year 79,860 (11,992) 126,622 4,517

Dividends 35 (63,900) – (63,900) –

Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans (24,168) (307) (24,168) (307)

Deferred tax equivalent on actuarial losses on 
defined benefit plans 7,250 92 7,250 92

Derecognition of deferred tax assets (or timing 
difference) previously recognised within equity (3,792) – – –

Other (14) (823) (7) (823)

At 30 June 34,509 177,040 225,910 180,113

(c) Nature and purpose of other reserves 

(i) Cash flow hedges 

 The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are recognised in 
other comprehensive income, as described in note 1(o). Amounts are reclassified to profit or loss when the associated hedged 
transaction affects profit or loss. 

35 Dividends 

(a) Ordinary shares

Consolidated and Parent entity

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2012 of  
6.9 cents (2011: 0.0 cents) per fully paid share to  
be paid on 31 December 2012 

  Final dividend declared 63,900 –

 Pursuant to the National Tax Equivalents Regime (refer note 1(e)) the Group is not required to maintain a franking account. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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36 Key management personnel disclosures 

(a) Directors 

 The following persons were directors of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries during the 
financial year. 

 Chairman – non-executive  
G J Carpenter (1 July 2011 to 31 May 2012)  
The Hon. W R Parer AM (31 May 2012 to 30 June 2012) 

 Non-executive directors  
K L Collins  
G F Crow SC (1 July 2011 to 20 June 2012)  
A A Fitzpatrick  
R J Kempnich  
J A Leaver (1 July 2011 to 20 June 2012)  
S R Rochester  
The Hon. R J Welford (1 July 2011 to 28 June 2012) 

 On 1 July 2011 a new Board of Directors was appointed 
for the Group. The composition of this board included 
continuing directors Ms Leaver and Mr Crow. Mr Carpenter 
was appointed as Chairman of the Board and he held this 
position until his resignation on 31 May 2012. Mr Crow, Ms 
Leaver and the Hon. Welford also resigned from the board 
during the year. The Hon. Parer AM was appointed as the 
Chairman of the Board from 31 May 2012 and Mr Breslin 
was appointed as a member of the board on 5 July 2012. 

(b) Other key management personnel 

 The following positions, all of which are employed by 
Stanwell Corporation Limited, had the authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the Parent entity and subsidiaries during the 
financial year: 

 Chief Executive Officer1 

Chief Financial Officer1 

Chief Operating Officer  
Executive General Manager Integration  
Executive General Manager Human Resources and 
Stakeholder Management  
Executive General Manager Marketing and Trading1 

Executive General Manager Governance and 
Corporate Strategy 

 Ms Gluer resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 26 
March 2012 and Mr Van Breda was appointed as Acting 
Chief Executive Officer. On 18 July 2012 Mr Van Breda 
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited. 

(c) Remuneration of key management personnel 

 A summary of the remuneration of the directors of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited and other key management personnel 
of the Group is set out on the following table: 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Short-term employee benefits 2,607 2,282

Post-employment benefits 297 208

Long-term benefits 49 33

2,953 2,523

 Amounts disclosed for remuneration of key management 
personnel exclude insurance premiums paid by the 
Group or related parties in respect of officers’ liabilities 
and legal expenses insurance contracts, as the insurance 
policies do not specify premiums paid in respect of 
individual officers. 

 Directors 

 Directors’ remuneration is determined by the shareholding 
Ministers. In addition, the shareholding Ministers have 
determined remuneration payable to directors who 
are members of various board committees. Directors’ 
remuneration comprises cash salary, committee fees, and 
superannuation contributions. 

 Directors’ compensation does not include insurance 
premiums paid by the Company or related parties in 
respect of directors’ and officers’ liabilities and legal 
expenses, as the insurance policies do not specify 
premiums paid in respect of individual directors. 
Further, the directors do not receive any performance 
related compensation. 

 Other key management personnel 

 Remuneration policy 

 Stanwell Corporation Limited’s remuneration policy has 
three distinct objectives: 

 •  to ensure all employees are recognised and rewarded 
for their performance in a fair and equitable way;

 •  to ensure the remuneration paid to employees is 
competitive, enabling the Group to attract and retain 
employees capable of meeting the Group’s needs; 
and

 •  to reward employees for achieving pre-
determined corporate, business unit and personal 
performance targets.

1  During part of the year these positions were performed by other senior executives or corporate employees while the permanent employee performed 
other duties or was on leave. The following disclosures relate to the total compensation provided by Stanwell Corporation Limited during the year in 
respect of each position. 
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36 Key management personnel disclosures  (continued)

(c) Remuneration of key management personnel 
(continued)

 Remuneration packages for the Chief Executive Officer 
and other key management personnel comprise the 
following components:

 •  base salary, which is payable in cash and based on 
the general market rate, as assessed by external 
consultants;

 •  other benefits, including motor vehicle allowances, 
private health insurance and access to a pool car park; 

 •  retirement benefits delivered under defined 
contribution superannuation funds nominated by 
the key management personnel apart from one key 
management person who is provided defined lump 
sum benefits based on years of service and final 
average salary; and 

 •  at-risk performance incentives, that may be payable 
annually in cash, depending upon satisfaction of 
key criteria.

 Link between remuneration paid and the performance 
of the Group 

 Directors’ remuneration is not directly linked to the 
performance of the Group, with any remuneration increases 
being determined by the shareholding Ministers. Directors 
do not receive any performance related remuneration. 

 The rate of remuneration increases for the Chief Executive 
Officer and other key management personnel is 
determined with regard to wage movements and individual 
performance. Remuneration increases are applied after 
personal performance reviews, consideration of the Group’s 
performance and review and approval by the board. 

 At-risk performance incentive payments of the Chief 
Executive Officer and other key management personnel 
are capped at 15% of total fixed remuneration (base salary, 
motor vehicle allowance, superannuation and access to 
a pool car park benefit where applicable). The amounts 
payable are tied to the achievement of pre-determined 
corporate, business unit and individual performance targets 
as approved by the board. 

 Service agreements 

 Service agreements are not in place for directors. 

 The Chief Executive Officer’s appointment is approved 
by the shareholding Ministers upon recommendation 
of the board. The remuneration and other terms of 
employment for the Chief Executive Officer are specified 
in an employment contract. The contract provides for the 
provision of performance-related cash bonuses and other 
benefits including motor vehicle allowance, health insurance 
and access to a pool car park.  
 
 

 Other major provisions of the Chief Executive Officer’s 
remuneration contract are set out below: 

 •  term of contract – three years, commencing 29 
January 2007 and extended for a further two years 
until 28 January 2012. A new three year contract 
was entered into on 29 January 2012, however this 
contract terminated when the then Chief Executive 
Officer resigned effective 26 March 2012; 

 •  payment of termination benefit on early termination 
by the Group, except for serious misconduct or poor 
performance, equal to two weeks’ salary (with a 
minimum of 13 weeks and maximum of 52 weeks 
salary) for each year of continuous service, 20% of 
residual salary value of the contract and any accrued 
entitlements; and 

 •  payment of 12 weeks’ salary upon expiry of the 
agreement, and any accrued entitlements. 

 Senior executive appointments have been approved by the 
board. The remuneration and other terms of employment 
for these roles are specified in employment contracts. The 
contracts provide for performance-related cash bonuses 
and other benefits including motor vehicle allowance, health 
insurance and access to a pool car park. 

 The Executive General Manager Marketing and Trading, 
who commenced in the role on 23 July 2008, is employed 
under another contract arrangement which is not for a fixed 
term and therefore does not provide for the payment of a 
termination benefit on early termination. Should the position 
become redundant, the contract provides for payment of 
a redundancy amount comprising six months salary, an 
additional amount payable for each year of service subject 
to a cap of 75 weeks salary, an additional notice payment of 
17 weeks salary, and accrued entitlements. 

 All senior executives other than the Executive General 
Manager Marketing and Trading are employed on fixed 
term employment contracts. The Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Operating Officer and Executive General Managers 
Governance and Corporate Strategy, Human Resources 
and Stakeholder Engagement and Integration are subject to 
these contracts. 

 Contract provisions include: 

 •  three year terms, with the option to extend the term 
for a maximum of two years by mutual agreement. 
Commencement dates are as follows:

 •   for the Executive General Manager Governance 
and Corporate Strategy was 23 January 2009 
and extended for a further two year period on 24 
January 2012, concluding on 23 January 2014; 

 •   for the Executive General Manager Human 
Resources and Stakeholder Engagement was 2 
March 2009 and extended for a further two year 
period on 22 December 2011, concluding on 21 
December 2013; 
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36 Key management personnel disclosures  (continued)

(c) Remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

 •   for the Executive General Manager Integration was 1 June 2007 and extended for a further two year period to  
30 May 2012, converting to a fixed term alternative employment contract from 1 June 2012; 

 •   for the Chief Financial Officer was 2 March 2009 extended on 12 February 2012, concluding on 11 February  
2014; and 

 •   the Chief Operating Officer was 27 June 2008 extended for a further two year period on 27 June 2011, concluding  
on 26 June 2013.

 •  a payment of termination benefit on early termination by the Group, except for serious misconduct or poor performance, 
equal to two weeks salary (with a minimum of four weeks and maximum of 52 weeks salary) for each year of continuous 
service, 20% of the residual salary value of the contract and any accrued entitlements; and 

 •  a severance payment equal to 12 weeks of salary, only in circumstances where employment terminates upon expiry of 
the contract and where the Group has not offered further employment beyond the expiry date for reasons other than for 
serious misconduct or poor performance, and any accrued entitlements. 

(d) Performance payments for the Group 

 The following discloses the aggregate at-risk performance bonuses and salary and wages paid to all employees who received 
an at-risk performance payment: 

Consolidated entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Aggregate at-risk performance incentive remuneration1

Chief Executive Officer and Senior Executives 305 185

Contract and Enterprise Bargaining Agreement employees 8,800 3,395

9,105 3,580

Aggregate remuneration (including at-risk performance incentive remuneration) paid or payable 
to employees to whom a performance payment is paid or payable2 96,135 45,677

Number of employees to whom a performance payment is paid or payable 775 396

 At-risk performance incentive remuneration in this or future reporting periods is dependent upon satisfaction of targets 
approved by the board at the start of each financial year.

Employee category Grant date Nature of remuneration granted

Chief Executive Officer 21 August 2012 At-risk performance incentive payable in cash (cap of 15% of total fixed 
remuneration)

Senior Executives 21 August 2012 At-risk performance incentive payable in cash (cap of 15% of total fixed 
remuneration)

Contract employees 21 August 2012 At-risk performance incentive payable in cash (cap of 15% of total fixed 
remuneration)

Enterprise Bargaining 
Agreement employees

21 August 2012 At-risk performance incentive payable in cash (cap of 12% of total fixed 
remuneration)

1 Performance payment accruing in respect of the relevant year, regardless of the payment date.
2 Total remuneration includes base salary, overtime payments, motor vehicle and other work related allowances and 

performance payments but excludes superannuation and non-cash benefits. The 2011 figure includes superannuation. 
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36 Key management personnel disclosures  (continued)

(e) Details of remuneration 

 Details of the remuneration of each director of Stanwell Corporation Limited and each of the other key management personnel 
of the Group are set out in the following tables: 

 Directors of Stanwell Corporation Limited 

Name Short-term employee benefits Post-employment Total

2012 Cash Salary Committee Fees Non-monetary 
benefits*

Superannuation

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

G J Carpenter 71 8 – 8 87

W R Parer AM 7 – – – 7

K L Collins 30 4 – 3 37

G F Crow SC 30 4 – 3 37

A A Fitzpatrick 30 4 – 3 37

R J Kempnich 30 6 – 4 40

J A Leaver 30 6 – 4 40

S R Rochester 30 4 – 3 37

R J Welford 30 4 – 3 37

2011

G F Crow SC 21 3 – 2 26

J A Leaver 43 6 – 4 53

 *Includes car parking and associated fringe benefits tax. 
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36 Key management personnel disclosures (continued) 

(e) Details of remuneration (continued)

 Other key management personnel of the Group 

Name Short–term employee benefits Post–employment Long–
term 

employee 
benefits

Total

2012 Cash 
Salary

Allowance Bonus Non– 
monetary 

benefits

Super-
annuation 

Termi– 
nation 

payments

Long 
Service 

Leave

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Chief Executive Officer 327 25 55 19 40 – 7 473

Acting Chief Executive Officer 207 17 39 5 24 – 3 295

Chief Financial Officer 147 23 10 13 25 – 4 222

Acting Chief Financial Officer 105 13 17 3 12 – 3 153

Chief Operating Officer 301 21 46 12 35 – 8 423

Executive General 
Manager Integration 183 29 33 11 39 – 5 300

Executive General Manager 
Human Resources and 
Stakeholder Engagement 214 34 36 20 32 – 6 342

Executive General Manager 
Marketing and Trading 185 28 29 21 27 – 6 296

Acting Executive General 
Manager Marketing and 
Trading 40 7 – – 5 – 1 53

Executive General 
Manager Governance and 
Corporate Strategy 257 – 39 12 27 – 6 341

2011

Chief Executive Officer 283 200 60 – 48 – 7 598

Chief Financial Officer 254 9 – 13 24 – 4 304

Chief Operating Officer 201 40 27 – 24 – 5 297

General Manager 
Business Services 225 17 24 10 23 – 5 304

General Manager 
Business Development 307 5 25 5 24 – 6 372

General Manager Trading 233 26 35 10 24 – 5 333

General Manager 
Corporate Services 43 – 14 – 4 – 1 62

  Following the Generator Restructure in July 2011, the position descriptions of key management personnel were reviewed 
and updated. All prior year positions have been disclosed for transparency and completeness. Bonuses not paid by Stanwell 
Corporation Limited have been excluded from disclosure. 

(f) Other transactions with directors and other key management personnel 

 All transactions in the years ended 30 June 2012 or 30 June 2011 between the Group and directors or other key management 
personnel, including their related parties, were on normal commercial terms and conditions and were immaterial in nature. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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37 Remuneration of auditors 

 During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Parent entity: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Audit and other assurance services

  Audit and review of financial statements 481,400 328,845 481,400 328,845

  Underprovision from prior year 106,456 30,638 55,664 30,638

Total auditors’ remuneration 587,856 359,483 537,064 359,483

38 Contingencies 

 The Group had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2012 in respect of: 

 Guarantees 

 All guarantees are provided in the form of unconditional undertakings provided by Queensland Treasury Corporation and are 
secured through indemnity agreements. 

 These guarantees may give rise to liabilities in the Parent entity if the subsidiaries do not meet their obligations under the terms 
of the agreements or other liabilities subject to the guarantees. 

 In line with the accounting policy set out in note 1(z) the fair value of the above guarantees is $nil (2011: $nil). 

 Investment in gas exploration venture 

 During the financial year ended 30 June 2009, the Group signed a Farm-in Agreement and Joint Operating and Gas Supply 
Agreements with Icon Energy Limited and invested $6,000,000 for an initial pilot program covering four of the 30 blocks in Icon 
Energy Limited’s ATP 626P. 

 In August 2010, approval was received from shareholding Ministers to commit $30,000,000 to a farm-in to secure proven and 
probable (2P) reserves. As at 30 June 2012, $16,724,000 (2011: $21,173,000) remains to be spent. The Group will earn a 50% 
interest in the four blocks on completion of the farm-in. Key commercial terms have been agreed for the Group to purchase 225 
PJ from ATP 626P under a gas sale agreement over a 15 year period, subject to completion of the second stage of the farm-
in agreement. 

39 Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 

 Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:  
 

Consolidated entity

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Property, plant and equipment 28,555 44,325

Biological assets – 299

Exploration and evaluation 7,850 –

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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39 Commitments (continued)

(b) Lease commitments: Group as lessee 

 Non-cancellable operating leases 

 The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within 1 to 10 years. The leases have 
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. Excess floorspace 
is sublet to third parties also under non-cancellable operating leases to expire during the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 

 The Group also leases motor vehicles under leases with an average term of 3 years with no renewal option included in 
the contracts. 

Consolidated entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to 
non–cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: 
Within one year 5,592 2,429

Later than one year but not later than five years 15,457 3,487

Later than five years 9,076 3,400

30,125 9,316

Sub–lease payments

Consolidated entity

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Future minimum lease payments expected to be received in 
relation to non–cancellable sub–leases of operating leases 194 –

(c) Other Commitments

Consolidated entity

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Commitments relating to other operating expenditure 
payable is as follows:

Within one year 335,602 66,400

Later than one year but not later than five years 837,793 168,877

Later than five years 1,126,571 588,752

2,299,966 824,029

 All commitments are shown exclusive of Goods and Services Tax (GST).

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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40 Related party transactions

(a)  Parent entity 

 Ultimate control of the Group resides with the State of Queensland. The ultimate Parent entity within the Group is Stanwell 
Corporation Limited. 

(b) Wholly owned group 

 The wholly owned Group consists of Stanwell Corporation Limited and its wholly owned entities. Details of the interests in 
subsidiaries are set out in note 41. 

 The following transactions occurred with subsidiaries during the year:

Parent entity 

2012 2011

$’000 $’000

Fuel costs incurred for fuel provided by TEC Coal Pty Ltd 172,350 –

Dividends received from subsidiaries – 5,779

Loans provided to subsidiaries during the year 78,040 9,440

Loans receivable from subsidiaries 712,503 9,440

(c) Joint venture 

 The Group is a party to the Woodlands Hardwood Plantation Joint Venture and the Tarong Hoop Pine Joint Venture with 
Forestry Plantations Queensland. 

 The Group is Party to the Lydia farm-in area within the ATP 626P with Icon Energy Limited. 

 The Group held a 50% participatory interest in the Emu Downs Wind Farm through EDWF Holdings 1 Pty Ltd until it was sold on 
30 June 2011. 

 Details of the interest and transactions with the joint ventures are set out in note 43. 

(d) Key management personnel 

 Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 36. 

 Apart from specific compensation detailed in note 36, no director has entered into a contract with the Group since the end of 
the previous financial year. 

(e) Other State of Queensland controlled entities and post employment benefit plans 

 All State of Queensland controlled entities meet the definition of a related party in AASB 124 Related Parties. The Group 
transacts with other State of Queensland controlled entities as part of its normal operations on terms equivalent to those that 
prevail in arms length transactions. 

 The following transactions occurred with other related parties: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Electricity financial instrument settlements and 
environmental certificates 105,950 30,587 105,950 30,587

Fuel costs (12,560) (6,924) (258) (6,924)

Raw materials and consumables (86,253) (8,691) (77,682) (8,691)

Employee benefits expense (6,484) – (5,939) –

Other expenses (7,071) (1,786) (7,036) (1,786)

Finance costs (69,403) (26,311) (69,403) (26,311)

Superannuation contributions (3,348) (1,075) (3,330) (1,075)

Income tax equivalent (expense)/benefit (25,648) 12,587 (19,738) 9,067

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash and cash equivalents 39,635 417,749 39,635 417,749

Trade and other receivables 7,186 3,584 5,384 3,584

Current tax receivable 35,776 – 35,776 –

Derivative financial instrument assets 71,045 28,127 71,045 28,127

Deferred tax assets 148,843 18,590 107,399 17,266

Trade and other payables 2,572 2,123 1,551 2,123

Current tax liabilities – 49,292 – 49,292

Derivative financial instrument liabilities 11,308 7,702 11,308 7,702

Deferred tax liabilities 407,989 237,847 359,526 237,847

Borrowings 777,007 637,146 777,007 637,146

Provision for dividends 63,900 – 63,900 –

 No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been 
recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties. 

41 Subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests 

(a) Significant investments in subsidiaries 

 The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following principal subsidiaries in 
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1(b): 

Name of entity Country of 
incorporation

 Class of shares Equity holding

2012 % 2011 %

CS Energy Mica Creek Pty Ltd*,** Australia Ordinary 100 –

CS North West Pty Ltd*,** Australia Ordinary 100 –

Energy Portfolio 1 Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100

Glen Wilga Coal Pty Ltd* Australia Ordinary 100 –

Goondi Energy Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100

Tarong Energy Corporation Pty Ltd* Australia Ordinary 100 –

Tarong Fuel Pty Ltd*,** Australia Ordinary 100 –

Tarong North Pty Ltd* Australia Ordinary 100 –

TEC Coal Pty Ltd*,** Australia Ordinary 100 –

TN Power Pty Ltd*,** Australia Ordinary 100 –

 * These subsidiaries were transferred by regulation to Stanwell Corporation Limited on 1 July 2011.

 **  These subsidiaries have been granted relief from the necessity to prepare financial reports in accordance with Class Order 98/1418 issued by the Australian 
Securities and Investments Commission. For further information refer to note 42.

   Tarong Fuel Pty Ltd is a holding company.  

 Glen Wilga Coal Pty Ltd, Energy Portfolio 1 Pty Ltd and Tarong Energy Corporation Pty Ltd are dormant.

40 Related party transactions (continued)

(f) Outstanding balances

 The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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 42 Deed of cross guarantee 

 The Corporation has entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee with its subsidiaries under which each company guarantees the 
debts of the others. 

 By entering into the deed, the wholly owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and 
directors’ report under Class Order 98/1418 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. 

 The companies listed in note 41 represent a ‘Closed Group’ for the purposes of the Class Order, and, as there are no other 
parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Stanwell Corporation Limited, they also represent the ‘Extended 
Closed Group’. 

43 Interests in joint ventures 

(a) Jointly controlled assets 

 The Company has a 50% interest in the Kogan North Joint Venture, a gas development joint venture with Australian CBM 
Pty Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arrow Energy NL. The interest in the Kogan North Joint Venture was transferred to the 
Company from CS Energy on 1 July 2011 as a result of the Generator Restructure. 

(b) Joint operations 

 The Company has an 84% (2011: 84%) interest in the Woodlands Hardwood Plantation Joint Venture and a 19% (2011: nil) 
interest in the Tarong Hoop Pine Joint Venture. The interests are in unincorporated joint ventures with Forestry Plantations 
Queensland. The principal activity of the ventures is the establishment of a viable commercial plantation of trees (refer note 
20). The Company was transferred the interest in the Tarong Hoop Pine Joint Venture on 1 July 2011 as a result of the 
Generator Restructure. 

 The Group is a joint venturer in an unincorporated joint venture, the Lydia farm-in area within the ATP 626P joint venture in the 
Surat Basin with Icon Energy Limited. The principal activity of this venture is the exploration, and if appropriate, the exploitation 
of coal seam methane. Approval was received from shareholding Ministers in August 2010 to commit $30,000,000 to a farm-in 
which entitled the Group to joint control. As at 30 June 2012, $16,724,000 (2011: $21,173,000) remains to be spent. 

 The Group’s share of assets and liabilities employed in the joint ventures are as follows: 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Share of partnership’s assets and liability

Current assets 576 – 576 –

Non-current assets 17,445 513 9,631 513

Total assets 18,021 513 10,207 513

 
Current liabilities 176 – 176 –

Non-current liabilities 5,240 – 5,240 –

Total liabilities 5,416 – 5,416 –

Net assets 12,605 513 4,791 513

 For contingent liabilities relating to these joint ventures see note 38. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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44  Economic dependancy 

 The Group relies upon the Australian Energy Market Operator (AEMO) to determine the Regional Reference Price used in 
calculating the Group’s electricity sales revenue. 

 The Group’s customers are predominantly Queensland based due to limitations of physical delivery to other Australian Energy 
Market regions. 

 The Group is reliant on Queensland Electricity Transmission Corporation Limited (Powerlink Queensland) to provide fully 
available and functioning transmission lines to enable physical delivery of electricity. 

 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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45 Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 

Consolidated entity Parent entity

2012 2011 2012 2011

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Profit/(loss) for the year 79,860 (11,992) 126,622 4,517

Add items classified as investing/financing activities:

 Net gain on disposal of net assets held for  
 sale in disposal groups – (276,479) – (297,275)

 Net loss on disposal of property,  
 plant and equipment 1,884 8,066 983 8,066

 Dividends received – – – (5,779)

Add non–cash items:

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 172,637 81,580 129,218 81,580

 Impairment loss 48,246 251,286 17,048 246,873

 Non–cash retirement benefits expense adjustment (460) 31 (460) 31

 Fair value adjustment to derivatives 43,255 – 43,255 –

 Unwinding of discount on provisions 16,374 – 9,813 –

 Onerous contract remeasurement (20,538) – (20,538) –

 Stock obsolescence expense 957 – 957 –

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

 Decrease in trade and other receivables 2,536 27,767 35,816 18,328

 (Increase)/decrease in inventories 15,734 (12,321) 23,028 (12,321)

 Increase in assets classified as held for sale – (66,812) – (69,344)

 Increase in current tax receivable (35,776) – (35,776) –

 Increase in current financial assets (13,290) – (13,290) –

 Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets – 5,587 – 6,875

 Decrease/(increase) in other assets (31,455) 5,348 (565) 5,348

 Decrease in derivative financial instrument assets – 81,525 – 81,525

 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 27,306 (9,994) (167) (9,994)

 Increase/(decrease) in current tax liabilities (60,204) 9,803 (60,204) 9,803

 Increase in liabilities directly associated with  
 assets classified as held for sale – 184,030 – 184,724

 (Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities 21,595 (114,152) (10,711) (109,426)

 Decrease in provisions (131,043) – (127,120) –

 Increase in derivative financial instrument liabilities – 1,276 – 1,276

 Decrease in other liabilities (422) (42,116) (81) (42,117)

 (Decrease)/increase in hedging reserve 18,894 (56,470) 18,894 (56,470)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 156,090 65,963 136,722 46,220

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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46 Cross border leases 

 Stanwell Power Station is subject to cross border leases which were entered into in 1995. In accordance with accounting 
standards, the leases are treated as finance leases. The leased assets are being amortised in the statement of 
comprehensive income over the estimated life of the assets on a straight line basis consistent with the Group’s policy on 
depreciation of power stations. 

 Any major changes to the operational configuration of the power station must be approved by the lessors. There is no lease 
liability as future lease payments were prepaid at the commencement of the lease. 

47 Events occurring after the reporting period 

 Industry reviews

 In May 2012, the Queensland Government established an Interdepartmental Committee (IDC) on Electricity Sector Reform 
to review all aspects of the sector that impact on electricity costs, specifically energy supply, network costs and retail 
competition. The IDC will deliver a final report to the Queensland Government in January 2013.

 Carbon pricing scheme floor price

 The Federal Government announced on the 28 August 2012 that the planned floor price on carbon permits during the 
floating price period has been removed. Any impact of this change has not been incorporated into the asset values  
disclosed in this report.

 No other matter or circumstance has occurred subsequent to year end that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect, the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group or Economic entity in 
subsequent financial years. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 30 June 2012
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In the directors’ opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 32 to 113 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements, and

(ii) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of their 
performance for the year ended on that date, and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable, and

(c)  at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the extended closed group identified 
in note 42 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue of the Deed of 
Cross Guarantee described in note 42. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors. 

Directors’ declaration

 

The Hon. W R Parer AM 
Director

S R Rochester 
Director 

Brisbane  
30 August 2012
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Independent auditor’s report to the members

D
ire

ct
or

s’
 d

ec
la

ra
tio

n 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t a
ud

ito
r’s

 re
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

St
an

w
el

l F
in

an
ci

al
 R

es
ul

ts
 2

01
2

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited, which comprises the balance sheet as 
at 30 June 2012, the statements of comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and the directors’ declaration of the company 
and the consolidated entity comprising the company and 
the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time 
during the financial year. 

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Corporations Act 2001, and for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
report based on the audit. The audit was conducted 
in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland 
Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
company’s preparation of the financial report that gives 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence 
of the Auditor General and all authorised auditors. The 
Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public 
sector entities and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way 
considered appropriate and is not subject to direction by 
any person about the way in which audit powers are to be 

exercised. The Auditor-General has for the purposes of 
conducting an audit, access to all documents and property 
and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor 
General’s opinion are significant. 

In conducting the audit, the independence requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001 have been complied with. 
I confirm that the independence declaration required by 
the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the 
directors of Stanwell Corporation Limited, would be in the 
same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this 
auditor’s report. 

Opinion

In my opinion –

(a)  the financial report of Stanwell Corporation Limited is in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including –

(i)  giving a true and fair view of the company’s and 
consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 
2012 and of their performance for the year ended on 
that date; and

(ii)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited 
Financial Report

This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited and the consolidated entity for the year 
ended 30 June 2012. Where the financial report is included 
on Stanwell Corporations Limited’s website the company’s 
directors are responsible for the integrity of Stanwell 
Corporation Limited’s website and I have not been engaged 
to report on the integrity of Stanwell Corporation Limited’s 
website. The auditor’s report refers only to the subject 
matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on 
any other information which may have been hyperlinked 
to/from these statements or otherwise included with the 
financial report. If users of the financial report are concerned 
with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, 
they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited 
financial report to confirm the information contained in this 
website version of the financial report.

These matters also relate to the presentation of the audited 
financial report in other electronic media including CD Rom.

O C Clare FCPA  
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland)

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 
30 August 2012



Abbreviations

AIFR All Injury Frequency Rate

CO2 Carbon dioxide 

CO2e Carbon dioxide equivalent

EEO Equal Employment 
Opportunity

GOC Government Owned 
Corporation

GWh Gigawatt hour

HSEQ Health, Safety, 
Environment and Quality

ILUA Indigenous Land 
Use Agreement 

LTIFR Lost Time Injury Frequency 
Rate 

LNG Liquefied Natural Gas

MSA Mining Services 
Agreement

MW Megawatt 

MWh Megawatt hour

NEM National Electricity Market 

NOx Nitrogen oxides

PPE Personal Protective 
Equipment 

SCI Statement of 
Corporate Intent

SOx Sulphur Oxides
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Glossary

Availability  
The total energy available to the system, allowing for planned and forced 
maintenance, as a percentage of total energy capacity. 

Capacity factor 
The amount of energy generated compared to what would have been 
generated if the power station/s operated at installed capacity for the 
whole period. 

Carbon intensity  
Emissions of CO2 (kg) per megawatt hour generated. 

Carbon price  
A pricing mechanism in which Australia’s biggest polluters are required to pay 
for the carbon emissions they release.

CO2e 
A metric measure used to compare the emissions from various greenhouse 
gases based upon their global warming potential.

Cultural heritage  
The legacy of physical artifacts (cultural property) and intangible attributes of 
a group or society that are inherited from past generations, maintained in the 
present and bestowed for the benefit of future generations.

Dragline 
Heavy equipment used in surface mining to remove overburden coal. 

Forced outage factor  
The proportion of a plant’s capacity that is unavailable as a result of 
forced maintenance.

Greenhouse gas intensity 
Emissions of CO2e (various greenhouse gases measured based on their 
global warming potential) per megawatt hour generated. 

Level 1, 2 and 3 environmental incidents 
An event, usually contained to the site, which has minimal environmental 
effects. This also includes non-compliances with business systems. 

Level 4 and 5 environmental incidents 
An event leading to material or serious environmental harm and that may 
result in prosecution. 

Post-combustion capture 
The process of using a liquid to capture CO2 from power station flue gases. 

Power purchase agreement 
A contract between an electricity generator and a power purchaser (typically 
a utility or a large power buyer/trader).

Spot price  
The half hour average of the five-minute dispatch prices set by marginal 
generator. 

Water intensity  
The amount of water used (ML) per gigawatt hour generated. 

Abbreviations and glossary
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Apprentices, trainees 
and graduates

17

Ash 14

Barron Gorge Hydro 2, 15, 17

Board 

– Committees 10, 26, 30, 34, 
35, 36 

– Remuneration 26, 27, 30, 101, 
102, 103, 104 

– Structure 10, 26, 27, 34, 35

Carbon price 1, 3, 7, 9, 15, 
22, 65

Code of Conduct 7, 25, 27, 28

Community partnership funds 18

Corporate governance 7, 25, 26, 27, 28, 
29, 30, 31

Emissions 5, 7, 9, 14, 15, 20, 
21, 34

Enterprise agreements 16, 17, 31

Environment management system 14

Executive Leadership Team 11

Kareeya Hydro 2, 15, 17

Koombooloomba Hydro 2, 15

Mackay Gas Turbine 2

Meandu Mine 2, 5, 8, 9, 19, 20, 
33, 84

Mica Creek Power Station 2, 3, 4, 8, 12, 15, 
17, 20, 21, 31, 

33, 70

Northern Hydros 4, 8, 12, 20, 21

Safety performance 1, 3, 6, 8, 12, 13

Stanwell Power Station 2, 4, 5, 8, 12, 13, 
14, 17, 18, 20, 21, 

31, 85, 113

Statement of Corporate Intent 4, 29, 31
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Wesfarmers Resources 2, 4, 6, 8
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Tables

Apprentices, trainees 
and graduates

17

Asset performance 21

Corporate entertainment 
and hospitality

31

Employees by occupation 17

Environmental incidents 15

Equal Employment 
Opportunity numbers

17

Performance indicators 3

Performance overview 4

Year ahead 5

Graphs

All Injury Frequency Rate 13

Carbon intensity 15

Demand growth versus installed 
capacity and spot price

23

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate 13

Personnel turnover 17

Queensland annual average 
available generation, demand and 
spot prices (nominal)

23

SOx and NOx emissions 15

Water used and water intensity 15



Registered office

Level 13 
42 Albert Street 

GPO Box 800 
Brisbane QLD 4001

1800 300 351 
stanwell.com


